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The franchise described is known as “Teapioca Lounge”® (“Teapioca”). Teapioca is involved in the
business of training people through two comprehensive courses to open their own business involving quick
service beverage business and allowing select trainees to become Teapioca Franchisees. Teapioca
Franchisees provide high quality teas, boba, smoothies, iced products, and other dessert drink confections to
customers in a modern lounge setting, where customers come for the Confections and Stay for the
Connections®.

The total investment necessary to receive the initial Teapioca Single Unit Franchisee is $310,650.00
to $470,200.00. There are no initial franchise fees that must be paid to Us.

If You should choose and if Teapioca awards You the ability to open Multiple Units You will pay the
Area Development Fee plus the Initial Investment costs ranging from $366,410.00 to $619,480.00.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of Your Ongoing Franchise Agreement
and other information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before You sign a binding
agreement with or make any payment to Us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.
Note however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive Your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for
You. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Kevin Ho at 1000 Gattis School
Road, Ste. 640, Round Rock, Texas 78664, or email at KevinHo@ TeapiocalL.ounge.com or telephone him at
844-4TPIOCA.

The terms of Your contract will govern Your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the Disclosure
Document alone to understand Your contract. Read all of Your contract carefully. Show Your contract and
this Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help
You make up Your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A4 Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help You understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. Y ou can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov
for additional information.

There may also be laws on franchising in Your state. Ask Your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: June 8, 2023


http://www.ftc.gov/

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]



How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try
to obtain this information from others, like current
and former franchisees. You can find their names
and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibit B.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit A includes financial
statements. Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
Teapioca Lounge business
In my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the _
franchisor and other franchisees can compete with
you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be Teapioca
Lounge franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibit B lists current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about
their experiences.

What else should | know?

These questions are only a few thinﬂs you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.




What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally
Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees
even if you are losing money.
Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to
change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require
you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your
franchise business.
Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a
limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive
than similar items you could buy on your own.
Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions.
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what
you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.
Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.
Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to
continue to operate your franchise business.
When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your
landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration
Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the
agency information in Exhibit G.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda.
See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.



Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1.

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you
to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or
litigation only in Texas. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation
may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may
also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in
Texas than in your own state.

Mandatory minimum payments. You must make minimum royalty or
advertising fund payments, regardless of your sales levels. Your inability
to make the payments may result in termination of your franchise and loss
of your investment.

Sales performance required. You must maintain minimum sales
performance levels. Your inability to maintain these levels may result in
loss of any territorial rights you are granted, termination of your
franchise, and loss of your investment.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State

Specific Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be
highlighted.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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ITEM 1. THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS,
PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, the words “We,” “Our” and “Us”, "TPI"
and “Teapioca” refer to Teapioca International, LLC, the Franchisor and trainer of this business. “You”
and “Your” refer to the person who buys the training, whether You are an individual, a Corporation,
Limited Liability Company or other business entity. If You are a Corporation, a Limited Liability
Company or other business entity, certain provisions of this Disclosure Document also apply to Your
owners. Our agent for service of process is disclosed at the end of this Disclosure Document in Exhibit
H.

The Franchisor and its Affiliates

We were organized as a Limited Liability Company in Texas on January 1, 2015. We have no
parents. Our principal business address is 1000 Gattis School Road, Ste. 640, Round Rock, Texas 78664.
We do business under Our company name and the names “Teapioca”, “Teapioca International”, and
“Teapioca Lounge”. We have offered franchises since January 15, 2015.

CHBN Holdings, LLC which is located at 3116 Carnousty Street, Round Rock, TX 78664.
CHBN Holdings, LLC is the holder of our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property items.
CHBN Holdings, LLC does not offer nor has it previously offered a franchise in this or any other line
of business. None of the owners in Teapioca International, LLC owns any percentage of CHBN
Holdings, LLC. CHBN Holdings is not an affiliate of Ours.

We grant training to learn the quick service beverage business best practices and allow select
trainees who are qualified persons or business entities to become franchisees in connection with the service
mark Teapioca Lounge® and other related logos (collectively referred to as the “Marks™). We refer to these
businesses as “Teapioca Businesses.” Our Franchisees conduct Teapioca business which provide high
guality teas, boba, smoothies, Taiwanese shaved ice products, and other dessert drink confections to
customers in a modern lounge setting, where customers Come for the Confections and Stay for the
Connections®. We refer to the Teapioca Businesses You will operate as the “Franchised Business.” In
addition to granting franchises for single unit Teapioca Businesses, We also allow certain Franchisees
who fit Our criteria to become Multi-unit franchise owners, also called Area Developers. Multi-unit
franchise owners open and operate multiple additional Teapioca Businesses in a specified Territory.
Upon establishing each additional outlet under the Development Schedule, You may be required to sign
the then-current Ongoing Franchise Agreement, which may differ from the current Ongoing Franchise
Agreement included with this FDD. You must operate the Franchised Business in accordance with Our
standards, methods, procedures and specifications, which We refer to as Our “System” and which are more
particularly described in Our Ongoing Franchise Agreement.

Teapioca International, LLC has never operated a Teapioca Lounge. Other than the overall Site
and Establishment training in the quick service beverage industry, We are not engaged in any other line
of business, nor have We ever offered franchises in another line of business.

General Description of the Franchise, Market, and Competition

The franchise described is known as Teapioca Lounge® (“Teapioca™). Teapioca is involved in
the business of boba, bubble tea and dessert drink confections. The market for the goods and/or services
that are offered by Our Franchised Businesses would be categorized as a well-developed market.
Teapioca Franchisees provide high quality teas, boba, smoothies, Taiwanese shaved ice products, and
other dessert drink confections to customers in a modern lounge setting, where customers Come for the
Confections and Stay for the Connections®. The bubble tea industry is worth an estimated 2.4 billion
dollars. You will face competition from graduates of Our training courses who chose not to become
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franchisees, as well as, other coffee shops, tea shops, restaurants which serve dessert products, juice
bars, other Teapioca Lounge franchisees, and other businesses involved in the service of boba and
bubble tea products in Your area.

Regulations

The quick service beverage business, as with any business, is regulated. Many of the laws, rules
and regulations that apply to businesses generally, such as the Americans with Disabilities Act, Federal
wage and hour laws, the USA PATRIOT Act & Executive Order 13224, and the Occupational Safety and
Health Act, may also apply to the Teapioca Franchised Businesses. If You apply to become and are
awarded a Teapioca franchise, You will be required to comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, rules
and regulations, including, DOJ report, and background check/report, and will timely obtain, maintain and
renew when required all permits, certificates, and licenses necessary for the proper operation of Your
Teapioca Franchise, including qualification to do business, fictitious trade or assumed name registration.

Additionally, You must comply with all rules, laws and regulations relating to the food service
industry, including but not limited to, regulations by the U.S. General Services Administration, and those
laws issued and enforced by state and local health departments.

You should consider these and other applicable laws and regulations when evaluating Your
opening of a quick service beverage business. If You apply to become and are awarded a Teapioca
franchise, You are responsible for complying with all applicable laws and regulations under the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement.

ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer: Bao Phan

Bao has been the CEO of Teapioca International, LLC since June 1, 2021. Prior to this position
he held the position of Chief Branding Officer for TPI from its inception in 2015. As the Chief Branding
Officer, Bao handled all external communication with the vendors responsible for producing the high
quality, proprietary branded products that Teapioca Lounge franchisees use in the operation of their
franchised business. Outside of his work with Teapioca International Bao has been employed as an
advisory software engineer with IBM in Austin, Texas since June of 1999. Bao's dedication to the brand
is clear as is his sharp and analytical mind.

Chief Operations Officer: Johnson Wu

Johnson has been the COO of Teapioca International, LLC since June 1, 2021. Prior to his
position of COO, he was the acting CEO of Teapioca International from October 7, 2019, to his
acceptance of the COO title in June of 2021. Johnson has also served in the capacity of Teapioca Lounge
Training Manager since our inception. Johnson previously held the position of General Manager of the
Teapioca Lounge Parmer location January of 2013 through October 7, 2019. As an Ex-General Manager
Johnson gained valuable experience in the day-to-day operation of a Teapioca Lounge Franchised
Business. Johnson brings his real-world experience and training background to his position of COO with
Teapioca International and enjoys supporting franchisees.

Business Manager: Kevin Ho

Kevin earned a master’s degree in Management Information Systems (M.I.S.) from the
University of Texas at Dallas and has over twenty years of IT Management and Consulting experience
from Accenture and Freeman combined. He attended Baylor University and the University of Houston
where he earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Biology. He and his wife also own a Kumon franchised
business, which is an afterschool program focused on Math and Reading. Kevin joins Teapioca
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International as a business Manager and Strategist. He is focused on helping to define short and long-
term goals, instill best practices through process definitions and documentation, and enjoys managing
and nurturing staff.

ITEM 3. LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY

No Bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM S. INITIAL FEES

There is no Initial Franchise Fee. The Franchise Fee is Zero Dollars ($0.00). The Initial Fees,
as they are described above, are uniform for all Applicants.

Ongoing Franchise Agreement

After completing a Business Establishment and Site Selection Training course, You will enter
into an Ongoing Franchise Agreement, for no additional fee. You will be provided: (1) an Operations
Manual(s) to use, which shall remain Our Confidential Information and sole property; (2) Teapioca
specific Site Approval and Layouts; (3) Teapioca specific Business Establishment and buildout
assistance; (4) Franchisee and Managers Teapioca Training; (5) Teapioca Soft Opening and Grand
Opening Training for Your staff; and (6) ongoing support and industry knowledge. You and all hired
directors and managers must attend the required Ongoing Franchise Agreement training program. You
must pay for all travel expenses, room and board, and any related employee costs during the training
program.

Area Development Agreement

If You chose to enter into, and have been approved for, an Area Development Agreement, You
must sign the Area Development Agreement simultaneously with the first Ongoing Franchise
Agreement for Your first Teapioca Business.

Units Discount % Original Price Discount Total after Discount
3- Pack 12% $ 129,000 $ 15,480 $ 113,520
5- Pack 17% $ 215,000 $ 36,550 $ 178,450
7- Pack 24% $ 301,000 $ 72,240 $ 228,760

The Total Development Fee for a 3 Pack of One Hundred Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred
Twenty Dollars ($113,520.00), must be paid to Us upon signing the Area Development Agreement for
a 3 Pack Development Schedule; or

The Total Development Fee for a 5 Pack of One Hundred Seventy-Eight Thousand Four
Hundred Fifty Dollars ($178,450.00), must be paid to Us upon signing the Area Development
Agreement for a 5 Pack Development Schedule; or

The Total Development Fee of Two Hundred Twenty-Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty

Dollars ($228,760.00) must be paid to Us upon signing the Area Development Agreement for a 7 Pack
Development Schedule.
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The total Development Fee for the number of units as shown on the Development Schedule,
Exhibit I, is due to Us in a lump sum when You sign the Development Agreement, unless otherwise
stated in the State Addendum attached. The Development Fee is payment for reserving the Development
Territory, expenses incurred by Us in furnishing assistance and services to You as set forth in the
Development Agreement and for costs incurred by Us, including general sales and marketing expenses,
training, legal, accounting and other professional fees. The Development Fees, as described above, are
uniform for all Developers, unless the below discount applies.

Additional Discounts

We offer ten percent (10%) off of the Initial Fees for U.S. military who would be eligible for
VetFran membership.

Refundability
The Initial Fees are non-refundable in whole or in part under any circumstance.

ITEM 6. OTHER FEES

Below is a detailed description of other recurring or isolated fees or payments that You must
pay to Us or that We impose or collect for a third-party under the terms of the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement. The fees are uniformly imposed unless noted otherwise below in the Remarks column. We
reserve the right to increase fees for inflation. All Fees are Due Weekly on Wednesday by ACH

Auto Debited unless stated differently below.

Name of Amount Due Date Remarks
Fee
Royalty Fee? 5% of Gross Wednesday, for For the limited right to use the Teapioca
Sales the previous trademarks from due date to due date. Five
Week ending the percent (5%) of Your Gross Sales, see
last full day of the | definition of Gross Sales.3 This is the amount
preceding Week due Us.
04-10
Business 2% - 1% based Wednesday, for Contributions must be paid weekly. To qualify

Branding Fund?

on Gross Sales
volume,

the previous
Week ending the
last full day of the
preceding Week

for the one percent (1%) branding fee Your
Gross Sales You must reach Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars during any fiscal year
(January 1 through December 31). Once You
have qualified for the lower fee You keep it.

We do not require Business Branding Funds to
be used in cooperative advertising however, a
cooperative may determine its members’
required contributions, if one is created by its
members. We reserve the right to raise the
National Business Branding Fund fee if needed.
You will have at minimum thirty (30) days’
notice of the change.

Local
Advertising
Fee

$1,051.00 per
month,

Monthly

You will submit month to Us or Our Approved
Supplier in the Manual(s) these contributions
from the previous month towards Your Local
Advertising, which is due with Your first
Royalty Report of the month.
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Name of
Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Advertising
Cooperative

The amount
will vary by
cooperative

Upon Demand

If Franchisees or We choose to create an
advertising cooperative, the amount will vary
depending upon the area being covered by the
cooperative. You will pay an equal amount
with all other Franchisees in the cooperative.
i.e. all Los Angeles franchisees chose to go
together and buy an ad in the Los Angeles
Times paper.

Technology
and Intranet
Fee

$135.00 per
week

Wednesday, for
the previous
Week ending the
last full day of the
preceding Week

This will cover the maintenance of Your POS,
payment processing software, marketing
demographics, image and video development of
Your digital menu, customer display screens,
web ordering, intranet, customer rewards
program, data analytics, and franchisee
platform access. These fees are subject to
change. Further described in Section 3.7 of the
Ongoing Franchise Agreement.

Technology
Setup Fees

$1,500.00
initial setup
fee

As Invoiced

This will cover the initial setup of Your POS,
payment processing software, marketing
demographics, image and video development of
Your digital menu, customer display screens,
web ordering, intranet, customer rewards
program, data analytics, and franchisee
platform access. You may choose to obtain
additional items or terminals at training. If You
do, there will be an additional fee. You will
also be responsible for any ongoing upgrades or
updates, maintenance packages and software
package after installation.

Telephone
Directory
Advertising*

Varies
according to
area and type

As invoiced

You are required to list and advertise in the
online “white pages” of Your local telephone
directory, and other online directories such as

of listing Yelp and Google Business Pages, which are
typically free unless You request additional
services or advertising from them.
Audit All costs and Upon demand Audit costs payable only if the audit shows an
Expenses! expenses understatement in amounts due of 2% or more;
associated or for other third-party audits, including any
with audit governmental type audits, not initiated by Us.
Late Fees? $50.00 Upon demand Applies to all overdue Royalty Fees, Marketing

Fees and other amounts due to Us per incident.
Also applies to any understatement in amounts
due revealed by an audit. Plus eighteen percent
(18%) interest; plus legal late and bank fees, if
applicable?. All interest is compounded daily,
unless modified by state law in the state
Addendum.
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Name of Amount Due Date Remarks
Fee
Insufficient $50.00, or the | Upon demand Applies to all non-approved (ACH Debit) or
Funds Fee maximum returned payments made by You that do not
amount as fund or clear Your bank for any reason
permitted by whatsoever, per incident. Plus eighteen percent
State law (18%) interest, plus legal late and bank fees, if
applicable?. The maximum amount allowed in
Your state may be adjusted on the State
Addendum. (see Exhibit H)
Insurance Amount As required by You must have insurance coverage in the
incurred third-party amounts specified within the Ongoing
insurance Franchise Agreement.
provider
Policy Amount Upon demand Payable only if You fail to maintain required
Reimbursement | incurred insurance coverage and We elect to obtain
° coverage for You.
Transfer Fee! $10,000.00 Time of transfer The Transfer fee is due when submitting the
Notice of Selling, which is when you place
Your Franchised Business up for sale. This fee
is not refundable.
This full fee does not apply if You transfer
ownership to Your Own new entity, under
Section 18.3 of the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, only a Five Hundred Dollar
($500.00) fee would be due under that section.
Transfer $15,000.00 Time of Transfer | Due upon Signing of the New Ongoing
Training Fee training Franchise Agreement with Transferee.
Additional trainees can attend at a daily rate of
Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) each. All
travel, room and board will be at Transferee’s
expense.
Relocation Costs of Time of We will charge You a Relocation Fee for
Assistance! providing assistance relocation evaluation if You request it and We
relocation agree to provide it.
assistance
Customer $0 - $62.50/hr. | Upon demand All costs and expenses incurred in assisting
Service! Your Consumers. You must reimburse Us if
We determine it is necessary for Us to provide
service directly to any of Your customers.
Additional Daily Rates as | Time of service You pay for additional training for additional
Training® published in trainees at Our facility at a rate of Five
the Manual, Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per day (eight (8)
currently, hour session) plus (i) Our travel expenses or (ii)
$500.00 per Your expenses as well as Your employees’
day expenses in attending. You will also pay this
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Name of Amount Due Date Remarks
Fee
fee if additional training is required if You fall
below the minimum gross sales requirement.
Additional Daily Rates as | Time of We provide You with assistance around the
Operations published in assistance beginning of Your operations at no charge to
Assistance® the Manual, You. You pay for additional assistance if You
currently, request it or if We provide assistance to Your
$500.00 Customers. We will provide this assistance for
up to sixty (60) days at Our Daily Rate plus
Our expenses.
Ongoing You are Time of program | We provide Update Training. No tuition or
Training required to pay training fees are assessed. The Manager,
Programs® Your expenses Franchisee’s other managers and/or employees
as well as will not be required to attend more than one (1)
Your session(s) in any calendar year and collectively
employees’ not more than three (3) days in any calendar
expenses for year, not including any annual convention that
attending is held by Us.
Temporary Rates as Each day that it Following the death or incapacity of an owner
Management published in applies of the Franchised Business. We may assume
Assistance! the Manual; operation of the Franchised Business until the
deceased or incapacitated owner’s interest is
transferred to a third-party approved by Us, up
to a maximum of sixty (60) days. We charge
this temporary management fee during the time
We are operating Your Franchised Business
and We will also be entitled to reimbursement
of any expenses We incur that are not paid out
of the operating cash flow of the Franchised
Business, as stated in the Manual(s).
National / $1,500 for two | March 15 of each | We provide Annual Training at Our Annual
Regional attendees year Convention. We will provide all convention
Meetings entrance fees, except hotel and airfare costs for
(Non- . .
attendance up to two (2) to attend 'ghe training session.
incUrs an Additional _attendees will be billed at Seven
additional Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750) each.
penalty of
$2,000)
Indemnification | All costs Upon demand You must defend lawsuits at Your cost and
/ Legal Fees including hold Us harmless against lawsuits arising from
attorney’s fees Your operation of the Franchised Business.
Renewal Fees $8,750.00 Nine (9) months You must notify Us in writing at least nine (9)

prior to
termination

months prior to the end of Your Ongoing
Franchise Agreement with Us that You wish to
Renew Your Franchise. You must attend

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023
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Name of Amount Due Date Remarks
Fee
refresher training if requested, sign a General
Waiver (subject to state law), and execute the
then-current Ongoing Franchise Agreement,
and comply with current standards (Ongoing
Franchise Agreement Section 4.2)
Replacement $1,500.00 Upon request You are loaned one copy of the Operations
Operations each Manual(s). If You require a replacement copy
Manual(s) this fee will be due upon ordering it.
Liquidated $20,000.00 per | Upon occurrence | This is contained in the Confidentiality
Damages on breach Agreement attached as Exhibit I, and only
Confidential applies prior to becoming a Franchisee.
Information
Disclosure only
Liquidated Amount varies | Within fifteen An amount equal to One Thousand Dollar
Damages (15) days, after ($1,000.00) per day per occurrence retroactive

termination, pay
the amount due
based upon the
formula noted in
the Remarks
section

to the first date of offense, plus the average
monthly Royalty Fees You paid to Us during
the three (3) fully operating months preceding
the effective date of termination multiplied by
the number of months remaining in this
Agreement had it not been terminated, or until
the Territory is resold, whichever occurs first.

The liquidated damages provision only covers
Our damages from the loss of cash flow from
the loss of continuing Royalty Fees.

Prospective
Supplier
Sample Tests

$150.00, plus
Actual costs
incurred

At time of request

This will be rare. For example: if You wish to
have Us test or review a new supplier for new
proprietary software or manufacturer of logoed
items, there will be a fee for any actual costs
incurred plus a One Hundred Fifty Dollars
($150.00) fee. The new supplier will go
through a 90-day approval process, plus test
marketing.

Test marketing shall consist of a minimum of
ninety (90) days and a maximum of ninety (90)
days and must be tested at the Franchisee’s
location as well as possibly a corporate
location.

Maintenance
and Renovation

Amounts vary

When needed or
every three (3)
years whichever
occurs first

You will refresh the Teapioca trade dress every
three (3) years. Renovation will be reviewed
every seven (7) years, on an as needed or as
required basis, based upon the brand standards
contained in the Manual(s).

Taxes

$0.00
currently. As
determined by
applicable

Upon demand

You may be required to pay to Us sales taxes,
use taxes, and similar taxes as imposed on
goods and services sold to You from Us, as
determined by what is imposed on Us by local,
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Name of Amount Due Date Remarks

Fee
taxing states and federal taxing authorities, unless the
authorities tax is an income tax assessed on Us for doing
business where Your Franchised Business is
located.

No other fees or payments are to be paid to Us, nor do We impose or collect any other fees or
payments for any other third-party. All fees are generally nonrefundable.

NOTES

1 These fees are imposed by Us and are uniformly imposed and collected through
deduction from Your ACH Account and are payable to Us as listed in the due date column of the above
chart. Franchisor owned units do not have voting power in cooperatives established. The Royalty Fees,
the Service Fee, plus any other amounts You owe Us will be deducted as an ACH withdrawal initiated
by Us from Your business banking account following Our receipt of Your Gross Sales Reports. (see
Item 8) We may pass through to You any additional fees We incur if You pay Us any amounts by credit
card. You are required to pay to Us an amount equal to all sales taxes, use taxes and similar taxes
imposed on the fees payable by Franchisee to Franchisor as described above and on services or goods
furnished to You by Us at the same time as You submit Your Gross Sales Reports, if any taxing authority
imposes taxes on Us, whether such services or goods are by sale, lease or otherwise, unless the tax is an
income tax assessed on Us for doing business in Your state.

To receive the lower one percent (1%) Business Branding Fund, You must notify Us
via the Weekly Sales Report of Your qualification, We will then verify Your qualification as described
in the Manual(s) and the following week the one percent (1%) will be due.

2 The daily additional fee begins the day after underpayment, plus the maximum amount
of interest allowed by law, compounded daily.

3 “Gross Sales” means the aggregate of all income and monthly fees You receive from
Customers for the purchase or provision of any goods or services, including enrollment fees, or any
other person or business entity for the Franchised Business in connection with the Franchised Business
(whether or not in accordance with the terms of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement) and whether for
check, cash, credit or otherwise, from the sale of products and services (including service charges in lieu
of gratuity) regardless of the dollar amount You sell each product or service for, including, without
limitation, all proceeds from any business interruption insurance, but excluding (a) all insurance
payments, check, cash, credit or debit card refunds made in good faith provided, prior to granting the
refunds, the revenue related to the refunds was included in Gross Sales, (b) any sales and equivalent
taxes that You collect for or on behalf of and pay to any governmental taxing authority, and (c) any
rebate You receive from a manufacturer or supplier.

4 Local and telephone directory advertising is in addition to and exclusive of the Local
Marketing Contribution.

5 You must maintain certain types of insurance coverage as disclosed in Item 8 or in the
Manual. If You do not, We may immediately obtain or reinstate the required coverage on Your behalf,
and You must promptly reimburse Us for the costs of obtaining insurance and any additional costs
incurred by Us in obtaining Your coverage or reinstatement.
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6

7

or may be payable directly to the third-party requiring the audit.

ITEM 7.

These amounts are estimates and approximate the average charge to You for services.
Based upon the $62.50/hr. or $500/day rate currently in the Manual. Charges may vary based upon the
actual time spent by Our staff and the duration of the training or assistance provided.

These amounts may be collected by the Us and paid to the third-party on Your behalf,

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT *

EXPENDITURE AMOUNT METHOD OF | WHEN DUE TO WHOM
PAYMENT PAYMENT IS
TO BE MADE
INITIAL FEES? $0.00 to $0.00 None 301030 Us
TRAVEL AND $3,200.00 to $10,500.00 | As Incurred During Airlines,
LIVING EXPENSES Training/Before Hotels,
WHILE TRAINING® Opening Businesses, Car

Rental
Companies,
etc.

TOTAL FOR
TRAINING ONLY

$3,200.00 to $10,500.00

This rest of this section is only applicable if You apply to become and are awarded a Teapioca
Franchised Business, as these figures are specifically for a Teapioca franchise.

RENT / REAL $7,400.00 to $25,000.00 | As Arranged As Arranged Landlord
ESTATE DEPOSIT
REAL ESTATE $0.00 to $0.00 As Incurred As Arranged CCIM Site
SITE SELECTION! Selection
Services are
included in Our
support
UTILITY AND $300.00 to $1,800.00 As Arranged Before Opening, Landlord and
MISCELLANEOUS may depend upon Utility
SECURITY Your personal credit | Companies
DEPOSITS? history or ratings
LEASEHOLD $143,000.00 to $208,000.00 | As Arranged Before Opening, Landlord
IMPROVEMENTS may be included in
lease negotiations

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023
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FURNITURE, $45,000.00 to $55,000.00 | As Arranged Before Opening Approved
FIXTURES, AND Suppliers and
EQUIPMENT® Vendors
OPENING $30,000.00 to $45,000.00 Lump Sum As arranged Us
INVENTORY'
OFFICE SUPPLIES $500.00 to $1,000.00 As Arranged Before Opening Approved
AND OTHER Suppliers and
OPENING ITEMS’ Vendors
GRAND OPENING $10,000.00 to $15,000.00 | As Arranged Before Opening Approved
Suppliers and
Vendors
INSURANCES $750.00 to $900.00 As Arranged Monthly/As Insurance
Arranged, A Portion | Company
Before Opening
SIGNAGE® $5,000.00 to $10,000.00 | As Arranged Before Opening Third-party
LICENSING AND $500.00 to $1,000.00 As Incurred During Training/ Third-party
PERMITS ' Before Opening Vendors
UNIFORMS’ $500.00 to $1,000.00 As Arranged As Incurred, A Approved
Portion Before Suppliers and
Opening Vendors
LEGAL/ $1,500.00 to $3,000.00 As Arranged As Incurred Your chosen
ACCOUNTING! professional
ADDITIONAL $20,000.00 to $50,000.00 As Incurred As Incurred Operating
FUNDS?? Capital
(Three Months)
TOTALL $267,650.00 to $427,200.00
Teapioca franchise
Single Unit

Area Development of 3 to 7 Single Ongoing Franchise Agreements over time

This section is only applicable if You apply to become and are awarded a Teapioca Area Development

Agreement.
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YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT !

EXPENDITURE AMOUNT METHOD OF | WHEN DUE TO WHOM
PAYMENT PAYMENT IS
TO BE MADE
AREA $55,760.00 to $149,280.00 | Payment of The Total amountis | Us
DEVELOPMENT Lump Sum due upon signing the
FEE? Ongoing Franchise
Agreement?
ESTIMATED $267,650.00 to $427,200.00 | As described in | As described in the As described in
INITIAL the Initial Initial Investment the Initial
INVESTMENT FOR Investment Table above for a Investment
FIRST UNIT Table above single Unit. Table above for
for a single a single Unit.
Unit.
TOTALY 12 $323,410.00 to $576,480.00
Development Units

NOTESTO ITEM 7.
* All Funds payable to Us are non-refundable once paid. For specific information see the
Refundability section of Item 5.

1. Estimated Initial Investment

The above estimates do not provide for Your cash requirements to cover operating costs after the initial
90-day phase or personal living expenses. You must have additional sums available, whether in cash or
through unsecured credit lines or have other assets that You may liquidate or that You may borrow
against, to cover Your personal living expenses and any operating costs after the initial 90-day phase of
Your Teapioca Franchise. We urge You to retain the services of an experienced accountant or financial
advisor in order to develop a business plan and financial projections for Your Teapioca Franchise. Your
actual investment will vary depending upon local conditions particular to Your geographic area or
market, and the choices You make such as the attorney or accountant You choose to work with. As
described in Item 10 below. We do not offer any in-house financing arrangements to You.

2. Initial Fees and Development Fee

As discussed in Item 5 above, if You submit an Application and have completed a Site Selection and
Real Estate training and the Business Establishment training and are then offered an Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, or if You are approved to be an Area Developer, You will sign a separate agreement called
an Ongoing Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement and submit the Area Development
Fee for all of the units in the Development Schedule after Your first Ongoing Franchise Unit. If You are
not approved to be an Area Developer then You will not pay the Development fee. All Initial Fees may
be modified by a State Addendum attached as Exhibit G.

3. Real Estate/Rent

Your Teapioca Franchised Business will be run out of a business location. Your monthly rent and
security deposit or monthly mortgage payments as a projected high-low dollar investment as to leasing
space in a business location are somewhat difficult to predict. They will depend upon the size, condition
and location of the premises and the demand for the premises among other possible tenants or
purchasers, along with the particular building’s prevailing rental rates for Your particular locale.
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4. Lease, Utility and Miscellaneous Security Deposits

You will most likely be required to pay a lease deposit (typically the last month's rent) before You can
enter the premises. Utility companies may require You to place a deposit and/or pay an installation fee
before occupying the premises or installing telephone, gas, electricity and related utility services. These
deposits may be refundable under agreements made with the Landlord and utility companies.

5. Leasehold Improvements

The cost of construction and leasehold improvements depends upon the size and condition of the
premises, the local cost of contract work and the location of the Franchised Business. In some cases, a
"vanilla shell" is available which can be used without requiring extensive demolition or renovation. In
other cases, the space may require extensive renovation, construction of ceilings, walls, plumbing,
flooring and lighting, before finishes can be installed. The range of figures for a Franchised Business is
for the cost of reasonable renovation or leasehold improvements. This figure does not include all signage
necessary for the franchise location.

You must have interior and exterior sighage bearing the Marks as prescribed by Us. The cost of signage
will be approximately $5,000.00 to $10,000.00 and will vary based upon the supplier of the signage,
size, number of signs, and requirements of the building location and may also be affected by applicable
municipal code and zoning restrictions. You must use at least those signs shown on the standard list of
internal signs We require for every Franchised Business.

6. Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
The equipment estimate does not include import fees, shipping or freight.

The equipment necessary for the operation of a Teapioca Business is listed in the Confidential
Operations Manual(s) (the “Manual”). You must purchase approved brands and models from approved
suppliers. The cost of the equipment will depend on financing terms available, the size of the Franchised
Business, brands purchased, and other such relevant factors.

Fixtures may include desks, signs, wall coverings, and decorations. The cost of fixtures will vary,
depending on the layout of the Franchised Business, and other relevant factors.

However, all equipment, fixtures, construction, leasehold improvements and interior decor (if
applicable) must meet Our standards and specifications and must be approved by Us. Local ordinances
may result in variances in the type of required furniture, fixtures or equipment, which may affect the
total price.

7. Opening Inventory
The Opening Inventory is the amount of Initial Product or Supplies You must have in Your Teapioca
location. The Opening Inventory is the amount of initial product You must have for Your business. In
the chart above it reflects $15,000.00, as the minimum anticipated amount of initial inventory, some
inventory may be supplied to You prior to Opening by Us. While the reflected $30,000.00 includes the
amount for larger locations.

Office Supplies and Other Opening Items
Supplies and Other Opening Items is the amount of miscellaneous supplies and other small items You
must have for Your business. In the chart above it reflects $500, as the minimum anticipated amount of
supplies and other opening items, some items may be supplied to You prior to Opening by Us. While
the reflected $1,000 includes the amount for larger locations.
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8. Insurance

You must obtain and maintain the required insurance coverage, by a third party, as described by Us in
Item 9 of this Disclosure Document and in the Ongoing Franchise Agreement. The cost of insurance
will vary based on types and limits of insurance purchased, location of the Franchised Business, terms
available and other related factors. The estimate provided is for Your insurance deposit. Please check
your lease contract to determine value of insurance coverage required. Be sure that the insurance
coverage amount meets both the Landlord’s and Our requirements (covered in Item §)

9. Training

You and Your Manager must participate in Our training programs as stated in Item 11 of this Disclosure
Document. You may participate in Our additional training programs. All Initial Fees are used to defray
Our costs for providing training, promotional assistance and materials and other services to be provided
by Us. Additional information regarding training is available in Item 11 of this Disclosure Document.

10. Additional Funds
An amount of working capital is projected as sufficient to cover operating expenses for three months,
including software, employee salaries and overhead, but excluding salary for an owner-operator.

11. Real Estate Site Selection

We provide You with Site Selection and Real Estate Services at no additional cost through Our
Approved Vendor. If You choose not to make use of this service, You will bear the costs associated with
Us obtaining the necessary Site Selection analytics including demographics, psychographics, and other
information from Our Approved CCIM Vendor. These costs can vary widely and are dependent on a
number of factors and typically range from $3,000.00 to $10,000.00, if Franchisee does not utilize the
approved CCIM Vendor. We do not recommend You use any other Real Estate service than Our
Approved Vendor.

12. Total
We relied upon Our business experience to compile these estimates. You should review these figures
carefully with a business advisor before making any decision to purchase the franchise.

We do not offer any direct or in-house financing to You for the Initial Fees as described more fully in
Item 10. However, We may provide assistance to You in obtaining outside financing.

ITEM 8. RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

This section is only applicable if You apply to become and are awarded a Teapioca Franchised
Business.

Franchised Business and L ocation

You must submit at least three (3) locations of Your choosing for approval. The location(s) must
meet Our location selection guidelines for the equipment necessary for the operation of a Teapioca
Business is listed in the Confidential Operations Manual(s) (the ‘“Manual”). You must purchase
approved brands and models from approved suppliers. The cost of the equipment will depend on
financing terms available, the size of the Franchised Business, brands purchased, and other such relevant
factors.

The criteria used in approving the location may include generally accepted criteria for assessing
the sales performance of target metropolitan centers, parking availability, signage availability, other
Teapioca Lounge Business and competitors; lease requirements; proximity to at least 1 mall, movie
theater, office park, sports complex, college/university, or similar business destination that attracts large
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amounts of potential customers on a regular basis located within the proposed Territory and diversity of
contacts within those areas.

Services, Equipment; Fixtures; Furniture and Signs

You must contract, purchase, lease, or license any services, equipment, furniture, fixtures,
supplies, or other materials to be used in the operation of the Franchised Business, only from suppliers
that We designate or approve (which might include or be limited to Us), if stated in the Manual(s) or
previously approved in writing by Us. You may purchase items and services for which We have not
identified approved suppliers from any source if the items and services meet Our specifications.

Other Products; Supplies and Materials

You must purchase all products, goods, services, supplies, fixtures, materials or equipment and
signs used in the operation of the Franchised Business that meet the specifications and quality standards
established periodically by Teapioca and from suppliers and manufacturers approved by Teapioca, as
described below.

You must use only envelopes, business cards, letterhead, labels, and documentation imprinted
with the Marks and colors as prescribed and approved by Teapioca.

Specifications and Standards

To maintain the high standards of the quality assurance program and to ensure compliance with
service specifications, OSHA, and industry standards, Teapioca reserves the right to approve sources of
services or products sold in Franchised Businesses. If We chose to set a specific specification or
standard, or if We approve any specific vendors or suppliers, We will share those standards with You in
the Manual(s). Any changes to or modifications of the System, the Manual(s), or any standard will be
promptly communicated to You.

You must comply with Our specifications for brands and types of equipment used in Your
Franchised Business. If You propose to purchase any items for use in Your Franchised Business from
an unapproved source for which We have identified, designated, or approved supplier(s), You must
request Our approval, pay any required fees and associated incurred costs. We may require, as a
condition of granting approval that Our representative(s) be permitted to inspect the supplier’s facilities,
and that information, specifications, and samples as We reasonably request be delivered to Us for testing.
We will notify You initially within one hundred and twenty (120) days of Your request as to whether
We approve the supplier or product to begin testing with. If no final approval (after testing, if required),
is received within one hundred and twenty (120) weeks, It is deemed denied. Upon written acceptance
and approval by Us of services or products and suppliers submitted for inclusion on the Approved
Suppliers List and Approved Supplies List, You will be free to purchase such service or product from
such approved supplier. We may revise Our Approved Supplier and Approved Supplies List.

We apply the following general criteria in designating a proposed supplier as an approved
source:

Ability to provide the service or product to Our quality specifications;
Production and delivery capability;

Minimum standards for safety;

Integrity of the supplier; and

Legality of the product or company; and

Meet our cost determination process.

ogkrowhdE
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Currently, We are not a designated or approved supplier for any products or service nor do We
receive benefits from any approved suppliers.

Neither You nor any person affiliated with Us will or may derive revenues as a result of required
purchases or leases by You. You will not receive from Us material benefits from Your use of designated
vendors, products or approved sources, other than the negotiated purchase agreements disclosed to You
in the Manual(s).

We estimate that the cost of required equipment and supplies purchased in accordance with Our
specifications will represent (a) 7% of Your total purchases and leases in establishing the business and
(b) 6% of Your total purchases and leases during operation of the business.

Insurance

You must obtain and maintain insurance, at Your expense, with policy limits as required by Us,
applicable law, Your landlord, and lender or otherwise. The policies must be written by an insurance
company reasonably satisfactory to Us with an A.M. Bests Key Rating Guide rating of “A-" or better
and include the risks, amount of coverage and deductibles as stated below. We reserve the right to
increase the minimum insurance requirements.

a) “all risk” property insurance, including business interruption insurance,
customarily obtained by similar businesses in Franchisees general area to cover, at a minimum,
all assets including inventory, furniture, fixtures, equipment, supplies and other property used
in the operation of the Teapioca Franchised Business;

b) General commercial liability insurance, including Cyber Liability coverage, in
an amount of not less than $2,000,000.00 per occurrence with a $2,000,000.00 general
aggregate;

C) Comprehensive general liability insurance, including products and contractual,

in an amount of not less than $100,000.00 per occurrence with a $300,000.00 general aggregate;

d) Workers’ compensation insurance for statutory limits and employer’s liability
insurance in an amount not less than $300,000.00;

e) Sexual/physical abuse insurance of not less than $100,000.00 per occurrence
with a $300,000.00 general aggregate;

f) An umbrella policy in amount of not less than $2,000,000.00;

Q) Automobile liability coverage, including coverage of owned, non-owned and
hired vehicles with coverage in amounts not less than $100,000.00 combined single limit.

h) You must name and maintain Us as “an additional insured” on all insurance
policies. You must also provide annual copies to Us at time of renewals.

Bookkeeping and Records

You will establish and maintain a bookkeeping, accounting and record keeping system
conforming to Our requirements, as may be periodically revised. You will submit periodic reports, forms
and records as specified in the Ongoing Franchise Agreement or the Manual(s) or otherwise.
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Benefits to System from Approved Suppliers

In 2022 as well as, currently Teapioca neither received nor derived revenue, rebates or other
material consideration based upon required purchases or leases from any of its approved suppliers. For
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022. Our revenues from Franchisees’ required purchases or leases
were $0.00, or 0% of Our total revenues of $1,11,200.79. Required purchases or leases are estimated to
make up 0% of a Franchisee’s total initial investment and 0% of a Franchisee’s annual operating
expenses. Teapioca may negotiate purchase arrangements for all Franchisees with various suppliers, for
the mutual benefit of all Franchisees, which may include price terms. Teapioca does not provide material
benefits of any kind to You based on Your use of designated or approved sources.

We currently are in negotiations with several suppliers for discounted rates for products,
furniture and fixtures which will have a positive benefit to You. Our intent is to continue this practice
whenever possible. We do not currently have in place any purchasing or distribution cooperatives;
however, We reserve the right to implement them in the future if they will provide a benefit to You.
Approval of any purchasing or distribution cooperatives will be by a majority vote of all Franchisees

currently in the system at that time.

ITEM 9.

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists Your principal obligations under the Ongoing Franchise Agreement and
other agreements. It will help You find more detailed information about Your obligations in these
agreements and in other ITEMS of this Disclosure Document.

Section In the
Obligation Ongoing Franchise ITEM In the
Agreement (FA) and Disclosure
Development Agreement Document
(DA)
a. Site selection and FA: Article 5 DA: Article 4 ITEMS 11 and 12
acquisition/lease
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases FA: Articles 5, 12 and 15 ITEMS 7,8 and 11
DA: None
C. Site development and other FA: Articles 5and 8 ITEMS 7,8 and 11
pre-opening requirements DA: Article 4, Exhibit |
d. Initial and ongoing training FA: Article 8 ITEMS 6, 7and 11
DA: None
e. Opening ITEM 11
FA: Articles 5, 8 and 13
DA: Article 4, Exhibit |
f. Fees FA: Articles 3, 5, 8, 10, 11, 12, ITEMS 5, 6, 7 and
13, 15, 18 and 21 11
DA: Article 3
g. Compliance with standards FA: Articles 5, 6, 7, 9, 10, 11, ITEMS 8 and 16
and policies/Operating 12,13 and 15
Manual DA: Article 6
h. Trademarks and proprietary FA: Articles 6, 7 and 9, Exhibit ITEMS 13 and 14
information 6
DA: Article 6
i. Restrictions on FA: Articles 5, 6, 7, 10 and 13 ITEMS 8 and 16
products/services offered DA: Article 2
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Section In the

Obligation Ongoing Franchise ITEM In the

Agreement (FA) and Disclosure
Development Agreement Document
(DA)

Warranty and customer FA: Article 13 ITEM 16

service requirements DA: None

Territorial development and FA: Article 2 ITEM 12

sales quotas DA: Atrticle 4, Exhibit |

Ongoing product/service FA: Article 13 ITEMS 8 and 11

purchases DA: None

Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

FA: Articles 5, 10 and 13
DA: None

ITEM 6

Insurance FA: Article 15 ITEMS 6, 7 and 8
DA: None
Advertising FA: Articles 3 and 11 ITEMS 6, 7and 11
DA: None
Indemnification FA: Article 21 ITEM 6
DA: Article 11
Owner’s participation/ FA: Articles 8 and 13 ITEM 15
management/ staffing DA: Article 4
Records and reports FA: Articles 6 and 12 ITEM 11
DA: None
Inspections and audits FA: Articles 6, 12 and 16 ITEMS 6, 11 and 13
DA: Article 4
Transfer FA: Articles 16 and 18 ITEM 17
DA: Article 7
Renewal FA: Articles 4 and 16 ITEM 17
DA: None
Post-termination obligations FA: Article 17 ITEM 17
DA: Article 9
Non-competition covenants FA: Articles 7, 17 and Exhibit ITEM 17
2
DA: Article 9
Dispute resolution FA: Article 23 ITEM 17
DA: Article 13

ITEM 10.

FINANCING

We are not required to offer You any Financing Options. We have decided at this time
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financing for Your franchise, such as assisting You in the required SBA Addendum if You go with an
SBA Loan program.
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ITEM 11. FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER
SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, We are not required to provide You with any assistance.

A. Our Pre-Opening Obligations

Before You open Your Business, We will:

1. Grant access to the Business Establishment Training Course. This training is
described in detail later in this ITEM;

2. Grant access to the Site Selection and Real Estate Training Course. This
training is described in detail later in this ITEM,;

Note: The rest of this Item, except for the discussion of the Training Courses and their
applicable Manual(s), is only applicable if You apply to become and are awarded a Teapioca
Franchised Business.

Upon signing the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, We will provide the following:

3. designate Your Territory, as further described in ITEM 12; (Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, Section 2.5 and 5.1)

4, if You are a Developer, designate Your Development Territory, based upon the
then-current site criteria, as further described in ITEM 12; (Development Agreement, Section 2.1 and
Exhibit I)

5. coordinate with You and Our then current approved Commercial Broker, CCIM
/ Vendor to assist You in locating an appropriate location for Your business and negotiating Your
commercial lease according to Our requirements, which include protective provisions for You.
However, You are solely responsible for locating and obtaining sites for Your Franchised Businesses in
Your Development Territory that are acceptable to Us. We must approve or deny the proposed sites
within thirty (30) days or the site will be deemed approved; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section
5.3)

6. if You are a Developer, You must locate each of Your Franchised Businesses
in the Development Territory, and for each, You must propose the specific sites for Our consideration
according to the process above. You are solely responsible for locating and obtaining sites for Your
Franchised Businesses in Your Development Territory that meet Our standards and criteria and that are
acceptable to Us, We will assist You in finding a suitable site; (Development Agreement, Sections 2.1
and 4.3)

7. review and approve Your lease or purchase agreement for the site for the
Approved Location, including if applicable, discussions and assistance in obtaining the required Lease
Rider for Your location; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 5.3)

8. provide You with a standard overview for the build-out, such as sample floor
plans of the Franchised Business, if necessary, along with a list of suggested equipment that You might
choose to purchase or lease and install; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 5.4)

9. provide You with assistance with procuring equipment, signs, fixtures, opening
inventory, and supplies. We will either provide it to You directly or provide a list of approved suppliers
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with written specifications in the Manual(s). We do not install any items; (Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, Sections 8.2 and 13.1)

10. provide the Site Selection and Real Estate Training and Business Establishment
training programs. This training is described in detail later in this ITEM; (Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, Section 8.1)

11. provide to You on-site assistance in presentations with customers within the
Franchised Business Territory; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 8.2);

12. provide to You, on loan, one (1) copy of the Teapioca Ongoing Operations
Manual(s), either in electronic or paper form. The Table of Contents of the Operations Manual(s), along
with the number of pages devoted to each section, is described in detail later in this ITEM; (Ongoing
Franchise Agreement, Section 9.1)

B. Typical Length of Time Between the Signing of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement and
Beginning Operation

We estimate that the typical length of time between the signing of the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement and the Opening of a Teapioca Franchised Business to be between 250-270 days
for leased property, Factors that may affect Your beginning operations include Your completion of the
training package requirements, ability to secure travel arrangements to training, financing, compliance
with local ordinances, available training seats when signing, general contractors abilities and timelines,
weather conditions and delays in setup or installation of computers, software, equipment and fixtures.
You are required to open Your Franchised Business and be operational with Your Soft Opening within
250 days, if a leased location, or 270 days if building a location, after signing the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, unless waived in writing. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 5.6 and Section 16.2)

C. Other Assistance During the Operation of The Teapioca Lounge® Franchised Business

After the opening of the Teapioca Lounge® Franchised Business, We will:

1. periodically, no less than quarterly, advise and offer general guidance to You
by telephone, e-mail, webinars, facsimile, newsletters or other methods. Any guidance provided will be
based on Our, Our Affiliates’ (if applicable), Suppliers and Our other Franchisees’ experience in
operating Teapioca Businesses. Such advice and guidance may consist of knowledge and experience
relating to the authorized services or products, assistance in obtaining consumers, communication of
new developments, improvements or additions, software, equipment and supplies, as well as operational
methods, accounting procedures, marketing and sales strategies; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement,
Section 14.1)

2. make periodic visits to the Franchised Business to assist and guide You in
various aspects of the operation and management of the Franchised Business, as We see fit. We may
prepare written reports outlining any suggested changes or improvements in the operations of the
Franchised Business and detail any deficiencies that become evident as a result of any such visit. If We
prepare a report, You will be provided with a copy; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 14.2)

3. communicate directly with the consumer, marketing, employees or independent
contractor(s), or other person or entity not the Franchisee, to provide assistance before, during, or after
the initial sale at the rates published in the Manual(s), payable weekly by ACH Deposit, by Wednesday
of the week following the support; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Sections 8.6 and 14.1)
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4. make available to You changes and additions to the System as generally made
available to all Franchisees; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 10.2 and 14.3)

5. periodically, provide advertising and promotional materials including ad-slicks,
brochures, fliers, and other materials for Your use or purchase; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section
14.4)

6. approve forms of advertising materials You will use for Local Advertising,
Opening Advertising and any optional Advertising; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Sections 11.1,
11.3,11.4and 11.5)

7. maintain Our websites located at www. Teapiocal.ounge.com and continue to
promote Teapioca Businesses through the Internet. We will prepare and maintain an interior page to Our
site promoting or giving information about Your Franchised Business; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement,
Section 11.4)

8. maintain Our Social Media sites and applications such as: Twitter, Facebook,
LinkedIn and other sites and applications that We may establish. We do not allow You to establish or
utilize Social Media sites or applications for business purposes except those created by Us for Your use.
Further, any representations from You, or Your employees regarding Your profits or earnings made on
any Social Media site or application, even if made from a personal Social Media account, is deemed a
breach of Confidential Information under the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, and You will be
responsible for all costs including legal costs for any required fines or legal actions as a result of Your
postings; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 11.4)

9. provide You with modifications to the Manual(s) as they are made available to
Franchisees; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 9.2)

10. provide You with modifications to the security and camera system procedures
as needed; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 9.2);

11. provide You administrative bookkeeping and accounting control procedures as
needed; (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Sections 12.3 and 12.4) and

12. will treat all Franchisees equal. All services and support will be on a first come
first served basis. You will enjoy a "favorite Franchisee" provision with Us. Large or multi-unit owners
will not receive any special treatment by Us over single unit Franchisees. If We create or roll out new
system programs, services, or benefits, they will be immediately applicable to You and all other
Franchisees in the Teapioca System, after completion of a beta test market program, if applicable. All
Ongoing Franchise Agreements will contain this same provision. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement,
Sections 10.1)

D. Advertising and Promotion

1. All advertising and promotions must be approved in writing by Us in advance.
We have 14 days to approve the submission. If We do not approve the advertising or promotions You
submit within 14 day(s), they are deemed denied and You may not use them.

During every one (1) month period after the Franchised Business opens, You must

spend at least One Thousand and Fifty-One Dollars ($1,051.00) on local advertising in an effort to assist
You to meet or maintain the minimum sales requirements.
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You may choose to spend whatever amount You determine best; however, at no time
may You spend less than the required amount towards Your local advertising budget (“Local
Advertising”).

On the first Wednesday of each month after the Franchised Business opens, You will
furnish to Us an accurate accounting of the expenditures and which ads were utilized on Local
Advertising done for the preceding one month period. Marketing methods utilized may include but not
be limited to those contained within the Manual(s), and approved advertising materials such as
Newspaper ads, Direct Mail, Coupon Direct Mail CoOps, Print Media and Business to Business
marketing efforts within Franchisees Exclusive Territory, and non-monetary sponsorships within the
community or gifts to select Customers in the community, such as military, police, firemen, or other
service people. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 11.1 and 12.5)

2. National / Regional Advertising

We have developed a Territory-wide Business Branding Fund that You will be required
to contribute to. We have set the exact percentage that means paying weekly to Us two percent (2%) or
one percent (1%) of Gross Sales. To qualify for the lower branding fee Your Gross Sales must reach
Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) during any fiscal year (January 1 through December 31).
Once You have qualified for the lower fee You keep it. For the purposes of this section Your first week
counted will be the week of Your Grand Opening. We may adjust the percentage with thirty (30) days
advance notice to You; but it can never be raised more than One percent (1%) per year. (Ongoing
Franchise Agreement, Section 11.2) We will administer the Business Branding Fund as follows:

We do not require Business Branding Funds to be used in cooperative advertising
however, a cooperative may determine its members’ required contributions, if one is created by its
members. We reserve the right to raise the National Business Branding Fund fee if needed. You will
have at minimum thirty (30) days’ notice of the change.

@) We will control the creative concepts and the materials and media to
be used, and We will determine the placement and allocation of advertisements. We may use print,
television, radio, Internet or other media for advertisements and promotions;

(b) We may use Your contributions to meet or reimburse Us for any cost
of producing, maintaining, administering (including costs of personnel), directing and conducting
research and advertising (including the cost of preparing and conducting television, radio, billboard,
Internet, video, video-streaming, digital signage, audio, magazine, newspaper and direct mail
advertising campaigns, conventions and other public relations activities; developing and/or hosting an
Internet web page of similar activities; employing advertising or public relations agencies to assist
therein; and providing promotional brochures and other marketing materials to Franchisees). We
initially plan to conduct all advertising in-house, or We may use a national or regional marketing agency.
We will maintain Your contributions in a separate account from Our other funds and We will not use
them for any of Our general operating expenses, except for Our reasonable administrative costs and
overhead related to the administration of the Business Branding Fund,;

(c) We expect to use all contributions in the fiscal year they are made. We
will use any interest or other earnings of the Business Branding Fund before We use current
contributions. We intend for the Business Branding Fund to be perpetual, but We have the right to
terminate it if necessary. We will not terminate the Business Branding Fund until all contributions and
earnings have been used for advertising and promotional purposes or have been returned to Our
Franchisees on a pro rata basis. Any funds not used in a particular fiscal year will rollover to the next
fiscal year for use;
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(d) All Teapioca Businesses owned by Us will make similar contributions
to the Business Branding Fund as required of Franchisees;

(e) We will have an accounting of the Business Branding Fund prepared
each year and We will provide You with a copy if You request it. It is Our intention to provide a copy
each year at the annual convention and training seminar, discussed later in this Item. We may require
that the annual accounting be audited by an independent certified public accountant at the Business
Branding Fund’s expense;

4] The Business Branding Fund is not a trust and We assume no fiduciary
duty in administering the Business Branding Fund; and

(9) We anticipate that the percentages of use for the Business
Branding Fund will be 30% spent toward media and advertising production, 65% media
placement on a national or regional basis, and around 5% of the Business Branding Fund for
administrative expenses, and follow-through.

3. Advertising Cooperative

Although We are not obligated to do so, upon certain conditions as listed in the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement, We allow You to create a Cooperative Advertising program for the benefit of all
Teapioca Businesses located in a particular region, including any non-voting Franchisor owned unit(s)
in the region. You may participate in any Cooperative Advertising program established in Your region.
If Cooperative Advertising is implemented in a particular region, You must participate in the
Cooperative until its renewal period. You may establish an advertising council for Franchisees in that
region to self-administer the program. We do have the power to require Cooperative Advertising
programs to be created, but not dissolved or merged. We will require each Cooperative Advertising
program to prepare periodic financial statements which are available for Your review which will
delineate the amount each Franchisee will be required to contribute, which must be based upon a per
location division, of a pro-rated portion of Gross Sales for the last three months split between all
Franchisees in the program, and specifically not based on a per company / owner division. (Ongoing
Franchise Agreement, Section 11.3)

4, Grand Opening

During Your Opening, You must spend at least Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) on
Grand Opening, including print or news media or direct mail advertising, dues for business
organizations, event dues or other solicitation and promotional efforts. We will provide You with
guidance for conducting Opening Advertising, and We will review and approve the materials You use
in Your Opening Advertising. “Opening” includes thirty (30) days prior to opening Your Franchised
Business through sixty (60) days after opening Your Franchised Business to the public. (Ongoing
Franchise Agreement, Section 8.2 and 11.1)

5. Listing Your Business

You must list the telephone number for the Franchised Business in Your local telephone
white pages directory. If You choose to advertise Your Franchised Business in the “yellow pages” it
must be in the category that We specify. You must place the listings together with other Teapioca
Businesses operating within the distribution area of the directories. You must also list Your business in
or on Google Places, Facebook Ads, Print Ads, Radio Ads, and Bing and Google Adwords. All online
or Internet based requirements will be completed by Our Marketing agency, You will be responsible for
the costs associated with this online requirement. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 11.5)
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E. Computer/Software/Phone System

You must purchase, for use in Your Franchised Business, the computer systems, equipment,
and systems We require as stated below, or as may be later modified in the Manual(s). You must acquire,
install, and maintain all items that We require, which may change from time to time, within thirty (30)
days of written notice. The average cost for purchasing or leasing all of the POS systems (point of sale)
needed will be approximately Eight hundred Dollars $800.00. The annual costs incurred by You for the
optional or required maintenance updating, upgrading or support contracts for all of the computer
systems range from $135.00 to $1,374.00 depending upon the number of licenses You have. (Ongoing
Franchise Agreement, Section 12.6)

You must purchase, for use in Your Franchised Business at least one computer (placement will
be discussed in the Manual(s)) with the specified software installed on them. We may require that You
add additional, new or substitute software, replace or upgrade Your computer systems and equipment,
and enter into maintenance agreements with third parties. You must acquire, install, and maintain all
required anti-virus and anti-spyware software as designated by Us in addition to any email or Internet
usage policies that We require within thirty (30) days of written notice. You are solely responsible for
updating the manufacturer’s software on each device and ensuring that each device is not running old
versions of the software. The type of data that will be stored in this computer system will be the point
of sale, and accounting data; as well as, word processing documents and others You choose to install.
We anticipate Your computer expense will be between $600 - $1,200. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement,
Section 12.6)

There is currently only one approved point of sale system that You will use that satisfies Our
requirements. You must purchase the approved system through Our approved supplier. You must
purchase and install Linga POS software, Teapioca version which will include the software and
hardware required to operate Your Franchised Business.

Presently, We require You to have QuickBooks accounting system. Teapioca has obtained a
multi-user franchising direct agreement with Intuit, manufacture of QuickBooks, which You may
purchase through Teapioca, at the specially prepared website for Teapioca Franchisees. You will be
responsible for any upgrades or updates to the system thereafter. Although We do not set the pricing,
the manufacturer does. Currently the pricing for QuickBooks is $65.00 per month for the online version.
We will have access to the accounting system through QuickBooks remote access to validate the revenue
for royalties. If You decide to use a third party accounting firm, We must have access to the QuickBooks
accounting system to validate the revenue for royalties. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement Section 3.7 and
12.6)

There is currently only one approved phone system that You will use that satisfies Our
requirements. You must purchase the approved system through Our Approved Supplier/Vendor. We
reserve the right to act as the collection agent for the phone system, and collect fees You owe. You must
purchase and use only the authorized phone to operate Your Franchised Business. We estimate that the
Teapioca initial phone system will cost approximately $49.00 plus a monthly ongoing fee of $49 per
month, per location depending upon how many phones or phone lines You want.

We have the right to independently access all information collected or compiled by or in
accordance with Your use of the software, surveillance cameras, or electronic components at any time
without first notifying You. You must update or upgrade computer hardware or software as We deem
necessary. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Sections 12.6, and 12.7)
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F. E-Problem Disclaimer

Computer systems are vulnerable in varying degrees to computer viruses, bugs, power
disruptions, communication line disruptions, Internet access failures, Internet content failures and
similar problems, and attacks by hackers and other unauthorized intruders (“E-Problems”). We have
taken reasonable steps so that E-Problems will not materially affect Our business. We do not guarantee
that information or communication systems that We or others supply will not be vulnerable to E-
Problems. It is Your responsibility to protect yourself from E-Problems. You should also take reasonable
steps to verify that Your suppliers, third-party vendors, lenders, landlords, and governmental agencies
on which You rely, have reasonable protection from E-Problems. This may include taking reasonable
steps to secure Your systems (including firewalls, password protection and anti-virus systems) and to
provide backup systems. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 12.6)

G. Manual(s)

Business Establishment Training Course Manual(s)

We will provide You with a Business Establishment Training Manual. The Table of Contents
for the Manual(s), as of the date of this Disclosure Document is as follows:

BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT COURSE MANUAL Page Count

1) Creating the Company 3

a) Types of Companies

i) Sole Proprietorship

ii) Partnerships (LP, LLP, LLLP)

iii) Limited Liability Company (Manager, Member and Series)

iv) Corporation (C-Corp and S-Corp)

b) Operating Agreement

C) Partnership Agreement

d) Business Trust

e) Succession Planning

2) Banking and credit cards 7

a) What type of accounts to open

b) Credit Card types

c) Options for processing

d) Understanding Credit card processors

3) Utilities and Services

4) Licenses and permits

a) Typical licenses required

b) Direction to check local requirements regarding codes, zoning, etc.

5) Signs 2

a) Requirements

b) Approval process

6) Your Tax Obligations 3

a) How to get a Federal Tax ID number, etc.

b) What to use the Tax ID number for

C) Federal Taxes

d) State Taxes
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7) Insurance

a) Types of coverage

i) Specifics of coverage required

b) Insurance company rating requirements

8) General contractors

i) How to select a general contractor

i) How to work with any sub- contractors

iii) Liens and lien releases — how they function

9) Equipment and supplies

26

i) Types of Vendors information

i) Types of equipment and supplies

iii) Vendor Agreements

(1) Common clauses

(2) Returns

(3) Shipping terms

10) Furnishings and design

a) Architects

b) Types of typical layouts for Your industry

i) Front of House

ii) Back of House

iii) Office areas

¢) Design specs such as paint, finishes and flooring

11) Professionals needed

a) Accounting

i) Accounting Files setup

i) Accounting software choices

iii) Accounting Chart of Accounts for Your industry

b) Bookkeeper

i) What reports to provide

i) What reports should You receive

iii) How to ensure compliance

iv) State taxes

V) Federal Taxes

c) CPA

d) Insurance Agent

e) Attorney

12) POS Systems

14

a) Whatisit

b) What options are available

C) What reports should it provide

d) What 3" party providers should it work with

13) Emergency Practices

a) Security

b) Theft

€) Natural Disasters (fire, earthquake, tornado, hurricane)
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d) Family emergencies for employees

14) Policies

a) Privacy policy

b) Data Security policy

€) Credit Card policies

d) Opening and Closing policies

e) Money Handling policies

15) Human Resources

73

a) Locating potential employees

b) Interviewing

C) Hiring

d) Wage & Hour

€) Reporting

f) Taxes

g) Handling Garnishments

h) Handling Write-ups

16) Customer Service

52

a) Finding the Customer

b) Marketing to the Customer

C) Creating Culture

d) Greeting the customer

e) Concluding the Sale policy

f) Return policies

g) After Sale Marketing

TOTAL PAGES

211

Site Selection and Real Estate Training Manual(s)

We will provide You with a Site Selection and Real Estate Training Manual. The Table of
Contents for the Teapioca Lounge® Site Manual(s), as of the date of this Disclosure Document is as

follows:
SITE MANUAL Page Count
1) Types of locations 3
a) Site selection criteria
i) Recommendations about the best sites
b) User Needs — Considerations
i) Size
ii) Location
iii) Term length
iv) Zoning
V) Where customers (going home or to work side, medians, etc.)
vi) Demographics
vii) Traffic counts
viii)  Brand image
iX) Competition (Who’s near? Who’s missing?)
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X) Parking (can KILL a retail business)

Xi) Hours of operation

Xii) When needed to open (the process takes time-plan ahead)

c) Site approval process

i) Process for sites

i) Any requirements for locations

2) Steps and Terms of the Lease 2

a) RFPvs LOI

b) Letter of Intent

C) Lease TI’s

d) Common Areas

3) Types of leases 1

a) Single Net

b) Double Net

C) Triple Net

d) Gross

e) Modified Gross

f) Modified Gross CAMs

4) Finding a Real Estate Professional 2

a) Residential Real Estate

b) Commercial Real Estate

C) Investment Real Estate

d) cCiMm

5) Marketing Analytics & Research 2
a) Chamber of Commerce
b) ESRI

6) Obtaining site data 2

a) Your Commercial Real Estate Agent

b) Landlord Commercial Real Estate Agent

C) Warnings regarding Landlord For Lease signs

7)  Uncovering special needs for Your industry

8) Evaluating Competitors

9) Locating Your Business 29

a) Utilizing the industry Site selection criteria

b) Site approval process

i) Process for sites and lease approval

il) Building out the FFE aspects into Your TI’s

c) Negotiating a Lease

d) Timelines

TOTAL PAGES 45

Ongoing Franchise Operations Manual(s)

We will loan to You, during the term of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, one (1) copy of the
Set of Manuals containing reasonable and mandatory specifications, standards, operating procedures
and rules prescribed by Us for Teapioca Businesses and information relative to Your other obligations
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and the operation of a Teapioca Lounge® Franchised Business. You must maintain a current, updated
copy of the set of Manuals. If there are any disputes over the contents of the Manual(s), the terms of the
master copy maintained at Our headquarters will control. Our interpretations of the provisions of the
Manuals are controlling, and You must abide by Our interpretations. We will have the right to
periodically add to and otherwise modify the Manuals to reflect changes in the specifications, standards,
operating procedures and rules required by Us for Teapioca Businesses, provided no addition or
modification will materially change Your fundamental status and rights under the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement or require You to spend unreasonable additional capital investment. (Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, Article 9)

The Table of Contents for the Teapioca Lounge® Operations Manuals, as of the date of this
Disclosure Document are as follows:

Teapioca Lounge Operations Manual Chapters:

1. Building your Business (56 pages) 56
2. Staffing (85 pages) 85
3. Store Operations (78 pages) 78
4, Sales, Marketing & Customer Service (25 pages) 25
5. Technology (74 pages) 74
6. Accounting (23 pages) 23
TOTAL PAGES 341

H. Training

You will complete four (4) levels of training, a Pre-Training; the Initial Training; the Soft
Opening Training which shall be completed prior to opening to the general public; and the Grand
Opening Program. You must complete the Business Establishment training Program, which is an
approximate fifty-nine (59) hours of training, prior to attending the Site Selection and Real Estate
Training Program of approximately thirty-three (33) hours of training. You will then complete the
Teapioca Initial Ongoing Franchise Agreement Training of twenty-one (21) days, two to three (2-3)
day(s) for Pre-Soft Opening Assistance, one (1) day of Soft Opening, followed by one to two (1-2) day
of the Grand Opening component. We will discuss each training in greater detail below.

Initial Teapioca Training Program

Upon approval and confirmation that You have successfully completed the Business
Establishment Training and the Site Selection and Real Estate Training Course programs, We will send
You the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, and will conduct the Ongoing Franchise Agreement Training
program(s), either online or in person at Our option, of approximately twenty-one (21) calendar day(s),
that the Franchisee (which is You, if You are not a corporation or other business entity), and all
Manager(s), must attend and complete to Our satisfaction. Although under the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement training is mandatory, You may bring additional trainees. Each additional trainee will be
charged Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per day, or Ten Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($10,500.00)
for the full twenty-one (21) calendar day(s) of training. Training will take place at Our appointed
location, online, or at another location or locations We designate. The Ongoing Franchise Agreement
training program covers all material aspects of the operation of a Teapioca Business, including such
topics as: the management of Your TPL Business, the creation and presentation of the TPL products,
the POS system, staffing, cleaning, and other considerations. All Trainees must complete the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement training to Our satisfaction. We expect Franchisees will advance through the
training program at different rates depending on a variety of factors such as background and experience.
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Accordingly, the time frames provided in the following chart are an estimate of the time it will take to
complete training.

If You replace Your Manager, Your new Manager must attend Our Ongoing Franchise
Agreement training program. Although We do not charge for the initial Ongoing Franchise Agreement
training, You must pay the fee described in Item 6 for new attendees. Additionally, You must pay for
all travel costs and living expenses for all Your attendees. You are responsible for training Your other
employees and other management personnel. This Ongoing Franchise Agreement training is in addition
to the on-the-job assistance We provide to You. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Article 8)

Pre-Opening / Soft Opening Training

After Ongoing Franchise Agreement training, You will register for the onsite Pre-Soft Opening
Assistance. This consists of one (1) eight hour(s) (8 hour days at minimum) of onsite Pre-Soft Opening
training for You and Your Staff, which shall ensure that all materials, equipment, preparations and staff
are prepared for Soft Opening. Upon the completion of the Pre-Soft Opening training, We and You shall
Open the Teapioca Business to the Soft Opening invitees. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement 8.1)

Grand Opening Training

The Onsite Grand Opening consists of one work day of Our presence in association with Your
Grand Opening. Immediately prior to the Grand Opening date, We shall provide one (1) to two (2), eight
(8) hour days of Pre-Grand Opening training assistance, which shall ensure that all materials, equipment,
and staff are prepared for Grand Opening. Upon the completion of the Pre-Grand Opening training, We
and You shall Open the Teapioca Business to the public. All travel, room, board, and expenses for Our
trainer is Your responsibility. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement 8.1)

You will be required to provide written and photographic proof, if requested by Us, of all Grand
Opening marketing and Local Advertising performed in connection with Your Grand Opening. The
proof shall be submitted to Us along with Your Monthly Gross Sales Report. (Ongoing Franchise
Agreement 8.2)

TRAINING PROGRAM(S)

Business and Establishment Training

Subject * Hrs. of Hours of Location /
Training! |On-the-job Instructor(s) ®
Training

Creating the Company Your Location
Banking and credit cards Your Location
Utilities and Services Your Location
Licenses and permits Your Location
Signs Your Location
Your Tax Obligations Your Location
Insurance Your Location

General contractors Your Location

Equipment and supplies Your Location

Furnishings and design Your Location

Professionals needed Your Location

GIWIWIARWINWIWINIWININ

Your Location

POS Systems
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Emergency Practices 5 Your Location

Policies 10 Your Location
Human Resources 5 Your Location
Customer Service 4 Your Location
Total Training Hours 59 0
Site and Leasing Training
Subject ! Hrs. of Hours of Location /
Training! |On-the-job Instructor(s) ®
Training
Types of locations and site criteria 1 0 Your Location
Steps and Terms of the Lease 2 0 Your Location
Types of leases 1 0 Your Location
Finding a Real Estate Professional 2 0 Your Location
Marketing Analytics & Research 12 0 Your Location
Obtaining site data 2 0 Your Location
Uncovering special needs for Your industry 1 0 Your Location
Evaluating Competitors 10 0 Your Location
Locating Your Business 2 0 Your Location
Total Training Hours 33 0

Ongoing Operations Training

1 Training classes are held quarterly, or on an as needed basis.

2 Length of time spent on a subject and nature of subjects taught may vary depending upon
an individual’s experience and ability.

3 Training may not be necessary for the full timeframe. The number of hours listed in this
section also include hours spent training on site at the Franchisee’s Business.

Training may be provided by Bao Phan, Johnson Wu, Kevin Ho, as well as other members of
Our or an Affiliates current staff. The above listed persons’ qualifications are included in Item 2. No
trainer will have less experience than what We require You to have prior to opening. (Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, Section 8.1)

If circumstances require, a substitute trainer may provide training. We also reserve the right to
name additional trainers periodically. There are no limits on Our right to assign a substitute to provide
training. We may use Your location as a training facility upon notice. If We elect to use Your Franchised
Business for training others, We will provide to You, instead of paying You, which is to be considered
payment in full, for use of the facilities, the ability for You to enroll Your employees or contractors into
the training class being taught by Us free of all charges. There is no limit on the number of times during
the Ongoing Franchise Agreement that We can use Your Franchised Business as a training facility.
(Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 8.1)

Refresher Training

Periodically, We may require the previously trained and experienced Manager, Your other
managers and/or employees to attend refresher-training programs to be conducted at Our headquarters
or other locations We designate. Attendance at these programs will be mandatory. The cost for these
© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023 31-FDD



programs will be at Your expense; however, We will not require You to attend more than one of these
programs in any calendar year and these programs will not collectively exceed three days during any
calendar year not including any annual convention that is held by Us. You will be responsible for all
travel costs, room and board and employees’ salaries incurred in connection with You, Your Manager,
and/or Your employees’ attendance at such training. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 8.5)

Ongoing and Special Assistance

We will provide You with Ongoing Assistance as You request and/or We deem necessary.
However, if You need Special Assistance, or if We must deal directly with the Your Customers, Your
vendors or others directed by You, You will pay the Additional Assistance fee equal to the then-current
daily rate as set forth in the Manual(s), payable by ACH Withdrawal, Wednesday of the week following
the support overage. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 8.6)

Additional Training

From time to time, We may provide additional training. If We provide additional training, We
have the right to require that You, Your Manager, and/or Your employees’ attend additional training
programs. We charge Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per day for additional training at Our facility.
(Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 8.7)

Temporary Management

Following the death or incapacity of You or an owner of Your Franchised Business, We may assume
operation of Your Franchised Business until the deceased or incapacitated owner’s interest is transferred
to a third-party approved by Us, up to a maximum of sixty (60) days. We shall charge a temporary
management fee, currently two percent (2%) of the Gross Sales daily, plus Five Hundred Dollars
($500.00) during the time We are operating Your Franchised Business and We will also be entitled to
reimbursement of any expenses We incur that are not paid out of the operating cash flow of Your
Franchised Business. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 8.8)

Additional Operations Assistance

Upon Your request, and with Our approval, We may provide You with Additional Operations
Assistance for Your benefit. This will be for no longer than sixty (60) days or the maximum time stated
in the Manual(s). You will be required to reimburse Us at Our daily rate, plus all per diem and actual
costs incurred by Us in providing You such assistance, including reimbursement of Our replacement
personnel at Our location, as stated in the Manual(s), currently the daily rate is per eight (8) hour day,
Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) plus Franchisor’s expenses, while providing You with the assistance
You requested. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 8.9)

National or Regional Meetings

We provide annual training at the National or Regional Convention. We charge a fee of One
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00) to provide all entrance fee costs for up to two people. Your
attendance is mandatory. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 8.10)

ITEM 12. TERRITORY
We will grant You an Exclusive Territory that will be delineated by a specific geographic

boundary. The Territory will be at least 1-mile radius around Your Teapioca Business.
("Territory™)
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We will also consider market considerations, and established other Teapioca Lounge Business
and competitors; lease requirements; proximity to at least 1 mall, movie theater, office park, sports
complex, college/university, or similar business destination that attracts large amounts of potential
customers on a regular basis as determined by Us in Our sole discretion to establish Your Territory.
Upon entering into a lease, which has been approved by Us with all applicable lease rider provisions
We require, for the location of Your Teapioca Business, a written description of Your Territory will be
provided to You and will be inserted into the Ongoing Franchise Agreement either prior to signing or
as an addendum, depending upon the timing of the selection. We will approve additional units developed
under Your Area Development Agreement using Our then-current site selection criteria.

You may not solicit orders from consumers outside Your Territory. You also have no right to
use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing or other direct
marketing to make sales outside of Your Territory.

You will not have a First Right of Refusal to obtain or acquire additional franchise territories
that are contiguous with Your Territory.

If You are in compliance with the Ongoing Franchise Agreement during its term, We will not
establish more Teapioca Businesses or any substantially similar franchised or company-owned
businesses in Your Territory, except those covered under Our Reservation of Rights Below.

Reservation of Rights

We have the right to: (a) establish, own or operate, or continue to own or operate, and license
others to establish, own or operate, or continue to own or operate Teapioca Businesses outside of the
Territory; (b) establish, own or operate, and license others to establish, own or operate, or continue to
own or operate, other businesses under other systems using other trademarks at locations inside or
outside of the Territory; (c) purchase or acquire the assets or controlling ownership of one or more
businesses identical or similar to the Franchised Business (and/or acquire franchise, license and/or
similar agreements for such businesses), some or all of which may be located anywhere, including within
the Territory; (d) be acquired by any business, even if the other business operates, franchises and/or
licenses Competitive Businesses within the Territory; (e) provide the services and sell any products
authorized for Teapioca Businesses using the Marks or other trademarks and commercial symbols
through alternate channels of distribution, such as joint marketing with partner companies, within Non-
Traditional locations and Internet sales and catalog sales, but We will not make any sales to Competitive
Businesses inside of the Territory; and/or (f) engage in any other activities not expressly prohibited in
the Ongoing Franchise Agreement. We will not pay You any compensation for soliciting or accepting
orders within the situations described above. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 2.6)

We and Our Affiliates, if applicable, will not operate and have no plans to operate or franchise
a business under a different trademark that will sell goods or services that are the same as or similar to
those You will sell.

Key Accounts

Notwithstanding the above, We may enter into agreements with certain “Key Accounts”, or
“National Accounts,” and permit other Franchisees (on terms and conditions more specifically described
in the Manuals) to enter into agreements with such Key Accounts that contemplate performance in Your
Territory of sales or parties, or other services or products. A Key Account means any (a) potential or
existing commercial customer that has multiple sites, offices, or retail premises, at least one of which is
located outside Your Territory, (b) any retail, manufacturing or wholesale company, contractor, or
similar business whose clientele or employees includes potential customers for regular services or
products or team building exercises, and (c) operators of websites (or similar referral sources) that offer
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to refer customers to Us and Our Franchisees for a fee. You are considered to have opted into all Key
Account agreements unless and until You expressly opt out, as stated in the Manual(s), of one or more
agreements that We present to You. If You choose to opt out with respect to any Key Account in Your
Territory, or if You fail to provide sales, or other services to a particular Key Account in the Territory
on any two (2) occasions in a twelve (12) month period, We may provide or grant others the right to
provide sales, or other services with respect to that particular Key Account in the Territory for the
remainder of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement term. There is no requirement that We compensate You
for soliciting or accepting these orders if You elect not to participate. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement
Section 2.8)

Minimum Performance Obligations

The continued right of Your Territory does depend on Your Gross Sales volume. You must
maintain at least Seventy Thousand Dollars ($70,000.00) in Gross Sales during the first quarter (3
months) you are in operation and achieve a fifteen percent (15%) growth increase over actual achieved
sales for the next each quarter for the first three (3) years You are in operation. We have the right to
increase the minimum requirements at any time with notice. If You do not maintain the minimum Gross
Sales standards it will be grounds for a Notice of Termination with ninety (90) days right to cure. We
cannot change the Territory without Your consent. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Sections 2.5 and 2.7)

Relocation

You may not relocate the Franchised Business without Our prior written consent. If the lease
for the Approved Location expires or terminates through no fault of Your own or if the Franchised
Business' premise is destroyed, condemned or otherwise rendered unusable or as otherwise may be
agreed upon in writing by both You and Us, We may allow You to relocate the Franchised Business. If
We do You will owe a Fifteen Hundred Dollars ($1,500) relocation evaluation fee payable to Us. Any
such relocation will be at Your sole expense, and must follow the requirements of Section 5.8 of the
Ongoing Franchise Agreement including all timeframes. There may need to be modifications by Us, to
reflect the new circumstances. We have the right to charge You for any costs incurred by Us in providing
assistance to You, including, legal and accounting fees. Otherwise, We have no obligation to provide
relocation assistance. If We do not approve of any relocation site, the Ongoing Franchise Agreement
and Territory would revert to Us. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement Section 5.8)

ITEM 13. TRADEMARKS

Reqistrations and Applications

We grant Our Franchisees the right to operate Teapioca Businesses under the name Teapioca
Lounge which is the principal Mark used to identify Our System. You may also use any other current
or future Mark to operate Your Franchised Business that We designate in writing, including the logo
on the front of this Disclosure Document and the trademarks listed below. By “Mark”, We mean any
trade name, trademark, service mark or logo used to identify Teapioca Businesses. As of the date of
this Disclosure Document, CHBN Holdings, LLC has filed the registration, and all required Affidavits
for the following Marks on the Principal Register of the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
(“USPTO”):

Mark International Registration Registration Date
Classification Number

TEAPIOCA LOUNGE 043 4,393,669 August 27, 2013

“COME FOR THE CONFECTIONS | 043 4,510,455 April 8, 2014

STAY FOR THE CONNECTIONS”

SNOWYN 030 4,528,933 May 13, 2014

CREAM BLAST 030 5,208,070 May 23, 2017

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023 34-FDD



GOLD

BoBA BURSTERS 030 5,258,937 August 8, 2017
FRAPPIOCA 030 5,062,363 October 18, 2016
BLASTEA 030 5,062,348 October 18, 2016
043 4,849,972 November 10, 2016
CIRCLE LOGO
BoBA BLOSSOM 030 5,469,554 May 15, 2018
BOBA MADNESS 030 5,468,315 October 2, 2017
035 6,046,655 May 5, 2020
009, 016, 025, 030,
032, 035, 043 88/419,826 May 7, 2019
016, 021, 024, 025,
030, 032, 035, 043 97/415,117 May 17, 2022
RED PANDA CIRCLE LOGO
WITH BROWN LIQUID
BOBA N CARS 009, 041 97/440, 919 June 2, 2022
MONSTERS VS. FRUIT
SHOOTERS 009, 041 97/444,970 June 6, 2022
BOBA ISLANDS: QUEST FOR | 319 41 97/440,103 June 2, 2022

CHBN Holdings, LLC, has granted Us a license to use and sublicense to use the above-
mentioned Marks, dated April 20, 2019. The term of the license is for ninety-nine (99) years. The license
agreement may be terminated if We take any affirmative act of insolvency, if a receiver or trustee is
appointed to take possession of Our properties and is not discharged within ninety (90) days, if We wind
up, sell, consolidate or merge Our business, or if We breach any of Our duties and obligations under the
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license and do not cure the breach within sixty (60) days following written notice of the breach. Within
the license agreement, the term “Marks” includes any other trade names, service marks, trademarks,
designs, logos, slogans and commercial symbols now in existence or later adopted by CHBN Holdings,
LLC that are used in connection with the System. This license agreement licensed to Us any future
trademarks acquired by CHBN Holdings, LLC as well. In the event that CHBN Holdings,
LLC terminates Our Agreement with them, they must honor all Franchisees sublicense agreements,
including the right to renew.

Proceedings
We know of no currently effective material determinations of the USPTO, trademark trial and

appeal board, the trademark administrator of this state or any court; pending infringement, opposition
or cancellation; or pending material litigation involving the Marks.

Agreements

Except as stated above, there are no agreements currently in effect that significantly limit Our
rights to use or to license the use of the Marks in any manner material to the franchise system.

Infringing Uses

We know of no infringing or prior superior uses that could materially affect the use of the Marks
in this state or any other state in which the Franchised Business is to be located.

Your Rights and Obligations with Respect to the Proprietary Property Including the
Proprietary Marks

All usage of the Marks by You and any goodwill established through Your use will exclusively
benefit Us. You will not receive any rights to the Marks other than the non-exclusive right to use them
in the operation of Your Franchised Business. You may only use the Marks in accordance with Our
standards, operating procedures, and specifications. Any unauthorized use of the Marks by You is a
breach of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement and an infringement of Our rights in the Marks. You may
not contest the validity or ownership of the Marks, including any Marks that We license to You after
You sign the Ongoing Franchise Agreement. You may not assist any other person in contesting the
validity or ownership of the Marks.

We will protect You against claims of infringement or unfair competition arising from Your use
of any Marks provided (a) You immediately notify Us of any apparent infringement of, or challenge or
claim to Your use of any Marks, (b) You are in complete compliance with Your Ongoing Franchise
Agreement; (¢) You allow Us to take whatever action We deem appropriate in these situations. This
means We have exclusive control over any settlement or proceeding concerning any Mark; and (d) You
agree to be a witness in any legal, mediation, or arbitration proceeding on Our behalf. You must take
any actions that, in the opinion of Our counsel, may be advisable to protect and maintain Our interests
in any proceeding or to otherwise protect and maintain Our interests in the Marks. You may not
communicate with any person other than Us and Our counsel regarding any infringements, challenges
or claims, however, You may communicate with Your own counsel at Your own expense.

You must use the Marks as the sole trade identification of the Franchised Business; however,
You may not use any Mark or part of any Mark as part of Your business entity name in any modified
form. You may not use any Mark in connection with the sale of any unauthorized products or services,
or in any other manner that We do not authorize in writing. You must obtain a fictitious or assumed
name registration if required by Your state or local law.
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You must notify Us in writing before applying for Your own trademark or service mark
registrations, whether state or federal. You must not register or seek to register as a trademark or service
mark, either with the USPTO or any state or foreign country, any of the Marks or a trademark or service
mark that is confusingly similar to any of Our Marks.

You may not advertise on the Internet using, or establish, create, or operate an Internet site or
website using any domain name containing, the words “Teapioca International”, “Teapioca”, “TPI”,
“Teapioca Lounge”, or any variation thereof without Our prior written consent.

We have established and will maintain from time to time a website (the “Website”). We have
discretion and control over the design and content of the Website. We may, at Our sole option, from
time to time, without prior notice to you: (i) change, revise, or eliminate the design, content and
functionality of the Website; (ii) make operational changes to the Website; (iii) change or modify the
URL and/or domain name of the Website; (iv) substitute, modify, or rearrange the Website, at Our sole
option, including in any manner that We consider necessary or desirable to, among other things, (A)
comply with applicable laws, (B) respond to changes in market conditions or technology, and (C)
respond to any other circumstances; (v) limit or restrict end-user access (in whole or in part) to the
Website; and (vi) disable or terminate the Website without any liability to you.

We may link the Website to the websites of third parties, including electronic service providers,
Affiliates and other providers of goods and services. We may also permit third parties to link (including
Deep Links to any interior page of the Website, including Your Page) and frame the Website (including
Your Page). We may place legal notices, disclaimers, Our corporate logos and slogans, advertisements,
endorsements, Marks, and other identifying information on the Website, all of which may be modified,
expanded, or eliminated at Our option. Further, We may establish or participate in programs in which
We refer end-users to other websites, or We receive referrals from other websites. All consideration
(monetary and non-monetary) received by Us on account of the placement or sale of advertisements,
endorsements, and sponsorships on the Website (including any franchisee Page), and all consideration
(monetary and non-monetary) received by Us on account of affiliate programs, will belong only to Us.
We may also establish programs that encourage repeat business by end-users.

The Website may include one or more interior pages that identify Teapioca Lounge®
Franchisees operating under the Marks, including the Franchised Business, by among other things,
geographic region, address, telephone numbers, and other appropriate matters. The Website may also
include one or more interior pages dedicated to franchise sales by Us and/or relations with Our investors.

We may, from time to time, establish the Franchisee Page. We may permit You to customize or
post certain information to the Franchisee Page, subject to Your signing and delivery of Our then-current
participation agreement, and Your compliance with the procedures, policies, standards and
specifications that We may establish from time to time. Such participation agreement may require You
to pay a reasonable fee (not to exceed Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($250.00) per month) for the privilege
of having a Franchisee Page, and may include, but shall not be limited to, specifications and limitations
for the data or information to be posted to the Franchisee Page, customization specifications, the basic
template for design of the Franchisee Page, parameters and deadlines specified by Us, disclaimers, and
such other standards and specifications and rights and obligations of the parties as We may establish
from time to time. Any modifications (including customization, alterations, submissions or updates) to
the content made by You for any purpose will be considered to be made under a contract of service
under the Copyright Act, and therefore We will own the modifications and the intellectual property
rights, including all right, title and interest in and to all copyright in such modifications. To the extent
any modification does not qualify as a work made under a contract of service as outlined above, You
assign those modifications, and all rights, title and interest in and to all copyright in such modifications
to Us for no additional consideration and with no further action required and shall sign and deliver such
further assignments as We may request.
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Without limiting Our general unrestricted right to permit, deny and regulate Your participation
on the Website, if You breach or default under the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, or any other
agreement with Us or any Affiliate, We may disable or terminate the Franchisee Page and remove all
references to the Franchised Business on the Website and/or redirect customer leads to other Teapioca
Lounge® Franchisees pursuant to Section 16 of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement until You provide
written notice that You have cured such breach or default to Us or Our counsel, and We confirm that
the breach or default is cured to Our satisfaction.

We have no control over the stability or maintenance of the Internet generally; as a result, We
are not responsible for damage or loss caused by errors of the Internet. Furthermore, We are not liable
for any direct, indirect, general, special, incidental, exemplary or consequential damages arising out of
the use of, or the inability to use, the Website or the Internet, including loss of profits, goodwill, or
savings; downtime; or damage to or replacement of programs and data, whether based in contract, tort,
product liability, or otherwise.

We have the sole right to maintain Social Media sites and applications such as: Twitter,
Facebook, LinkedIn, Pinterest, Yelp, Instagram, Snapchat, TikTok, and other sites and applications that
We may establish. We do not allow You to establish or utilize Social Media sites or applications for
business purposes, without Our express written permission, and then only by using preapproved
materials or campaigns. You and Your employees do not have the right to utilize the Marks listed in this
disclosure document, on any Social Media sites or applications, even if made from a personal Social
Media account. Further, any representations from You, or Your employees regarding Your profits or
earnings made on any Social Media site or application, even if made from a personal Social Media
account, are deemed a breach of Confidential Information under the Ongoing Franchise Agreement.

The Development Agreement does not grant the right to use the Marks or the right to license
others to use the Marks. Use of the Marks is granted only under the Ongoing Franchise Agreement.

Indemnification of You

We will reimburse You for all of Your expenses reasonably incurred in any legal proceeding
disputing Your authorized use of any Mark, but only if You notify Us of the proceeding in a timely
manner and You have complied with Our directions with regard to such proceeding. We have the right
to control the defense and settlement of any such proceeding. We will not reimburse You for Your
expenses and legal fees for separate, independent legal counsel or for any expenses in removing signage
or discontinuing Your use of any Mark. We will not reimburse You in connection with disputes where
We challenge Your use of a Mark.

Modification

We can require You to modify or discontinue the use of any Mark and/or to use other trademarks
or service marks. If We adopt and use new or modified Marks, You may be required to add or replace
supplies, signs and fixtures, and You may have to make other modifications as necessary to maintain
uniformity with Our current standards and specifications; however, You will not be required to spend more
than Your initial investment during the initial term of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement. We will not be
required to reimburse You for modifying or discontinuing the use of a Mark or for substituting another
trademark or service mark for a discontinued Mark. We are not obligated to reimburse You for any loss of
goodwill associated with a modified or discontinued Mark.

ITEM 14. PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Under the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, You agree not to contest, directly or indirectly, Our
ownership, title, right or interest in Our common law rights, copyrights, Trade Dress, Trade Secrets,
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Confidential Information, the System, methods, procedures or any other intellectual property rights that
are part of Our System or contest Our sole right to register, use or license others to use (except as limited
by the Ongoing Franchise Agreement) the common law rights, copyrights, Trade Dress, Trade Secrets,
Confidential Information, the System, Know-How, methods, procedures or any other intellectual
property rights that are part of Our System.

Patents

We do not possess any patents relative to this system.

Copyrights

We own copyrights in the Manual(s), Our website, and other copyrightable items that are part
of the System. While We claim copyrights in these and similar items, We have not and are not required
to register these copyrights with the United States Registrar of Copyrights. You must use these items
only as We specify while operating the Franchised Business and You must stop using these items if We
direct You to do so. You may not duplicate or disclose any portion of the Manual(s) in an unauthorized
manner. Further, all information is proprietary, and the Ongoing Franchise Agreement and the
Development Agreement require You to keep such information confidential. The below apps are for
customers to utilize. When a customer of Yours logins in You will capture their information for
marketing purposes for Your location.

Copyright Class Registration Date
Number

Boba Bursters

Game App in the Pending Released: June
Google Play and 16, 2016
iTunes App Stores;

Boba Islands: Quest
For Gold Game App

Pending Released:
Game App in the February 8,
Google Play and 2017
iTunes App Stores;
Monster vs Fruit
Shooter Game App

Pending Released: May
Game App in the 11, 2016
Google Play and
iTunes App Stores;
Teapioca Timer App
Game App in the Pending Released:
Google Play Store; February 16,

2016

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023 39-FDD



POSLock: Device
Position Lock App

Pending Released: June
App in the Google 5, 2016
Play and iTunes App
Stores;
Boba Furious Car,
Xiao Bao Energizer
and Racing Game Pending Releasing
App soon...

COMING SOON

Game App in the
Google Play and
iTunes App Stores;

Proceedings

We know of no currently effective determinations of the U.S. Copyright Office or any court
regarding any of Our copyrighted materials. Except as stated above, Our right to use or license
copyrighted items is not materially limited by any agreement or known infringing use.

Confidential Information

We have developed certain Trade Secrets and other Confidential Information, including
methods of business management, sales and promotion techniques, and Know-How, knowledge of, and
experience in, operating a Teapioca Franchised Business. We will provide Our Trade Secrets and other
Confidential Information to You during training, in the Manual(s) and as a result of the assistance We
furnish You during the term of the franchise. You may only use the Trade Secrets and other Confidential
Information for the purpose of operating Your Franchised Business. You may only divulge Trade
Secrets and other Confidential Information to employees who must have access to it in order to operate
the Franchised Business. You are responsible for enforcing the confidentiality provisions as to Your
employees.

Certain individuals with access to Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information, including the
owners, directors and any managers of the business (and members of their immediate families) and
collaterals (which includes succession in an oblique line, for example passing it from brother to brother or
cousin to cousin, whereas the two parties are related through some and any common ancestor), are required
to sign non-disclosure and non-competition agreements in a form the same as or similar to the Non-
Disclosure and Non-Competition Agreement attached to the Ongoing Franchise Agreement. A collateral
relative is any blood relative who is not Your direct ancestor. Your ancestors are Your parents,
grandparents, great-grandparents, etc., and Your collateral relatives are cousins, nieces, nephews, aunts,
uncles, siblings, etc. We will be a third-party beneficiary with the independent right to enforce the
agreements.

Proprietary Information

CHBN Holdings, LLC, has granted Us a license, dated April 20, 2019, to use and sublicense for
the use of its domain name www.TeapiocalL.ounge.com. The term of the license is for ninety-nine (99)
years; however, the license agreement may be terminated if We take any affirmative act of insolvency,
if a receiver or trustee is appointed to take possession of Our properties and is not discharged within
ninety (90) days, if We wind up, sell, consolidate or merge Our business, or if We breach any of Our
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duties and obligations under the license and do not cure the breach within sixty (60) days following
written notice of the breach, You will have continued right to the proprietary information even if We
are terminated.

We have the sole right to maintain Social Media sites and applications such as: Twitter,
Facebook, Pinterest, LinkedIn, Yelp, Instagram, Snapchat, TikTok, and other sites and applications that
We may establish. We do not allow You to establish or utilize Social Media sites or applications for
business purposes. You and Your employees do not have the right to utilize any of the Trade Secrets
and Confidential Information stated above, or the common law copyrighted materials including the
guidelines, curriculums, classes, management and business training, community building mechanisms,
vision statements, books, signage, promotional materials, Manual(s), training materials, Ongoing
Franchise Agreements, and any other documents, materials and items for the general ambiance and decor
used in the operation of the System and the Teapioca Franchised Businesses on any Social Media sites
or applications, even if made from a personal Social Media account. Further, any representations from
You, or Your employees regarding Your profits or earnings made on any Social Media site or
application, even if made from a personal Social Media account, is deemed a breach of Confidential
Information under the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, and You will be responsible for indemnifying and
reimbursing Us all legal, penalties, fines, and court costs associated with Your unauthorized
representations.

All ideas, concepts, techniques or materials concerning the Franchised Business, whether or not
protectable intellectual property and whether created by or for You or Your owners or employees, must
be promptly disclosed to Us and will be deemed Our sole and exclusive property and a part of the System
that We may choose to adopt and/or disclose to other Franchisees. Likewise, We will disclose to You
concepts and developments of other Franchisees that We make part of the System. You must also assist
Us in obtaining intellectual property rights in any concept or development if requested.

Indemnification of You

We will reimburse You for all of Your expenses reasonably incurred in any legal proceeding
disputing Your authorized use of any patent or copyright, but only if You notify Us of the proceeding
in a timely manner and You have complied with Our directions with regard to such proceeding. We
have the right to control the defense and settlement of any such proceeding. We will not reimburse You
for Your expenses and legal fees for separate, independent legal counsel or for any expenses in removing
signage or discontinuing Your use of any patent or copyright. We will not reimburse You in connection
with disputes where We challenge Your use of a patent or copyright.

ITEM 15. OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION
OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

The Franchised Business must always be under the direct supervision of a Designated Manager,
who speaks, reads and writes in English, which can be You. The Designated Manager must devote full
time personal attention to the Franchised Business unless pre-approved in writing. At all times of
operation, You may employ a Manager responsible for running the Franchised Business on a full-time
basis. The Designated Manager must be the person You designate in writing to Us (and is approved by
Us in writing). The primary responsibility for managing all aspects of the day-to-day affairs of the
Franchised Business falls to the Designated Manager.

Unless We otherwise agree in writing, You must be one of the Trainees. You must keep Us
informed of the identity of Your current Designated Manager. At all times during the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, the Manager must devote his or her best efforts in Good Faith to the management and
operation of Your Teapioca Franchised Business. Any replacement or additional Managers that You
hire must complete the Ongoing Franchise Agreement training class before taking their position within
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Your Teapioca Franchised Business, unless We otherwise agree in writing. You are responsible for the
expenses of additional Training, including tuition, travel, lodging, meals and salary. All of Your
employees must be legal residents of the United States of America and be able to provide documentation
of such. All Managers and supervisory associates must sign a Confidentiality Agreement which prohibits
them from disclosing proprietary information related to the Franchised Business, or the System, as
described in Item 14, and contains covenants not to compete during and after employment for a period
of two (2) years, as described in Item 17. The Managers, (including their collaterals) must not have an
interest or business relationship with any of Teapioca’s competitors. Your Managers must sign Our form
of Non-Disclosure and Non-Competition Agreement before You grant access to the Manuals or any
other Confidential Information. Additionally, in keeping with Our culture and Our Teapioca Vision, all
of Your employees must conform to the dress code as specified in the Manual(s), if applicable, must
accommodate all religion requirements, and at all times be non-discriminatory, and be willing to comply
with drug tests, if applicable, background checks, and the Non-Disclosure, Non-Compete provisions
contained in the Ongoing Franchise Agreement Exhibits and in the Manual(s).

If You are a business entity, anyone who owns a five (5%) percent or greater interest in the
entity must personally guarantee the performance of all of Your obligations under the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement and Development Agreement and agree to be personally liable for Your breach of the
Ongoing Franchise Agreement and Development Agreement by signing the Guaranty and Assumption
of Obligations attached to each agreement. The onsite Manager’s do not have to have any percent of
ownership in Your business entity to handle the day-to-day supervision of the operation of Your
Teapioca Franchised Business.

You are not Our employee but are Your own boss subject to Our rights under Your Ongoing
Franchise Agreement. We require You to be active in the operation of Your Teapioca Franchised
Business, even if You are not the Manager. We do not require any personal participation of any specific
person affiliated with a corporate or partnership Franchisee, except the Manager. You agree that Your
Franchise is not a “passive” investment but requires You or Your Manager’s day-to-day supervision of
the operation of Your Teapioca Franchised Business.

ITEM 16. RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer the services, and products We specify periodically in strict accordance with Our
standards and specifications. You may not sell any services, or products that We have not authorized in
writing and You must discontinue offering any services, or products that We may disapprove within
thirty (30) days. Teapioca may modify any of its specifications, standards, or requirements as and when
it deems necessary and You must promptly modify Your operation or product lines accordingly. There
are no limits on Our right to do so. If We modify the System, You may be required to add or replace
equipment, supplies, signs, and fixtures, and You may have to make improvements or modifications as
necessary to maintain uniformity with Our current standards and specifications.

Additionally, We require You to refresh the Franchised Business once every three (3) years, and
to refurbish the Franchised Business once every seven (7) years.

In addition, You must keep the Franchised Business open for the hours specified by the lease
where Your Business is located, if applicable, and may not use the Franchised Business premises for
any purpose other than the operation of a Teapioca Franchised Business according to Our requirements,
and may only advertise through Teapioca-approved media.

You must accommodate all religion requirements, and at all times be non-discriminatory. You
must not engage in any activity, conduct or practice that is contrary to Our or Your best interest, or that
is reasonably anticipated to result in litigation with suppliers or customers of Your Franchised Business,
or in public criticism of Teapioca or Your Franchised Business generally.
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Periodically, We may allow certain services or products that are not otherwise authorized for
general use as a part of the System to be offered locally or regionally based upon such factors as We
determine, including test marketing for the purpose of customer or operational feedback or evaluation,
Your qualifications, and regional or local differences.

Neither You nor We have any rights to charge, offer or sell any product or service above a
certain percentage of suggested retail as disclosed in the Manual(s) from time to time, currently twenty

percent (20%) mark-up of the then-suggested retail pricing.

Additionally, You will be required to honor all pricing published in national advertisements for

products and services.

You may recommend other suppliers than are on Our approved list. We will evaluate Your
recommended suppliers to determine if their products meet Our specifications and requirements.

ITEM 17.

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE

RESOLUTION

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

Provision

Section In the
Ongoing Franchise
Agreement

Summary

Length of the term of the
franchise

Section 4.1

The initial term is ten (10) years.

Renewal or extension of
the term

Section 4.2

You may renew Your Ongoing Franchise Agreement for an
additional term of ten (10) years, subject to (c) below. If You
fail to meet any one of these conditions, We may refuse to
renew or extend the terms of Your Ongoing Franchise
Agreement. Some items in the renewal Ongoing Franchise
Agreement may be different.

Requirements for You to
renew or extend

Section 4.2

You may renew the Ongoing Franchise Agreement if You:
have fully complied with the provisions of the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement and have cured any Notices of Default;
have the right to maintain possession of the Approved
Location or an approved substitute location for the term of
the renewal; have made capital expenditures as necessary to
maintain uniformity with the System; have satisfied all
monetary obligations owed to Us, Our subsidiaries, and
affiliates; paid the Renewal Fee; are not in default of any
provision of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement or any other
agreement between You and Us; have given timely written
notice of Your intent to renew, not less than nine (9) months
prior to the end of the Initial Term; are in good standing with
all applicable licenses and/or certifications; sign a then-
current Ongoing Franchise Agreement, which may have
materially different terms and conditions; comply with
current qualifications and training requirements; complete
the drug testing; complete a background screening; provide
proof that all certifications are up to date; and sign a general
release, subject to state law, in a form the same as or similar
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to the General Release attached to the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement.

d. Termination by You Section 16.1 You may terminate the Ongoing Franchise Agreement if You
are in compliance with it and We materially breach it and We
fail to begin to cure or cure Our breach within thirty (30) days
of receiving Your written notice.

e. Termination by Us Not Applicable

without cause

Termination by Us with
cause

Section 16.2

We may terminate the Ongoing Franchise Agreement only if
You default.

“Cause” defined-curable
defaults

Section 16.2

You can avoid termination of the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement if You cure a default arising from:

e deleterious conduct within thirty (30) days of
receiving Our Notice of Default; or

e  Cure a noncompliance with a law or regulation,
within thirty (30) days of receiving Our Notice of
Default; or

e You return to compliance with mandatory
specifications in the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement or Manual(s) within thirty (30) days of
receiving Our Notice of Default; or

e if You cure a default arising from Your failure to
make payments due Us within thirty (30) days of
receiving Our Notice of Default; or

e if You cure a Notice of Default arising from Your
failure to achieve performance standards within
thirty (30) days of receiving Our Notice of
Default; or

e You cure a Loss of License or Certificate within
one (1) days of Our Notice of Default; or

e You complete Your DOJ report, and background
check/report, within twenty-four (24) hours of Our
Notice of Default; or

e if You complete Your training requirements within
fourteen (14) days of the date of the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement; or

e if You cure Your Failure to begin operations
within nine (9) months if leasing, or

e if You cure Your Failure to begin operations
within fifteen (15) months if building Your
location, with thirty (30) days right to cure from
the date of the Notice of Default; or

e if You cure within thirty (30) days of receiving
Our Notice of Default that You have failed to
maintain Your business under the primary
supervision of a Manager.

If We terminate the Ongoing Franchise Agreement
following a Notice of Default, Your interest in the franchise
will terminate.

h.

“Cause” defined-defaults
that cannot be cured

Section 5.5, 16.2

e \We have the right to terminate the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement without giving You an
opportunity to cure if You or Your entity:

o fails to pay the Initial Franchise Fees, purchase
amounts due, or other amounts due to the
Franchisor or its Affiliate (or any balance thereof)
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at the time due within five (5) days after receiving
written notice that such fees are overdue;

fails to select an approved site; fails to have its
Manager satisfactorily complete any training
program pursuant to Section 8.3;

attempts or surrenders or transfers control of the
operations of the Franchised Business without
prior approval;

misuses or makes an unauthorized use of any of
the Marks;

commits any deleterious conduct, or any other act
which impairs the goodwill of any of the Marks;
negatively communicates or impacts the Franchise
system to any current or prospective Franchisee,
outside of Franchisor sponsored forums;

defaults on any lease necessary to run the
Franchised business;

abandonment of Your Teapioca business for more
than three (3) consecutive days;

made a material misrepresentation or omission in
the application for the Franchise or any other
communication to Us;

are convicted of or plead no contest to a crime or
offense that would place them on the sex
offender’s registry, was a violent felony, sexual
harassment against an employee, domestic abuse
charges, animal abuse, elderly abuse, substance
abuse, DWI or DUI, any theft charge

or is likely to affect the reputation of either party
or the Franchised Business;

disclose, duplicate, or otherwise use the
Manual(s), Confidential Information or the Marks
in an unauthorized manner;

submit reports to Franchisor on two (2) or more
separate occasions understating any amounts due
by more than two percent (2%);

are adjudicated bankrupt, insolvent or make a
general assignment for the benefit of creditors;
fail on two (2) or more occasions within any two
(2) consecutive weeks to submit reports or records
to Us or to pay any fees due Us or any third-party
supplier;

receive two (2) or more default notices within any
twelve (12) consecutive months;

continue to violate any health, safety or other laws
or conduct in or with the Franchised Business in a
manner creating a health or safety hazard to
customers, employees or the public;

take any action reserved to Us;

fail to comply with applicable law after notice; or

repeatedly breach the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement or fail to comply with specifications.

Termination of one Ongoing Franchise Agreement
will not automatically result in the termination of
Your other Ongoing Franchise Agreements then
in-effect between Us and You, unless the same
material breach constitutes a breach of the other
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Ongoing Franchise Agreement and We take
separate steps to terminate that Ongoing Franchise
Agreement or if We agree in writing to mutually
terminate the Ongoing Franchise Agreement(s).

approval of transfer!

i. Your obligations on Section 17.1 If the Ongoing Franchise Agreement is terminated or not
termination/non-renewal renewed, You must:

e stop operating the Franchised Business;

e immediately remove all identifying architecture or
signage on or about the business bearing Our
Marks;

e stop using any Confidential Information, the
System and the Marks;

e display a conspicuous sign that You are no longer a
Franchisee;

e deliver to Us all information written or electronic
regarding contracts, customer lists, and marketing
efforts;

o refrain from any action to reduce the goodwill of
Your customers or potential customers, towards Us
or other Franchisees;

e  keep and maintain all business records for a period
of three (3) years;

e cancel or assign to Us any assumed names;

e pay all sums owed to Us including damages,
liquidated damages and costs incurred in enforcing
the Ongoing Franchise Agreement; return the
Manual(s) and all other Confidential Information;

e assign Your telephone and facsimile numbers for
the Franchised Business to Us;

e comply with the covenants not to compete and any
other surviving provisions of the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement; and

o if requested, assign Your interest in the Approved
Location to Us.

J. Assignment of contract Section 18.1 There are no restrictions on Our right to assign Our interest
by Us in the Ongoing Franchise Agreement.
K. “Transfer” by You- Section 18.2 “Transfer” includes transfer of an interest in the Franchise,
definition the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, the Approved Location,
the Franchised Business’ assets or the Franchisee entity.
I.  Our approval of transfer Section 18.2 Except for transfers among spouses, You may not transfer
by You Your interest in any of the items listed in (k) above without
Our prior written consent, unless authorized under state law.
m. Conditions for Our Section 18.2 We will consent to a transfer if:

e We have not exercised Our Right of First Refusal;

o all obligations owed to Us are paid,;

e You or any transferring owners have signed a
general release, subject to state law, in a form the
same as or similar to the General Release attached
to the Ongoing Franchise Agreement;

e the prospective Transferee meets Our business and
financial standards;

e the Transferee and all persons owning any interest
in the Transferee sign the then-current Ongoing
Franchise Agreement;

e You provide Us with a copy of all contracts and
agreements related to the transfer,
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e You or the Transferee pay a transfer fee applicable
at the time You submit Notice to Us You want to
transfer, per the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, as
well as the Transfer Training Fee applicable, both
figures are plus CPI at the time of transfer;

e the Transferee or the owners of Transferee have
agreed to be personally bound by all provisions of
the Ongoing Franchise Agreement;

e You have agreed to guarantee performance by the
Transferee, if requested by Us;

e the Transferee has obtained all necessary consents
and approvals of third parties;

e Youorall of Your equity owners have signed a non-
competition agreement in a form the same as or
similar to the Non-Disclosure and Non-
Competition Agreement attached to the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement;

o the Transferee has agreed that its Manager will
complete the Ongoing Franchise Agreement
training program that Transferee has paid the
Transfer  Training Fee  before  assuming
management of the Franchised Business.

Our Right of First refusal | Article 19 We may match a bona fide offer for Your Franchised
to acquire Your Business or an ownership interest You propose to sell, based
Franchised Business upon Our determination of the Value.

Our option to purchase Section 17.4 Except as described in (n) above, We do not have the right to

Your Franchised
Business

purchase Your Franchised Business; however, during the
thirty (30) day period after the termination or expiration of
the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, We have the right to
purchase any assets of the Franchised Business for book
value.

Death or disability

Section 16.2 and 18.6

After a death or incapacity of one of Your owners, his or her
representative must transfer, subject to the terms of the
Ongoing Franchise Agreement, the owner’s interest in the
Franchised Business or in the entity owning the interest in
the Franchised Business within six (6) months of death or
incapacity, or We may terminate the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement. If We deem it necessary, We may take over the
operation of the Franchised Business until the deceased or
incapacitated owner’s interest is transferred, and We may
charge a fee of amount stated in the Manuals currently Five
Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per day plus 1% Gross Sales, per
diem and expenses ($500.00) per day for this service and be
entitled to reimbursement of expenses.

g. Non-competition

covenants during the
term of the franchise

Section 7.3 and 7.4

You, Your owners (and members of their families and
collaterals) and Your officers, directors, executives,
managers, and employees are prohibited from: attempting to
divert any customer, employee or other business associate of
Ours, the Franchised Business, Our Affiliate(s) or any other
Franchisee to a Competitive Business, or soliciting or
attempting to induce any customer, employee or other
business associate of Ours, the Franchised Business, Our
Affiliate(s) or any other Franchisee to terminate or modify
their business relationship with Us, the Franchised Business,
Our Affiliate(s) or any other Franchisee or causing injury or
prejudice to the Marks or the System; or owning or working
for a Competitive Business.
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r.  Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated
or expires

Section 17.2

For two (2) years after the termination or expiration of the
Ongoing Franchise Agreement, You, Your owners (and
members of their families and collaterals) and Your officers,
directors, executives or managers are prohibited from:
owning or working for a Competitive Business operating
within twenty-five (25) miles of the Approved Location or
within Exclusive Territory (whichever is greater), and within
twenty-five (25) miles of any other Teapioca Business; or
soliciting or influencing any consumers, employees or
business associates of Ours, Our Affiliate(s) or any other
Franchisee to terminate or modify their business relationship
with Us, Our Affiliate(s) or any other Franchisee.

s. Modification of the
agreement

Sections 9.2 and 22.7

The Ongoing Franchise Agreement can be modified only by
written agreement between You and Us. We may modify the
Manual(s) without Your consent if the modification does not
materially alter Your fundamental rights.

t. Integration/merger
clause

Section 24.1, and
24.10

Only the terms of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement and
requirements within the Manual(s) are binding. Any other
promises may not be enforceable. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing in any Ongoing Franchise Agreement is
intended to disclaim the express representations made in this
Franchise Disclosure Document.

u. Dispute resolution by
mediation

Section 23.7

Subject to applicable state law, We do require mediation.
Except for actions or claims for injunctive relief or specific
performance or relating to the Marks, Trade Secrets or
Confidential Information, all disputes must be mediated in
Texas, or a location as determined by state law in Your state,
a minimum of Three (3) times before either party can file
suit.

v. Choice of forum

Section 23.2

Subject to applicable state law, claims for injunctive relief or
specific performance may be brought by Us where You are
located; where the Franchised Business is or was located;
where Our counsel is located; or where the claim arose. All
litigation must be filed in Texas, unless modified by an
attached State Addendum.

w. Choice of law

Section 23.1

Subject to applicable state law, Texas law applies, unless
voided by Your state (see State Addendums attached), except
that disputes over the Marks will be governed by the United
States Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sec.
1051 et seq.).

X. Franchisee Liquidated
Damages

Section 17.9

If You default on Your Ongoing Franchise Agreement, You
must pay liquidated damages equal to One Thousand Dollars
(%$1,000.00) per occurence retroactive to first date of offense;
plus the average monthly amount of the last three (3) fully
operating months royalties, multiplied times the number of
months left on the Ongoing Franchise Agreement, or as
determined by the state law of Your state.

This section is only applicable if You apply to become and are awarded a Teapioca Area

Development Agreement.
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THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Provision

Section In the
Development
Agreement Summary

a. Term of the
Development Rights

Section 5.1 The term expires on the last Opening Date on the
Development Schedule.

b. Renewal or extension
of the term

Section 5.2 You have no right to renew, but We have the right to re-
evaluate the Territory. If We do, You will have a right
of first refusal to open additional franchises in the
Development Territory after the Development
Agreement expires, if We determine that the
Development Territory can be further developed
without adverse effect on existing Franchised
Businesses within the Development Territory.

c. Requirements for You
to renew or extend

Not applicable

d. Termination by You

Section 8.3 Developers may terminate under any grounds
permitted by law.

e. Termination by Us
without Cause

Not Applicable

f.  Termination by Us
with Cause

Acrticle 8 We may terminate the Development Agreement only if
You default. A termination of the Area Development
Agreement does not automatically terminate the
Ongoing Franchise Agreements.

g. “Cause” defined-
curable defaults

Section 8.2 You can avoid termination of the Development
Agreement if You cure a default arising from Your
failure to comply with mandatory specifications in the
Development Agreement within thirty (30) days of
receiving Our Notice of Default. A termination of the
Area Development Agreement does not automatically
terminate the Ongoing Franchise Agreements.

h. “Cause” defined-
defaults that cannot
be cured

Section 8.1 We have the right to terminate the Development
Agreement without giving You an opportunity to cure
if You:

e transfer any part of the Development
Agreement or Development Rights or an
interest in Your business entity in an
unauthorized manner;

e made a material misrepresentation or omission
in the application for the Development Rights;

e are convicted of or pleads no contest to a
felony or other crime or offense that may
adversely affect the Marks;

e misuse or make unauthorized use of the Marks
or Confidential Information;

e We terminate an Ongoing Franchise
Agreement between Us and You;

e You terminate any Ongoing Franchise
Agreement without Cause; or
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THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Section In the
Development

approval of transfer

Provision Agreement Summary
e fail to meet the timing requirements or
deadlines contained in the Development
Schedule.
A termination of the Area Development Agreement
does not automatically terminate the Ongoing
Franchise Agreements.
Your obligations on Article 9 If the Development Agreement is terminated, You
termination/non- must: stop using any Trade Secrets and other
renewal Confidential Information; pay all sums owed to Us; and
comply with the Covenants Not to Compete and any
other surviving provisions of the Development
Agreement.
Assignment of Section 7.1 There are no restrictions on Our right to assign Our
contract by Us interest in the Development Agreement.
“Transfer” by You- Section 7.2 “Transfer” includes transfer of ownership in the
definition Development Rights, the Development Agreement, or
the developer entity.
Our approval of Section 7.2 You may not transfer Your interest in any of the items
transfer by You listed in (k) above without Our prior written consent.
. Conditions for Our Section 7.2 We will consent to a transfer if:

e We have not exercised Our right of first
refusal,

o all obligations owed to Us are paid,;

e You and the Transferee have signed a general
release, subject to state law, in a form the same
as or similar to the General Release attached
to the Initial Ongoing Franchise Agreement;

o the prospective Transferee meets Our business
and financial standards;

e You provide Us with a copy of all contracts
and agreements related to the transfer;

e You or the Transferee pay a transfer fee
amount equal to Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000.00) per non-developed Ongoing
Franchise Agreement covered under this
Development Agreement, as well as the
Transfer Training Fee of Fifteen Thousand
Dollars ($15,000.00), both figures are plus
CPI at the time of transfer;

e the Transferee has agreed to be personally
bound by all provisions of the Development
Agreement and the owners of Transferee have
agreed to personally guarantee Transferee’s
performance;

e the Transferee has agreed to be personally
bound by all provisions of the then-current
Ongoing Franchise Agreement(s) for new
Franchisees and the owners of Transferee have
agreed to personally guarantee Transferee’s
performance;
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THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Provision

Section In the
Development
Agreement

Summary

e the Transferee has obtained all necessary
consents and approvals of third parties and
applicable state and federal laws and
requirements; and

e You or all of Your equity owners have signed
a non-competition agreement, in a form the
same as or similar to the Non-Disclosure and
Non-Competition Agreement attached to the
Ongoing Franchise Agreement.

Our right of first
refusal to acquire
Your Development
Rights

Section 7.4

We may match an offer for Your Development Rights
or an ownership interest that You propose to transfer.

Our option to
purchase Your
Development Rights

Section 5.2

Except as described in (n) above, We do not have the
right to purchase Your Development Rights; however,
during the thirty (30) day period after the termination or
expiration of the Development Agreement, We have the
right to purchase any logoed assets of the Development
company for book value or Your cost.

Your death or

Not Applicable

disability

Non-competition Section 9.4 The Development Agreement incorporates by reference
covenants during the the Non-Competition Covenants of the Ongoing
term of the Franchise Agreement.

Development

Agreement

Non-competition Section 9.4 The Development Agreement incorporates by reference
covenants after the the post-term Non-Competition Covenants of the
Development Ongoing Franchise Agreement.

Agreement is

terminated or expires

Modification of the Section 12.7 The Development Agreement can be modified only by

agreement

written agreement between You and Us.

Integration/merger
clause

Sections 12.1 and
12.7

Only the terms of the Development Agreement are
binding, although if there is a conflict between the
Development Agreement and any Ongoing Franchise
Agreement, the terms of the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement control. Any representations or other
promises made outside the Disclosure Document, the
Ongoing Franchise Agreement and the Development
Agreement may not be enforceable. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, nothing in any Ongoing Franchise
Agreement is intended to disclaim the express
representations made in this Franchise Disclosure
Document.
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THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Provision

Section In the
Development
Agreement

Summary

Dispute resolution by
arbitration or
mediation

Section 13.7

Subject to applicable state law, We do not allow
Avrbitration. We do however require multiple Mediation
sessions prior to litigation. Except for actions or claims
for injunctive relief or specific performance or relating
to the Marks, Trade Secrets or Confidential
Information, all disputes must be mediated in
Williamson County, Texas, unless modified by an
attached State Addendum.

Choice of forum

Section 13.2

Subject to applicable state law, claims for injunctive
relief or specific performance may be brought by Us
where We are located, where Our counsel is located,
where the claim arose, or You are located.

. Choice of law

Section 13.1

Texas law applies, unless modified by an attached State
Addendum, except that disputes regarding the Marks
will be governed by the United States Trademark Act
of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1051 et seq.).

ITEM 18. PUBLIC FIGURES

We have no public figures within the Teapioca International, LLC Franchise System at the time
of this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 19. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a Franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or Franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable
basis for the information, and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document. Financial
performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a Franchisor
provides the actual records of an existing outlet You are considering buying; or (2) a Franchisor
supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about
possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

Teapioca International, LLC does not make any financial performance representations. We also
do not authorize Our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in
writing. If You are purchasing an existing outlet, however, We may provide You with the actual records
of that outlet. If You receive any other financial performance information or projections of Your future
income, You should report it to the Franchisor's management at 1000 Gattis School Road, Ste. 640,
Round Rock, Texas 78664, or email at Franchise@ Teapiocal.ounge.com or telephone at 844-4TPIOCA,
the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20. OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Exhibit B provides a complete list of Our Franchisees. If You buy this franchise, Your contact
information may be disclosed to other buyers during and when You leave the franchise system. The
following tables reflect the status of Our Franchisees.
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Table No. 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
For years 2020-2022

Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Outlets at the Net
Start of the End of the Year | Change
Year
2020 17 20 +3
Franchised 2021 20 26 +6
2022 26 33 +7
2020 0 0 0
Company-Owned 2021 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0
2020 17 20 +3
Total Outlets 2021 20 26 +6
2022 26 33 +7

Finish *Note: The Total number of Franchisees, including any Franchisees signed this fiscal year up to
the issuance date on this FDD, are listed in Exhibit B attached.

Table No. 2
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)
For Years 2020-2022

State Year Number of Transfers
2020 1
Texas
2021 0
2022 1
2020 1
Total Transfers
2021 0
2022 1

The numbers in the “Total” column may exceed the number of stores affected because several events
may have affected the same store. For example, the same store may have had multiple owners.
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Table No. 3

Status of Franchised Outlets
For years 2020-2022

State | Year | Outlets | Outlets | Terminations | Non- Reacquired | Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened Renewals | by Operations | at End
of Year Franchisor | — Other of the

Reasons Year
2020 |1 0 0 0 0 0 1
CO 2021 |1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 |1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2020 |1 0 0 0 0 0 1
FL 2021 |1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 |1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2020 | 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
OK 2021 | 3 2 0 0 0 0 5
2022 | 5 0 0 0 0 0 5
2020 |1 2 0 0 0 0 3
PA 2021 | 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2022 | 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2020 | 11 1 0 0 0 1 12
X 2021 | 12 4 0 0 0 0 16
2022 | 16 6 0 0 0 0 22
2020 | 17 3 0 0 0 1 20
Total | 2021 | 20 6 0 0 0 0 26
2022 | 26 7 0 0 0 0 33

*Note: The Total number of Franchisees including any Franchisee's signed through the issuance date
of this FDD is listed in Exhibit B attached.
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Table No. 4
Status of Company-Owned Outlets
For years 2020-2022

State Year Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets Sold | Outlets
at Start Opened Reacquired | Closed to at End of
of the From Franchisee | the Year
Year Franchisee

2020 0 0 0 0 0 0

X 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
2020 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totals 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
Table No. 5
Projected Openings as of 2023
State Ongoing Franchise Projected New Projected New
Agreements Signed | Franchised Outlet In Company-Owned
But Outlet Not The Next Fiscal Year Outlet In the Next
Opened Fiscal Year
Oklahoma 4 3 0
Florida 1 2
Pennsylvania 4 2 0
Texas 9 7 0
Total 18 16 0

List of Current Franchisees

A list of all Teapioca Trained Businesses and Franchisees and the addresses of their Business is
attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit B.

List of Terminated or Cancelled Franchisees

We have had no Franchisee who was terminated, cancelled or not renewed or otherwise
ceased to do business either voluntarily or involuntarily within the last fiscal year, nor who has not
communicated with Us within 10 weeks of this Disclosure Document Issuance date.
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Additional Franchisee Information

If You buy this franchise, Your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers during
and when You leave the franchise system as required by law.

During Our last three fiscal years, We have not signed any confidentiality clauses with current
or Former Franchisees which would restrict their ability to speak openly with You about their experience
with Us. We are not aware of any trade-specific Franchisee organizations associated with the System
and no Independent Franchisee organizations have asked to be included in this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 21. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Since We have been in business for 3 years or more, We can include all financial statements
required in Instructions 1(i) and (ii) of this Item 21. We comply with this Item by supplying (i) Our
Unaudited Financial Statements ending March 31, 2023; (ii) Our Audited Financial Statements through
December 31, 2022; (iii) Our Audited Financial Statements through December 31, 2021; and (iv) Our
Audited Financial Statements through December 31, 2020. Our fiscal year ends December 31st.

ITEM 22. CONTRACTS

The following Agreements are attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibits:

Business Establishment Training Course Agreement with Exhibits Exhibit C
Site Selection and Real Estate Training Course Agreement with Exhibits Exhibit D
Ongoing Franchise Agreement with Exhibits Exhibit E
Area Development Agreement with Exhibits Exhibit F
Confidentiality Agreement Exhibit |

There are no other contracts or agreements provided by Teapioca to be signed by You.
ITEM 23. RECEIPT

In accordance with the Trade Regulation Rule of the Federal Trade Commission titled
“Disclosure Requirements and Prohibitions Concerning Franchising and Business Opportunity
Ventures”, a Receipt by the Prospective Franchisee is attached as Exhibit J, located on the last two pages
of this Disclosure Document.

You should sign and date both copies of the receipt as of the date You received this Disclosure
Document.

Keep one copy for Your records and return the other signed copy to Us.

[The rest of this page was intentionally left blank]
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EXHIBIT A
TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL, LLC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements are attached:

Our Unaudited Financial Statements through March 31, 2023;

Our Audited Financial Statements through December 31, 2022;
Our Audited Financial Statements through December 31, 2021;
Our Audited Financial Statements through December 31, 2020;

rpoONDE

Note:

Where indicated the attached Financial Statements have been prepared without an
Audit. Prospective Franchisees or Sellers of Franchises should be advised that no
independent Certified Public Accountant has audited these figures or expressed an
opinion with regard to their content or form.
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11:15AM

05/25/23
Accrual Basis

TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL INCOME STATEMENT

JANUARY 1, 2023, TO MARCH 31, 2023
THE ATTACHED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT. PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEES OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE ADVISED THAT NO INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED AN OPINION WITH REGARD TO THEIR

CONTENT OR FORM

Teapioca International, LLC

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023

Profit & Loss
January through March 2023
Jan - Mar 23
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Service Income 221,909.35
Total Income 221,909.35
Gross Profit 221,909.35
Expense
Accounting Fee 535.00
Advertising and Promotion 6,993.31
Automobile Expense 1589.72
Bank Service Charges 7.609.50
Computer & Intemet 4,030.06
Consultant Fee 25,000.00
Contractor 6,041.25
Dues & Subcriptions 3,756.94
Event and Meeting 1,781.73
Legal & Professional Fee 19,621.25
Licenses & Permit 5,820.51
Meals and Entertainment 6,571.61
Medical Fee 491.37
Office Expense 1.109.68
Payroll Expenses
Bonus 1,000.00
Other Earnings 1,225.31
Overtime_OT 685.98
Regular 36,783.21
Salary 106.326.95
TX Child Support 0.00
Total Payroll Expenses 146,021.45
Payroll Tax Expenses
Fica Employer 11,170.65
Futa Expense 420.00
Suita Expense 384.08
Total Payroll Tax Expenses 11.974.73
Postage and Shipping 457.12
Rent 6,400.00

Page 1



11:15AM Teapioca International, LLC

0512523 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through March 2023
Jan - Mar 23
Repairs and Maintenance 44291
Small Tools/ Equipments 496.00
Software Subscriptions 43,128.60
Telephone 2,246.87
Travel Expense 4.860.55
Uniform Fee 270.60
Utilities 328.77
Website Services 8,637.88
Total Expense 316.217.41
Net Ordinary Income -94,308.06
Net Income -94,308.06

Page 2
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TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL BALANCE SHEET
JANUARY 1, 2023, TO MARCH 31, 2023
THE ATTACHED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT. PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEES OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE ADVISED THAT NO INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED AN OPINION WITH REGARD TO THEIR
CONTENT OR FORM

1113 AM Teapioca International, LLC
05125123 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2023
Mar 31,23
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Chase #2195-Gift Card 166,002.37
Chase #3861-Branding Fund 99,508.89
Chase Acc#6830 13,230.16
Total Checking/Savings 278,741.42
Other Current Assets
Accounts Receivable -9,499.60
Notes Receivable 9,499.64
Total Other Current Assets 0.04
Total Current Assets 278,741.46
Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation -2,834.94
Machinery and Equipment 3,544.70
Total Fixed Assets 709.76
Other Assets
Accumulated Amortization -25,354.49
Franchise Organnizational Cost 54,335.85
Total Other Assets 28,981.36
TOTAL ASSETS 308,432.58
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Credit Cards
Chase C/C #0617 -450.00
Chase C/C #0869 13,655.67
Chase Ink C/c #0057 7,365.86
Total Credit Cards 20,571.53
Other Current Liabilities
Branding Fund #3861 99,508.89
Gift Card #2195 166,002.37
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11:13 AM Teapioca International, LLC

05125123 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2023

Mar 31,23
Payroll Liabilities
Employee Payroll WH 451254
Fica Employer 1,774.66
Futa 327.57
Suta 458.86
TX Child Support 1,001.54
Total Payroll Liabilities 8,075.17
Total Other Current Liabilities 273,586.43
Total Current Liabilities 294,157 .96
Total Liabilities 294,157.96
Equity
2022 Profit withdrawal -164,000.00
Member 's Equity -481,496.13
Opening Balance Equity 48,525.00
Retained Earnings 705,553.81
Net Income -94,308.06
Total Equity 14,274 62
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 308,432.58
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Teapioca International, LLC

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022

m Lin Accountancy Corporation
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Lin Accountancy Corporation Audit » Tax » Advisory

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Management and Board of Directors
Teapioca International, LLC

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Teapioca International, LLC, which comprise the balance sheet
as of December 31, 2022, and the related statements of operation and members’ equity, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Teapioca International LLC as of December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Lin Accountancy Corporation

Diamond Bar, CA
February 21, 2023

Lin Accountancy Corporation 3333 S. Brea Canyon Road, Suite 201, Diamond Bar, CA 91101 USA
Tel: +1 909 348 7228 » Fax: +1 909 895 4157 » info@kwlcpa.com
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Teapioca International, LLC

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2022
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 587,097
Total current assets 587,097
Property and Equipment
Machinery and equipment 3,545
Less accumulated depreciation (2,835)
Leasehold Improvements and Equipment, net 710
Other Assets
Organizational cost 54,336
Less accumulated amortization (25,354)
Total other assets 28,982
Total Assets S 616,789

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
4
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Teapioca International, LLC
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2022

Liabilities and Member's Equity

Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses S 467
Branding funds reserve 90,798
Credit cards payable 16,964
Deferred gift cards revenue 202,926

Total current liabilities 311,155

Long-Term Liabilities -

Equity
Member's equity 305,634
Total member's equity 305,634
Total Liabilities and Member's Equity S 616,789

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
5
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Franchise Income
Service Income

Total Income
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Accounting fee

Teapioca International, LLC
Statement of Operations and Member's Equity

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Advertising and Promotion

Amortization
Automobile Expenses
Bank Service Charges
Computer & Internet
Consulting
Depreciation

Dues & Subcription
Insurance

Legal & Professional Fee
Meals & Entertainment
Medical Fee

Office Expense

Payroll Expenses
Payroll Tax Expenses
Postage and Delivery
Rent

Repair and Maintenance
Security

Small Equipment
Software Subscription
Telephone

Travel Expense
Uniforms

Utilities

Website Services

Operating expenses

Income from operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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225,600
885,601
1,111,201

1,111,201

11,140
26,322
3,622
8,186
545
23,962
80,450
709
19,682
694
95,155
23,034
6,440
9,909
467,164
36,465
1,303
25,899
1,034
304
3,875
32,970
5,300
28,588
1,584
1,936
18,633
935,405

175,796
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Teapioca International, LLC
Statement of Operations and Member's Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Non-operating income (expenses})
Other income
Total non-operating income (expenses)
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes (benefit)
Net Income
Member's equity, beginning of year

Member's withdrawals

Member's equity, 12/31/2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
7
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175,796

175,796

314,652

184,814

305,634
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Teapioca International, LLC
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income S 175,796

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable 1,555
Decrease in branding fund reserve (30,603)
Increase in gift cards reserve 131,278
Decrease in notes receivable 9,500
Increase in credit cards payable 9,978
Decrease in accrued expenses (494)
Net cash provided by operating activities 297,010

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Amortization 3,622
Depreciation 709

Net cash (used in) investing activities 4,331

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Member's withdrawals (184,814)
Net cash provided by financing activities (184,814)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 116,527

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning 470,570
Ending S 587,097

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flows
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest S -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
8
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business: Teapioca International, LLC {hereinafter, “the Company”), is a Texas Domestic Limited Liability
Company formed on January 27, 2015 and is primarily engaged in the business of franchising Teapioca Lounge’s
tea bars throughout the United States. The Company’s franchisees provide high quality tea, shaved ice, smoothies and
other dessert drinks to customers in a modern lounge setting.

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies is as follows:

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less estimates made for doubtful
receivables and returns based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a timely basis. The Company extends
credit to its franchisees and generally does not require collateral. Management determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual franchisee receivables and considering a franchisee’s financial
condition and credit history, and current economic conditions. Account balances are charged against the allowance
after all collection efforts have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. Accounts
receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are
recorded when received. Actual credit loss may differ from management’s estimates. No interest has been
charged on franchisee’s accounts.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed on the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 7 years

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to $709. Expenditures for major renewals
and betterment that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized. Expenditures for repairs
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. When property and equipment are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the asset and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting profit or
loss is reflected in the statement of income for the period.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
9
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Impairment of long-lived assets: The Company reviews its long-lived assets whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Impairment is evaluated by comparing
the carrying value of the long-lived assets with the estimated future net undiscounted cash flows expected to result
from the use of the assets, including cash flows from disposition. Should the sum of the expected future net cash
flows be less than the carrying value, the Company would recognize an impairment loss at that date. An
impairment loss would be measured by comparing the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value
{estimated discounted future cash flows) of the long- lived assets.

Intangible Assets: Intangible assets primarily related to the franchise organizational cost that the Company
incurred at start-up. The intangible assets are stated at historical cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful lives of 15 years. Amortization expenses for the year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to
$3,622.

Revenue recognition: Beginning January 1, 2017, the Company adopted ASC Topic 606, “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers.” ASC Topic 606 requires the Company to recognize revenue when control of the
promised goods or services is transferred to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitle to in exchange for those goods or services. The Company
recognizes revenue based on the five criteria for revenue recognition established under Topic 606: 1)
identify the contract, 2) identify separate performance obligations, 3) determine the transaction price, 4)
allocate the transaction price among the performance obligations, and 5) recognize revenue as the
performance obligations are satisfied.

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606. Revenue are recognized when control of the
promised goods or services is transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from the initial and
establishment fees are generally recognized when all material services or conditions relating to the sale
have been substantially performed or satisfied, which is generally upon the signing of the preliminary
agreement, selection of a store site and training. The license royalties, which are based on a percentage of
gross sale, are recognized as earned, which is generally upon sale of products by franchisees. The adoption
of ASC 606 had no impact on the Company’s financial statements and related footnote disclosure as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Advertising costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. The total advertising expense was $26,322 for the
year ended December 31, 2022.

Income taxes: The Company is organized as a multiple-member limited liability company and has elected to be
taxed as a partnership for income tax purposes. As such, for federal income tax purposes, the Company’s income
and losses will be “pass-through” to its partners therefore no provisions for federal income tax is recorded on the
financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
10
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: As defined in FASB ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements,” fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (exit price). The Company utilizes market data or assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally
unobservable. The Company classifies fair value balance based on the observability of those inputs. ASC 820
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs {level 3 measurement). The carrying values of certain assets and liabilities of the
Company, such as cash equivalents, accounts receivable , inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets,
prepaid income tax, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities, approximate fair value due to
their relatively short maturities.

Concentration:

Cash and cash equivalents: The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. Accounts are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {FDIC) up to
$250,000. As of December 31, 2022, one of the Company’s bank account has exceeded the FDIC insured limits.
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

Fair Value Measurement: In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (“Topic 820”):
Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. The ASU modifies
the disclosure requirements in Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, by removing certain disclosure requirements
related to the fair value hierarchy, modifying existing disclosure requirements related to measurement uncertainty
and adding new disclosure requirements, such as disclosing the changes in unrealized gains and losses for the period
included in other comprehensive income for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements held at the end of the
reporting period and disclosing the range and weighted average of significant unobservable inputs used to develop
Level 3 fair value measurements. This ASU is effective for all entities for annual reporting periods and interim
periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the
effect, if any, that the ASU will have on its financial statements.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, simplifying the accounting for income taxes, as part of its
initiative to reduce complexity in accounting standards. The amendments in the ASU are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2020, including interim periods therein. Early adoption of the standard is permitted,
including adoption in interim or annual periods for which financial statements have not yet been issued. The
Company is currently evaluating the effect, if any, that the ASU will have on its financial statements.

Subsequent Events: The Company evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after December 31,

2022 up through the date that financial statements are issued or available to be issued. All subsequent events
requiring recognition as of December 31, 2022 have been incorporated into these financial statements and there
are no subsequent events that require disclosure in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 855, “Subsequent Events.”

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
11

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023 16-A



Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2022
Note 2. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivables are primarily franchise income that are due from new franchisees. The Company has no
outstanding account receivable as of December 31, 2022.
Note 3. Note Receivable
Notes receivables are mainly promissory notes for the development fees agreed upon with area developers. There is
no outstanding notes receivable as of December 31, 2022.
Note 4. Prepaid and Other Assets
The prepaid and other assets consist primarily of the annual point of sale software subscriptions. There is zero
balance for prepaid and other assets as of December 31, 2022.
Note 5. National Business Branding Fund
The Company collects from a percentage of gross sale a National Business Branding Fund from its franchisees to be
used in cooperative advertising and to ensure brand consistency. As of December 31, 2022, the balance collected by
the Company from the franchisees amounts to $90,798 and this fund is reported as a current liability to represent
such intention and purpose.
Note 6. Deferred Gift Card Revenue
Gift cards sales are recorded as deferred revenue at the time of gift card sale. Revenue is recognized and record
when the gift cards are redeemed. No gift card breakage is recognized or recorded. As of December 31, 2022, the
deferred gift card revenue amounts to $202,926.
Note 7. Operating Lease Commitment
The Company leases its office and warehousing facilities, and certain equipment under an operating lease expiring
August 31, 2025. For the year ended December 31, 2022, total rent expenses for office and warehousing facilities,

and equipment rental totaled $25,899.

Future minimum lease payments under the operating leases are summarized as follows:

As of August 31, Amount
2023 16,000
2024 24,000
2025 16,000
Total T§ 56000
%%k ¥ k¥

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
12

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023 17-A



Teapioca International, LLC

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2021

m Lin Accountancy Corporation
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Management and Board of Directors
Teapioca International, LLC

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Teapioca International, LLC, which comprise the balance sheet
as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of operation and members’ equity, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Teapioca International LLC as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Lin Accountancy Corporation

Diamond Bar, CA
February 16, 2022

Lin Accountancy Corporation 3333 S. Brea Canyon Road, Suite 201, Diamond Bar, CA 91101 USA
Tel: +1 909 575 8168 » Fax: +1 909 895 4157 » info@kwlcpa.com
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Teapioca International, LLC
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2021

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Notes receivable

Total current assets

Property and Equipment
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Leasehold Improvements and Equipment, net

Other Assets
Organizational cost
Less accumulated amortization

Total other assets

Total Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

4

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023

$

$

470,570
1,555
9,500

481,625

3,545
(2,126)
1,419

54,336
(21,732)
32,604

515,648
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Teapioca International, LLC
Balance Sheet
December 31,2021

Liabilities and Member's Equity

Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses S 960
Branding funds reserve 121,400
Credit cards payable 6,986
Deferred gift cards revenue 71,648

Total current liabilities 200,994

Long-Term Liabilities -

Equity
Member's equity 314,654
Total member's equity 314,654
Total Liabilities and Member's Equity S 515,648

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
5
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Teapioca International, LLC
Statement of Operations and Member's Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Franchise Income
Service Income

Total Income

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses
Accounting fee
Advertising and Promotion
Amortization
Automobile Expenses
Automobile Lease
Bank Service Charges
Consulting
Depreciation
Dues & Subcription
Internet & Computer
Lab Fees
Legal & Professional Fee
License & Permit
Meals & Entertainment
Office Expense
Payroll Expenses
Payroll Tax Expenses
Postage and Delivery
Rent
Repair and Maintenance
Small Equipment
Software Subscription
Telephone
Travel Expense
Website Services

Operating expenses

Income from operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
6
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81,700
735,939
817,639

2,026

815,613

15,405
19,070
3,622
1,407
3,260
95
69,900
709
9,847
10,377
28,100
54,460
235
11,592
8,047
306,167
24,081
45
6,000
22
2,205
25,610
3,380
10,196
9,921
623,753

191,860
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Teapioca International, LLC
Statement of Operations and Member's Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Non-operating income {expenses)

Other income S &
Total non-operating income (expenses) —O

Income before income taxes 191,860
Provision for income taxes (benefit) -
Net Income 191,860
Member's equity, beginning of year 201,082
Member's withdrawals 78,288
Member's equity, 12/31/2021 S 314,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
7
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Teapioca International, LLC
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income S

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable

Decrease in branding fund reserve

Increase in gift cards reserve

Increase in prepaid expenses

Increase in notes receivable

Increase in credit cards payable

Decrease in accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Amortization
Depreciation
Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Member's withdrawals
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning
Ending S

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flows

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
8
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191,860

1,971
58,076
4,828
15,134
10,300
867

(5,043)
277,993

3,622
709
4,331

(78,288)
(78,288)
204,036

266,534
470,570
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business: Teapioca International, LLC {hereinafter, “the Company”), is a Texas Domestic Limited Liability
Company formed on January 27, 2015 and is primarily engaged in the business of franchising Teapioca Lounge’s
tea bars throughout the United States. The Company’s franchisees provide high quality tea, shaved ice, smoothies and
other dessert drinks to customers in a modern lounge setting.

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies is as follows:

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less estimates made for doubtful
receivables and returns based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a timely basis. The Company extends
credit to its franchisees and generally does not require collateral. Management determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual franchisee receivables and considering a franchisee’s financial
condition and credit history, and current economic conditions. Account balances are charged against the allowance
after all collection efforts have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. Accounts
receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are
recorded when received. Actual credit loss may differ from management’s estimates. No interest has been
charged on franchisee’s accounts.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed on the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 7 years

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 amounted to $709. Expenditures for major renewals
and betterment that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized. Expenditures for repairs
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. When property and equipment are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the asset and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting profit or
loss is reflected in the statement of income for the period.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
9
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Impairment of long-lived assets: The Company reviews its long-lived assets whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Impairment is evaluated by comparing
the carrying value of the long-lived assets with the estimated future net undiscounted cash flows expected to result
from the use of the assets, including cash flows from disposition. Should the sum of the expected future net cash
flows be less than the carrying value, the Company would recognize an impairment loss at that date. An
impairment loss would be measured by comparing the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value
{estimated discounted future cash flows) of the long- lived assets.

Intangible Assets: Intangible assets primarily related to the franchise organizational cost that the Company
incurred at start-up. The intangible assets are stated at historical cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful lives of 15 years. Amortization expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021 amounted to
$3,622.

Revenue recognition: Beginning January 1, 2017, the Company adopted ASC Topic 606, “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers.” ASC Topic 606 requires the Company to recognize revenue when control of the
promised goods or services is transferred to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitle to in exchange for those goods or services. The Company
recognizes revenue based on the five criteria for revenue recognition established under Topic 606: 1)
identify the contract, 2) identify separate performance obligations, 3) determine the transaction price, 4)
allocate the transaction price among the performance obligations, and 5) recognize revenue as the
performance obligations are satisfied.

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606. Revenue are recognized when control of the
promised goods or services is transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from the initial and
establishment fees are generally recognized when all material services or conditions relating to the sale
have been substantially performed or satisfied, which is generally upon the signing of the preliminary
agreement, selection of a store site and training. The license royalties, which are based on a percentage of
gross sale, are recognized as earned, which is generally upon sale of products by franchisees. The adoption
of ASC 606 had no impact on the Company’s financial statements and related footnote disclosure as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Advertising costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. The total advertising expense was $19,070 for the
year ended December 31, 2021.

Income taxes: The Company is organized as a multiple-member limited liability company and has elected to be
taxed as a partnership for income tax purposes. As such, for federal income tax purposes, the Company’s income
and losses will be “pass-through” to its partners therefore no provisions for federal income tax is recorded on the
financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
10
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: As defined in FASB ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements,” fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (exit price). The Company utilizes market data or assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally
unobservable. The Company classifies fair value balance based on the observability of those inputs. ASC 820
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs {level 3 measurement). The carrying values of certain assets and liabilities of the
Company, such as cash equivalents, accounts receivable , inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets,
prepaid income tax, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities, approximate fair value due to
their relatively short maturities.

Concentration:

Cash and cash equivalents: The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. Accounts are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {FDIC) up to
$250,000. As of December 31, 2021, one of the Company’s bank account has exceeded the FDIC insured limits.
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

Lease: In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued guidance ("Topic 842") to increase
transparency and comparability among organizations by requiring i) recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities
on the balance sheet and ii) disclosure of key information about leasing arrangements. Some changes to the lessor
accounting guidance were made to align both of the following: i) the lessor accounting guidance with certain
changes made to the lessee accounting guidance and ii) key aspects of the lessor accounting model with revenue
recognition guidance. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim
periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020 for entities other than public business entities, and
early adoption is permitted. A modified retrospective approach is required for adoption for all leases that exist at
or commence after the date of initial application with an option to use certain practical expedients. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the Company expects the adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on its assets
and liabilities due to the recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on its balance sheet at the beginning
of the earliest period presented. The Company is continuing its assessment, which may identify additional impacts
this guidance will have on its financial statements and disclosures.

Fair Value Measurement: In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (“Topic 820”):
Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. The ASU modifies
the disclosure requirements in Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, by removing certain disclosure requirements
related to the fair value hierarchy, modifying existing disclosure requirements related to measurement uncertainty
and adding new disclosure requirements, such as disclosing the changes in unrealized gains and losses for the period
included in other comprehensive income for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements held at the end of the
reporting period and disclosing the range and weighted average of significant unobservable inputs used to develop

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
11
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Level 3 fair value measurements. This ASU is effective for all entities for annual reporting periods and interim
periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the
effect, if any, that the ASU will have on its financial statements.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, simplifying the accounting for income taxes, as part of its
initiative to reduce complexity in accounting standards. The amendments in the ASU are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2020, including interim periods therein. Early adoption of the standard is permitted,
including adoption in interim or annual periods for which financial statements have not yet been issued. The
Company is currently evaluating the effect, if any, that the ASU will have on its financial statements.

Subsequent Events: The Company evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after December 31,

2021 up through the date that financial statements are issued or available to be issued. All subsequent events
requiring recognition as of December 31, 2021 have been incorporated into these financial statements and there
are no subsequent events that require disclosure in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 855, “Subsequent Events.”

Note 2. Accounts Receivable

The Company’s Account Receivable balance as of December 31, 2021 is $1,555 which consist solely of the service
fees from the franchisees.

Note 3. Note Receivable

On December 2, 2021, the Company agreed to an area development contract with an area developer, as part of the
agreement, the Company was issued a promissory note for the remainder of the development fees. The balance on
the note as of December 31, 2021 is $9,500.

Note 4. Prepaid and Other Assets

The prepaid and other assets consist primarily of the annual point of sale software subscriptions. There is zero
balance for prepaid and other assets as of December 31, 2021.

Note 5. National Business Branding Fund

The Company collects from a percentage of gross sale a National Business Branding Fund from its franchisees to be
used in cooperative advertising and to ensure brand consistency. As of December 31, 2021, the Company has

collected $121,400 from its franchisees and this fund is reported as a current liability to represent such intention
and purpose.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
12
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

Note 6. Deferred Gift Card Revenue
Gift cards sales are recorded as deferred revenue at the time of gift card sale. Revenue is recognized and record

when the gift cards are redeemed. No gift card breakage is recognized or recorded. As of December 31, 2021, the
deferred gift card revenue amounts to $71,648.

Note 7. Operating Lease Commitment under ASC 840
The Company leases its office and warehousing facilities, and certain equipment under an operating lease expiring
August 31, 2023. For the yearended December 31, 2021, total rent expenses for office and warehousing facilities,

and equipment rental totaled $6,000.

Future minimum lease payments under the operating leases are summarized as follows:

As of August 31, Amount
2022 6,000
2023 4,000
Total S 16,000

% ok ok %k

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Teapioca International, LLC
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Lin Accountancy Corporation Audit « Tax s Advisory

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Management and Board of Directors
Teapioca International, LLC

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Teapioca International, LLC, which comprise the balance sheet
as of December 31, 2020, and the related statements of operation and members’ equity, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Teapioca International LLC as of December 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Lin Accountancy Corporation

Diamond Bar, CA
March 15, 2021

Lin Accountancy Corporation 3333 S. Brea Canyon Road, Suite 201, Diamond Bar, CA 91101 USA
Tel: +1 909 348 7228  Fax: +1 909 895 4157 * info@kwlcpa.com
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Teapioca International, LLC

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2020
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 266,534
Accounts receivable 3,526
Notes receivable 19,800
Prepaid and other assets 15,134
Total current assets 304,994
Property and Equipment
Machinery and equipment 3,545
Less accumulated depreciation (1,417)
Leasehold Improvements and Equipment, net 2,128
Other Assets
Organizational cost 54,335
Less accumulated amortization (18,110)
Total other assets 36,225
Total Assets S 343,347

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
4
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Teapioca International, LLC
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2020

Liabilities and Member's Equity

Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses S 6,003
Branding funds reserve 63,324
Credit cards payable 6,118
Deferred gift cards revenue 66,820

Total current liabilities 142,265

Long-Term Liabilities -

Equity
Member's equity 201,082
Total member's equity 201,082
Total Liabilities and Member's Equity S 343,347

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
5
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Teapioca International, LLC
Statement of Operations and Member's Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Franchise Income
Service Income
Total Income

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses
Accounting fee
Advertising and Promotion
Amortization
Automobile Expenses
Bank Service Charges
Consulting
Contributions
Depreciation
Dues & Subcription
Gift
Internet & Computer
Legal & Professional Fee
License & Permit
Meals & Entertainment
Office Expense
Payroll Expenses
Payroll Tax Expenses
Postage and Delivery
Rent
Repair and Maintenance
Small Equipment
Software Subscription
Telephone
Training Expense
Travel Expense
Website Services

Operating expenses

Income from operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
6
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79,850
452,718
532,568

532,568

24,146
14,971
3,622
2,945
584
42,770
9,495
709
3,985
285
6,790
53,311
150
20,405
5,651
209,277
16,453
11
6,000
869
1,460
23,914
1,576
441
17,828
6,195
473,843

58,725
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Teapioca International, LLC
Statement of Operations and Member's Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Non-operating income (expenses)

Other income 37,370
Total non-operating income {expenses) —37,370

Income before income taxes 96,095

Provision for income taxes (benefit) -

Net Income 96,095

Member's equity, beginning of year 104,987

Member's withdrawals -

Member's equity, 12/31/2020 S 201,082

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
7
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Teapioca International, LLC
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income S

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable

Decrease in branding fund reserve

Increase in gift cards reserve

Increase in prepaid expenses

Increase in notes receivable

Increase in credit cards payable

Increase in accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Amortization
Depreciation

Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Retained Earnings
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning
Ending S

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flows

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
8
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96,095

32,224
30,323
18,855
(3,789)
(394)
3,352
1,632
178,298

3,622
709
4,331

(120,309)
{120,309)
62,320

204,215
266,535
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2020

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business: Teapioca International, LLC {hereinafter, “the Company”), is a Texas Domestic Limited Liability
Company formed on January 27, 2015 and is primarily engaged in the business of franchising Teapioca Lounge’s
tea bars throughout the United States. The Company’s franchisees provide high quality tea, shaved ice, smoothies and
other dessert drinks to customers in a modern lounge setting.

A y of the Company’s significant accounting policies is as follows:

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less estimates made for doubtful
receivables and returns based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a timely basis. The Company extends
credit to its franchisees and generally does not require collateral. Management determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual franchisee receivables and considering a franchisee’s financial
condition and credit history, and current economic conditions. Account balances are charged against the allowance
after all collection efforts have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. Accounts
receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are
recorded when received. Actual credit loss may differ from management’s estimates. No interest has been
charged on franchisee’s accounts.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed on the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 7 years

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to $709. Expenditures for major renewals
and betterment that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized. Expenditures for repairs
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. When property and equipment are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the asset and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting profit or
loss is reflected in the statement of income for the period.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
9
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2020

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Impairment of long-lived assets: The Company reviews its long-lived assets whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Impairment is evaluated by comparing
the carrying value of the long-lived assets with the estimated future net undiscounted cash flows expected to result
from the use of the assets, including cash flows from disposition. Should the sum of the expected future net cash
flows be less than the carrying value, the Company would recognize an impairment loss at that date. An
impairment loss would be measured by comparing the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value
(estimated discounted future cash flows) of the long- lived assets.

Intangible Assets: Intangible assets primarily related to the franchise organizational cost that the Company
incurred at start-up. The intangible assets are stated at historical cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful lives of 15 years.

Revenue recognition: Beginning January 1, 2017, the Company adopted ASC Topic 606, “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers.” ASC Topic 606 requires the Company to recognize revenue when control of the
promised goods or services is transferred to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitle to in exchange for those goods or services. The Company
recognizes revenue based on the five criteria for revenue recognition established under Topic 606: 1)
identify the contract, 2) identify separate performance obligations, 3) determine the transaction price, 4)
allocate the transaction price among the performance obligations, and 5) recognize revenue as the
performance obligations are satisfied.

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606. Revenue are recognized when control of the
promised goods or services is transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from the initial and
establishment fees are generally recognized when all material services or conditions relating to the sale
have been substantially performed or satisfied, which is generally upon the signing of the preliminary
agreement, selection of a store site and training. The license royalties, which are based on a percentage of
gross sale, are recognized as earned, which is generally upon sale of products by franchisees. The adoption
of ASC 606 had no impact on the Company’s financial statements and related footnote disclosure as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Advertising costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. The total advertising expense was $14,971 for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

Income taxes: The Company is organized as a multiple-member limited liability company and has elected to be
taxed as a partnership for income tax purposes. As such, for federal income tax purposes, the Company’s income
and losses will be “pass-through” to its partners therefore no provisions for federal income tax is recorded on the
financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
10
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2020

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: As defined in FASB ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements,” fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (exit price). The Company utilizes market data or assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally
unobservable. The Company classifies fair value balance based on the observability of those inputs. ASC 820
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {level 1 measurement) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs {level 3 measurement). The carrying values of certain assets and liabilities of the
Company, such as cash equivalents, accounts receivable , inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets,
prepaid income tax, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities, approximate fair value due to
their relatively short maturities.

Concentration:

Cash and cash equivalents: The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. Accounts are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to
$250,000. As of December 31, 2020, the Company has not exceeded the FDIC insured limits. The Company has
not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

Lease: In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued guidance {"Topic 842") to increase
transparency and comparability among organizations by requiring i) recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities
on the balance sheet and ii) disclosure of key information about leasing arrangements. Some changes to the lessor
accounting guidance were made to align both of the following: i) the lessor accounting guidance with certain
changes made to the lessee accounting guidance and ii) key aspects of the lessor accounting model with revenue
recognition guidance. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim
periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020 for entities other than public business entities, and
early adoption is permitted. A modified retrospective approach is required for adoption for all leases that exist at
or commence after the date of initial application with an option to use certain practical expedients. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the Company expects the adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on its assets
and liabilities due to the recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on its balance sheet at the beginning
of the earliest period presented. The Company is continuing its assessment, which may identify additional impacts
this guidance will have on its financial statements and disclosures.

Fair Value Measurement: In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (“Topic 820”):
Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. The ASU modifies
the disclosure requirements in Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, by removing certain disclosure requirements
related to the fair value hierarchy, modifying existing disclosure requirements related to measurement uncertainty
and adding new disclosure requirements, such as disclosing the changes in unrealized gains and losses for the period
included in other comprehensive income for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements held at the end of the
reporting period and disclosing the range and weighted average of significant unobservable inputs used to develop

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2020

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Level 3 fair value measurements. This ASU is effective for all entities for annual reporting periods and interim
periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the
effect, if any, that the ASU will have on its financial statements.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, simplifying the accounting for income taxes, as part of its
initiative to reduce complexity in accounting standards. The amendments in the ASU are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2020, including interim periods therein. Early adoption of the standard is permitted,
including adoption in interim or annual periods for which financial statements have not yet been issued. The
Company is currently evaluating the effect, if any, that the ASU will have on its financial statements.

Subsequent Events: The Company evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after December 31,

2020 up through the date that financial statements are issued or available to be issued. All subsequent events
requiring recognition as of December 31, 2020 have been incorporated into these financial statements and there
are no subsequent events that require disclosure in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 855, “Subsequent Events.”

Note 2. Accounts Receivable

The Company’s Account Receivable balance as of December 31, 2020 is $3,526 which consist solely of the service
fees from the franchisees.

Note 3. Note Receivable

On November 13, 2020, the Company agreed to an area development contract with an area developer, as part of
the agreement, the Company was issued a promissory note for the remainder of the development fees. The
balance on the note as of December 31, 2020 is $19,800.

Note 4. Prepaid and Other Assets

The prepaid and other assets consist primarily of the annual point of sale software subscriptions. As of December
31, 2020 the prepaid balance of the point of sale software totaled $15,134.00

Note 5. National Business Branding Fund

The Company collects from a percentage of gross sale a National Business Branding Fund from its franchisees to be
used in cooperative advertising and to ensure brand consistency. As of December 31, 2020, the Company has

collected $63,324 from its franchisees and this fund is reported as a current liability to represent such intention and
purpose.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Teapioca International, LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2020

Note 6. Deferred Gift Card Revenue
Gift cards sales are recorded as deferred revenue at the time of gift card sale. Revenue is recognized and record

when the gift cards are redeemed. No gift card breakage is recognized or recorded. As of December 31, 2020, the
deferred gift card revenue amounts to $66,820.

Note 7. Operating Lease Commitment under ASC 840

The Company leases its office and warehousing facilities, and certain equipment under an operating lease expiring
August 31, 2023. For the year ended December 31, 2020, total rent expenses for office and warehousing facilities,
and equipment rental totaled $6,000.

Future minimum lease payments under the operating leases are summarized as follows:

As of August 31 Amount
2021 T 6000
2022 6,000
2023 4,000
Total S 16000
* ¥ ¥k kK

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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(a) Operational Developers and Franchisees.

EXHIBIT B

TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL, LLC
LIST OF FRANCHISE LOCATIONS

The following are the names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Franchisees and Area Developers as of
the date of this FDD who have paid, have a signed Ongoing Agreement and/or are operational:

Note: FA / ADA = Franchise Agreement / Area Development Agreement. The number indicated is the number
of franchise businesses purchased.

Company Name Contact Address City, ST Zip Phone
Colorado
The Coconut Boba, Colorado Springs,
LLC Larry Tran 5660 Barnes Road CO 80917 (719) 755-4823
Florida
. Thu "Vicky" . Winter Garden,
Social Tea, LLC Nguyen 1057 Island Pointe Dr EL 34787 (407) 342-9331
Jason Bubble Tea, . 3027 SW Port St. Lucie | Port St. Lucie, FL
LLC Jason Bui Blvd. 3495 (267) 640-6464
Oklahoma
Nilan Cha, LLC Zhou (Joe) Ni 1185 E. 2nd Street Eg(;‘:‘;;”d’ oK (405) 920-2152
1808 W Lindsey St. Norman, OK
My Phan, LLC Thomas Phan Ste 300 73069 (405) 701-8221
A Nhu Triep, LLC Triep Nguyen 203 S. Macarther Blvd. Oklahoma City, (405) 589-1857
OK 73128
1101 NW 23" St. Oklahoma City,
Phan Brothers Thomas Phan Suite B OK 73106 (405) 525-4108
Tue-My LLC - Unit 13415 N. Pennsylvania | Oklahoma City,
1 Thomas Phan Ave OK 73134 (405) 849-6981

Pennsylvania

Pearl Nesh, LLC -
Unit 3

Kenneth Chang

100 Sterling Drive

North Wales, PA
19454

(856) 313-6979

Pearl Um, LLC -
Unit 2

Kenneth Chang

215 Lancaster Ave Ct.
C9

Frazer, PA 19355

(856) 313-6979

JJA Group, Inc. -
Unit 1

Kenneth Chang

1200 Welsh Rd, Suite
M1

North Wales, PA
19454

(215) 647-9477

Texas

5 Stone Ventures

Elizabeth Stone

289 County Road 336

Tuscola, TX
79562

(325) 280-4299

5 Rivers Tea
Company, LLC

Patricia Gilbert

413 Painted Creek Way

Kyle, TX 78640

(512) 415-8847

AA Business and
Investments

Ravi Alamanda

TBD

TBD

(979) 450-8382
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B&K TeaVenture . 6225 N Josey Lane, Ste | Lewisville, TX

Dallas, LLC Pauline Do L114 75056 (469) 294-0445
BHCN, LLC Christina Lu gfgl‘g’ LParmer Lane, | Aqtin, TX 78727 | (512) 833-7888
Weijian Hsu 6620 Milwaukee Ave, Lubbock, TX

Confections, LLC Samantha Hsu Ste 200 79424 (661) 703-7244

Lord Wheelin' LLC

Tonya Thomas

12800 Harrisglenn Dr

Austin, TX 78753

(512) 791-8885

RC Phamily, LLC Robert Pham 510 Algaroba Loop Buda, TX 78610 (512) 740-4732
. . 1914 Wescott Avenue | Sugar Land, TX

TPL Telfair, LLC Christina Lu Ste 120 77479 (832) 886-5648

_— 1504 Aquarena Springs | San Marcos, TX )

TPL Aquarena, LLC | Christina Lu Dr.. Ste 306 78666 (512) 355-7899

TPL Arboretum, . 10000 Research Blvd, .

LLC Christina Lu Ste 137 Austin, TX 78759 | (512) 838-3656

TPL Lakeline, LLC | Christina Lu éﬁ?tglz'z'gke"”e BIVA, | Austin, TX 78717 | (512) 646-8970

TPL NGSL, LLC Christina Lu TBD Austin, TX (405) 816-6782

TPL Sky Ridge, L. Round Rock, TX

LLC Christina Lu 2000 S. IH-35, Ste. N-1 78681 (512) 887-4883

TPL Southpark, Christina Lu 2600 S.1H-35, Ste. B- | Austin, TX 78748 | (512) 215-2261

LLC 300

TPL Wolf Crossing, Christina Lu 940 W. University Georgetown, TX (512) 240-5588

LLC

Avenue

78626

Trinity Blooms,

Nam Phan (Vince)

1713 FM 685, Ste. 140

Pflugerville, TX

(512) 502-5133

LLC 78660
L. Thania Karelli . El Paso, TX
Vismilah, LLC Teran Duran 140 Montecillo, Ste A3 79912 (915) 600-5841
L. Thania Karelli El Paso, TX
Vismilah, LLC #2 Teran Duran 2601 N. Zaragoza Rd. 79938 (915) 626-6444
Thania Karelli 4860 Woodrow Bean El Paso. TX
Vismilah, LLC #3 Teran Duran and Transmountain Ste D- ’ (915) 600-5841
. 79924
Sergio Teran 404
Thania Karelli
Vismilah, LLC #4 Teran Duran and 13647 Eastlake Rd El Paso, TX (512) 571-8407
Sergio Teran
Weijian Hsu Samantha Hsu 2061 Chatsworth Austin (661) 703-7244

Confections, LLC
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(b) Area Development Agreements, and Franchise Agreements, sent but not yet Executed, as well as Executed
Preliminary Agreements, and Business Establishment Agreements not yet approved to be Franchisees. The
Following are the names, addresses and telephone numbers of the above as of the date of this FDD.

Note: FA / ADA = Franchise Agreement / Area Development Agreement. PA/EA = Preliminary Agreement /
Establishment Agreement The number indicated is the number of agreements requested / signed.

Company Name

Contact

Address

City, ST Zip

| Phone

Oklahoma

Tue-My, LLC - Unit 2

Thomas Phan

2408 Beaver Bend Lane

Yukon, OK 73099

(405) 822-6936

Tue-My, LLC - Unit 3

Thomas Phan

2408 Beaver Bend Lane

Yukon, OK 73099

(405) 822-6936

Tue-My, LLC - Unit4

Thomas Phan

2409 Beaver Bend Lane

Yukon, OK 73100

(405) 822-6937

Tue-My, LLC - Unit5

Thomas Phan

2410 Beaver Bend Lane

Yukon, OK 73101

(405) 822-6938

Pennsylvania

JJA Group, Inc. - Unit

4 Kenneth Chang TBD TBD 856-313-6979
%JA Group, Inc. - Unit Kenneth Chang TBD TBD 856-313-6979
%JA Group, Inc. - Unit Kenneth Chang TBD TBD 856-313-6979
JJA Group, Inc. - Unit Kenneth Chang TBD TBD 856-313-6979

7

Texas

Trinity Blooms - #2

Nam Phan (Vince)

803 Clemson Cove

Pflugerville, TX
78660

(510) 931-9989

Vismilah, LLC #5

Thania Karelli Teran
Duran and Sergio
Teran

TBD

TBD

(512) 571-8407

Vismilah, LLC #6

Thania Karelli Teran
Duran and Sergio
Teran

TBD

TBD

(512) 571-8407

Vismilah, LLC #7

Thania Karelli Teran
Duran and Sergio
Teran

TBD

TBD

(512) 571-8407

(c) Former Developers and Franchisees.

The following are the names, last known home addresses and home telephone numbers of all Master
Franchisees and franchisees that have been terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or
involuntarily ceased to do business under a Master Franchise Agreement as of the date of this

Note: FA/ ADA =

FDD

Franchise Agreement / Area Development Agreement.

The number indicated is the number of franchise businesses purchased.

Company Name Contact Address City, ST Zip | Phone
Texas
Venish Dhuka &
Dreamworks Afis & Monica 1914 Wescott Avenue | ROSEMPerg, TX 1 599y 999.8030
Triventure Momin 77469

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023




EXHIBITC
TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL, LLC
MANUAL TABLE OF CONTENTS OUTLINE

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023



Chapter 1: Building Your Business (56 pages)

Woman-Owned/Minority-Owned Business Advantage 4
Partnership 4
The Limited Partnership 5
The Corporation 6
Subchapter “S” Corporation 6
Limited Liability Company (LLC) 6
How To Obtain An Ein 7
YOUR STATUS AS A FRANCHISEE 8
Business Name 8
REQUIRED BANK ACCOUNTS 9
Accounts To Open 9
SPECIAL LICENSES AND PERMITS 10
REQUIRED INSURANCE COVERAGE 11
SELECTING A SPACE 13
Space Requirements 13
USER NEEDS-CONSIDERATION 14
DEMOGRAPHIC REQUIREMENTS 14
Visibility 14
Customer Spending Habits 15
Customers Travel Habits & Traffic 15
Term Length 15
Competition 15
Parking 15
Hours of Operation 16
When Needing to Open 16
LEASING A SPACE 17
Required Lease Inclusions 17
Common Lease Language 18
LEASE RIDER ADDENDUM (SAMPLE) 19
SAMPLE LOI 26
LEASE AGREEMENT 31
SIGNAGE 32
Requirements 32
Approval 34

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.dnh8gje9d6xd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.g00oefpftpil
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.g00oefpftpil
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.srqhifbkmns2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.srqhifbkmns2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ntaszdek2jqz
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ntaszdek2jqz
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.fajyc31b2wxg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.fajyc31b2wxg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.tggb98t23zvu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.tggb98t23zvu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.benxpef2686v
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.benxpef2686v
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.vgooyoycli1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.vgooyoycli1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.7karde6cq4h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.7karde6cq4h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.y726usmypzpc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.y726usmypzpc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.oee5w1mawfhi
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.oee5w1mawfhi
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.qbfxpet1npny
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.qbfxpet1npny
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.1ht8zi4zv00g
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.1ht8zi4zv00g
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.u0r9i5qp2aop
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.u0r9i5qp2aop
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.6lgquw1m25lf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.6lgquw1m25lf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.98ixykpkqe8v
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.98ixykpkqe8v
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ulyv65feblqt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ulyv65feblqt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.x9313xdl1n16
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.x9313xdl1n16
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.9qeknuljpj5j
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.9qeknuljpj5j
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.o0chzs462gb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.o0chzs462gb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ky3sxv7l0f2x
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ky3sxv7l0f2x
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.sl0bv9fdv90u
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.sl0bv9fdv90u
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.oc2sf8osyubk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.oc2sf8osyubk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.vw4optsbrt8p
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.vw4optsbrt8p
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.l6kkjyyptzz2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.l6kkjyyptzz2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.3s6z2xefto9m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.3s6z2xefto9m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.md7mojveug2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.md7mojveug2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.xfcripkp6hgn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.xfcripkp6hgn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.45uq5t1himtn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.45uq5t1himtn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ulfp8aix8rtj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ulfp8aix8rtj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.1ie3m060p95t
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.1ie3m060p95t
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.oabijfxlhcdj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.oabijfxlhcdj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.xyampy8mc107
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.xyampy8mc107

CONTRACTING UTILITIES AND SERVICES 35
Utilities 35
Regular Services 35
Occasional Services 35

PHONE SERVICE 36
Business Phone Service 36
Voicemail 36
Cellular Telephones 37

REQUIRED HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE 38
Software 38
Hardware 38

RECOMMENDED EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, AND FURNISHINGS 39

REQUIRED INITIAL INVENTORY 43

ORDERING EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 43
Utilizing Vendors 43
Products List 47

SETTING UP YOUR STORE FOR SOFT OPENING 49
Operations 49
Marketing 49
Machinery 50
Countertops 50
Cooking 51

THE BUSINESS OPENING 53
Planning A Business Opening 53
Business Opening Activities 54

THE TEAPIOCA LOUNGE COUNTDOWN-TO-OPENING SCHEDULE 56
Countdown-To-Opening Schedule 56
Four To Six Weeks Prior To Opening 56

Chapter 2: Staffing (85 pages)

INTRODUCTION 5

CONTACTING THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND STATE LABOR |6

BUREAUS

COMPLYING WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 7
Requirements By Law 7

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.sbw6y43632un
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.sbw6y43632un
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ug0v8z8zs13x
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ug0v8z8zs13x
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ag0xo0bxmrvv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ag0xo0bxmrvv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.w9p48sbukikv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.w9p48sbukikv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.myy43nsx4qz1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.myy43nsx4qz1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.qdvxb58vxdb1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.qdvxb58vxdb1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.obylm1f6etel
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.obylm1f6etel
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.4wyqmayqhsuw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.4wyqmayqhsuw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.h9w2wqm99gys
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.h9w2wqm99gys
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.s8x9k92jk6xq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.s8x9k92jk6xq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.8z6basm7nl71
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.8z6basm7nl71
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.1myhq0q2okio
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.1myhq0q2okio
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.r9njjpekeucm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.r9njjpekeucm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.t6hm9thtcx4n
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.t6hm9thtcx4n
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.bchb6mlotx4m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.bchb6mlotx4m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ajjucfet27rm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ajjucfet27rm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.af2vcjemk15u
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.af2vcjemk15u
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.vpobxoidf8q7
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.vpobxoidf8q7
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.48psshuj0e06
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.48psshuj0e06
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.epmkb8n4k7su
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.epmkb8n4k7su
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ohbywygplmg5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ohbywygplmg5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.2msdctbuczkb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.2msdctbuczkb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.c38r3au0negt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.c38r3au0negt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.62qa3hm6rvn5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.62qa3hm6rvn5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.7n13z6gempwj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.7n13z6gempwj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.rhwa7gui6h13
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.rhwa7gui6h13
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ll5frieuqhup
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.ll5frieuqhup
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.mzbr25vktzmu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Bd8EwSDfLiEp9JxM12d5ZnAEk6ZWvmy4wWEUjJLs_OU/edit#heading=h.mzbr25vktzmu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.xqrq6b2wbhb3
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.xqrq6b2wbhb3
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.5uvtxfyuj30p
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.5uvtxfyuj30p
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.5uvtxfyuj30p
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.gzb2v9f13y6c
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.gzb2v9f13y6c
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.v1gwpyh4dt46
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.v1gwpyh4dt46

THE TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL POLICY ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT 8
CREATING YOUR TEAPIOCA LOUNGE STAFF DATABASE 9
Recruiting Candidates 9
Interviewing Potential Teapioca Lounge Staff 9
Maintaining Your Staff’s Compliance 9
JOB DESCRIPTION & ROLES 10
Floor Associate/Barista 10
Master Barista [Shift Lead] 12
Assistant Manager 12
Store Manager 13
THE RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION PROCESS 14
Employee Application Form (Sample) 16
Background Investigation Consent Form (Sample) 18
Letter Of Offering (Sample) 19
Letter Of Rejection (Sample) 20
PROTECTING THE TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL SYSTEM 21
Non-Disclosure & Non-Compete Agreement (Sample) 22
OPENING PERSONNEL FILES 23
EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INFORMATION FORM 24
Employee Personal Information Form (Sample) 25
SETTING UP NEW EMPLOYEES (BACK OFFICE) 26
ORIENTATION AND TRAINING OF PERSONNEL 33
Steps For New Employees 33
THE TEAPIOCA LOUNGE UNIFORM / DRESS CODE 35
ESTABLISHING PERSONNEL POLICIES 36
Personnel Policy Worksheet (Sample) 37
EVALUATING EMPLOYEES 43
Employee Performance Review (Sample) 44
Sample Employee Progress Report 45
DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION 46
Recommendation Of How To Discipline Employees 46
Steps To Progressive Discipline 47
Grounds For Immediate Termination 48
Statement Of Warning (Sample) 49
Separation Notice (Sample) 50
Termination Notice (Sample) 51

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.9nzx0onrrg0z
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.9nzx0onrrg0z
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.exwfs18n5bhz
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.exwfs18n5bhz
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.bong72pelurq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.bong72pelurq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.ewywv69bj146
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.ewywv69bj146
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.rb20alt0urea
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.rb20alt0urea
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cgbp1z4w066y
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cgbp1z4w066y
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.isqqtvw8r3gy
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.isqqtvw8r3gy
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.k3kd1adfh0kw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.k3kd1adfh0kw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.hsa10hm2543q
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.hsa10hm2543q
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.6czwzz4fvlc1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.6czwzz4fvlc1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.phk70sxgf3ik
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.phk70sxgf3ik
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.v7aco5xqw5d5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.v7aco5xqw5d5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.rkez6pmf0jqb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.rkez6pmf0jqb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.878kj9iqzyj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.878kj9iqzyj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.uv8x9bhgqc8u
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.uv8x9bhgqc8u
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cuik5gjqlr7m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cuik5gjqlr7m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.g34mlgprj5fc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.g34mlgprj5fc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.49bx2vpywqr5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.49bx2vpywqr5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.jm42chv7xmau
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.jm42chv7xmau
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.1aiqdapa51oj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.1aiqdapa51oj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.v6ph4wjjkbww
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.v6ph4wjjkbww
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.yraxp5m4448b
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.yraxp5m4448b
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.k0q05owac0q8
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.k0q05owac0q8
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.yst3j8qamkru
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.yst3j8qamkru
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.5iytzv30v2ec
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.5iytzv30v2ec
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.gwhnjxkl2dbl
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.gwhnjxkl2dbl
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.53te541y8dze
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.53te541y8dze
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.a1bpyj5u3h50
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.a1bpyj5u3h50
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cts8nic33iwk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cts8nic33iwk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.e27bpsq1th7t
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.e27bpsq1th7t
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.db65r5fz1s91
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.db65r5fz1s91
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.typ630yohnaw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.typ630yohnaw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.qxityqepnhv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.qxityqepnhv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.vdjmq4v7kjek
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.vdjmq4v7kjek
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.taespf7hzjn5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.taespf7hzjn5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.2aoxj6mcvuxc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.2aoxj6mcvuxc

MANAGER’S MANUAL (SAMPLE)

52

Manager Role Overview 53
Purpose of Manual 53
Three Components of the Company 53
The Vision 53
Customer Service 54
Products 55
Store Locations 57
Management Philosophy 57
Responsibilities & Guidelines 58
Benefits 59
Manager Benefits 60
Paid Time Off (PTO) 60
Exceptions 60
Health Benefits 60
Profit Sharing 61
Maternity Leave 61
Paternity Leave 62
Environment 63
Maintaining a Clean, Safe Work Environment 63
Manager Communication Protocol 64
Respect 64
Appreciation 65
Encouragement 65
Conflicts of Interest 67
Overview 67
Management Conflicts 67
General Conflicts 69
Teamwork 71
Team Building Events 71
Images 71
Store Maintenance & Operations 72
Store Cleanliness 72
Operational Environment 72
Scheduling 73
Shift Types 73
Guide to Scheduling 73
Inventory 75
Fresh Produce 75
Non-Warehouse Inventory Sheet 75
Teaverse 75

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.54rdbaashym
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.54rdbaashym
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cp5ls243c625
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cp5ls243c625
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.w5782zct89fq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.w5782zct89fq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.3zjmr5hef8fu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.3zjmr5hef8fu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.kkxb13t94qde
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.kkxb13t94qde
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.6c93oylujjia
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.6c93oylujjia
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.520e1s2v55pd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.520e1s2v55pd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.1z34sqa5wd5e
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.1z34sqa5wd5e
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.4l8w8yk3ubmg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.4l8w8yk3ubmg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.vcsxx0ivp2f9
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.vcsxx0ivp2f9
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.jnmdqd5wiyjw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.jnmdqd5wiyjw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.jstkqvuttz9e
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.jstkqvuttz9e
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.27b1k81si4oi
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.27b1k81si4oi
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.ekeunnr4eo9e
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.ekeunnr4eo9e
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.i0avvmw4uglo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.i0avvmw4uglo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.qwape3h83owg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.qwape3h83owg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.yim27fmoixin
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.yim27fmoixin
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.z8l8lc4ih5rj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.z8l8lc4ih5rj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.mv84h8a8xgvw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.mv84h8a8xgvw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.6h39cds88d0h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.6h39cds88d0h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.yi8ra8bricdc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.yi8ra8bricdc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.98i4dd7ai3lb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.98i4dd7ai3lb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.muixsxa22lzr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.muixsxa22lzr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.gji49947bovw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.gji49947bovw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.w8k5fsv2a36a
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.w8k5fsv2a36a
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.hvxvmqc5p713
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.hvxvmqc5p713
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.bk8jja6182uy
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.bk8jja6182uy
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.svphhhdeeuf6
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.svphhhdeeuf6
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.c7aw84bnhlxs
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.c7aw84bnhlxs
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.11ez5yxd18ez
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.11ez5yxd18ez
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.x6x3v626x4wj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.x6x3v626x4wj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.j9v16l2m2v4f
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.j9v16l2m2v4f
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.26bhlzoxp2ui
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.26bhlzoxp2ui
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.abeb5u2f3upu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.abeb5u2f3upu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.ud4omg4mqzb8
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.ud4omg4mqzb8
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.vinqv912q60a
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.vinqv912q60a
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.9flladnuyef1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.9flladnuyef1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.wk8w8zg63the
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.wk8w8zg63the
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cbi34jwcywkg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.cbi34jwcywkg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.xvvwar1pyv1j
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.xvvwar1pyv1j
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.marm8g3bq57e
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.marm8g3bq57e

Hiring Employees 76
Applications 76
Resumés 76
Interviews 76
New Employee Documents 77
Job Classifications & Roles 78
STORE MANAGER POSITION 78
ASSISTANT MANAGER POSITION 79
MASTER BARISTA/TEAM LEADER POSITION 79
BARISTA TEAM MEMBER 80
CASHIER TEAM MEMBER 81
KITCHEN PREP TEAM MEMBER POSITION: 82
SOCIAL MEDIA MARKETING 84
EXIT POLICY 85
TEMPORARY LEAVE 85
PERMANENT LEAVE 85
Chapter 3: Store Operations (78 pages)
INTRODUCTION 5
CORRESPONDENCE AND COMMUNICATION 6
CORPORATE LEADERSHIP TEAM 7
HISTORY OF TEAPIOCA LOUNGE 8
BUSINESS OVERVIEW 9
Products And Services 9
Customer Experience 9
GENERAL DISCLAIMER 10
MISSION STATEMENT 10
NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT 10
HOW THE MANUAL IS ORGANIZED 11
Manual Organization 11
Page Layout 11
Statement Of Confidentiality 11
STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 12
MANUAL REVISIONS 14
NOTICE OF POLICY OR PROCEDURE CHANGE 15

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.hhq6zl5ddhpm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.hhq6zl5ddhpm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.xwu85454advd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.xwu85454advd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.qi84yfhq7h73
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.qi84yfhq7h73
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.8q4b3czd9u5u
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.8q4b3czd9u5u
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.igrbbi6jzz1x
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.igrbbi6jzz1x
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.xxmdhvvao3iu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.xxmdhvvao3iu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.nekf57zayjw6
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.nekf57zayjw6
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.gfmg69wj0hkf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.gfmg69wj0hkf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.9lyw2wxsbeya
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.9lyw2wxsbeya
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.g01cbegkpuck
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.g01cbegkpuck
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.h78od36gwdfv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.h78od36gwdfv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.twggcp5illu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.twggcp5illu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.adyhkjksz4by
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.adyhkjksz4by
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.8aih868s3j8s
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.8aih868s3j8s
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.obyzknewk6dh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.obyzknewk6dh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.nshsqqm43j2l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1aGylpoKHhjgtypoAwVAIrdfaypBFDqOI9s7cM5mH538/edit#heading=h.nshsqqm43j2l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.gqh577q10u2k
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.gqh577q10u2k
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kzcfvxddic8g
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kzcfvxddic8g
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ryynd0fuk86s
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ryynd0fuk86s
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.60u4xepb2mi
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.60u4xepb2mi
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.18k87quun8qg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.18k87quun8qg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.nvc9rl4vk0vs
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.nvc9rl4vk0vs
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.uwncp5f27rg4
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.uwncp5f27rg4
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.1f27sm92a8a
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.1f27sm92a8a
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.56tpb1i8uxab
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.56tpb1i8uxab
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.92afkeb80szm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.92afkeb80szm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.t45edc1y66ms
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.t45edc1y66ms
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.cjmyaine3atr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.cjmyaine3atr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.jq3tjln7lmut
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.jq3tjln7lmut
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ahds2w3ie9qb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ahds2w3ie9qb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.f06i1x22uf3o
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.f06i1x22uf3o
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.bx9kslw33qlt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.bx9kslw33qlt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.3mkfbgndculj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.3mkfbgndculj

SUBMITTING SUGGESTIONS TO THE FRANCHISOR 16
Suggested Policy Or Procedure Change 17
LIMITATIONS OF THE MANUAL 18
WELCOME LETTER 19
TEAPIOCA QUALITY ASSURANCE 20
SERVICES OF THE FRANCHISE ORGANIZATION 20
Site Selection 20
Advertising Materials And Sales Aids 20
Operations Consulting 20
Helpline 21
Website 21
Social Media 21
Electronic Newsletter 21
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FRANCHISEE 22
Responsibilities To Your Guests 22
Responsibilities To Your Employees 22
Responsibilities To The Franchisor 23
VISITS FROM THE FRANCHISOR 24
Your Field Consultant 24
THE GUEST SURVEY 26
TEAPIOCA LOUNGE DAILY PROCEDURES 28
Checklist Sample 29
SUGGESTED BUSINESS HOURS 30
SANITIZATION 31
JOB SAFETY 32
Safety And Health Requirement / Safety Hazard Citation 32
Accident And Incident Reporting 33
Minor First Aid Treatment 33
EMERGENCY MEDICAL TREATMENT 34
Emergency Phone Numbers 34
First Aid Tips 34
Workers’ Compensation 36
SAFETY RULES 36
General Safety Rules 36
Fire Safety 37

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023

10 -



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.3efo3fauh0na
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.3efo3fauh0na
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.v1jzc9e8brjw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.v1jzc9e8brjw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.vf9q6w3yubgm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.vf9q6w3yubgm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.adowelmps5yy
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.adowelmps5yy
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.7aj8wr1i4uzl
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.7aj8wr1i4uzl
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.3vux7o2ysyyw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.3vux7o2ysyyw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.bis8tuhsymwg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.bis8tuhsymwg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.go7d4lhi7vxd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.go7d4lhi7vxd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.nk7xgv0onwq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.nk7xgv0onwq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ua4e957ine4m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ua4e957ine4m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.vrz3h2i8wp5l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.vrz3h2i8wp5l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.w615ef1ddnqf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.w615ef1ddnqf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.388ohuq18kl3
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.388ohuq18kl3
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.fdec5rgyq6t
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.fdec5rgyq6t
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.twy91gjma83o
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.twy91gjma83o
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.w4tajp16csdc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.w4tajp16csdc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.khiiyge5at3q
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.khiiyge5at3q
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.9vg2z11rkkbu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.9vg2z11rkkbu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.hli1u45boklv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.hli1u45boklv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.tskx1bsg6gzp
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.tskx1bsg6gzp
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.1xxnjaej2oqv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.1xxnjaej2oqv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.x7dd31i0msxe
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.x7dd31i0msxe
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.hs65utcaqrry
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.hs65utcaqrry
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.n0glgmkqckqd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.n0glgmkqckqd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.6cdgjjsljggs
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.6cdgjjsljggs
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.x18xe14oqpw7
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.x18xe14oqpw7
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.qttojeojeulo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.qttojeojeulo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.bosylptr7gap
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.bosylptr7gap
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.oc88aijtormq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.oc88aijtormq
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.7eledpll8jr0
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.7eledpll8jr0
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kz9ikz8a1xdo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kz9ikz8a1xdo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.sarcisozpphe
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.sarcisozpphe
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.hcdyhospy0vf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.hcdyhospy0vf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.xc3vt2wc33k2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.xc3vt2wc33k2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.eh3abgmuqm1p
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.eh3abgmuqm1p

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 38
Blender Motors & Blender Jars 38
Refrigerator Maintenance 38
Furniture Wear & Tear 38

TEAPIOCA LOUNGE DAILY OPERATIONS 39

PRODUCT PREPARATION 40
Basil Seeds 40
Brown Sugar 41
Coffee — Mixing & Brewing 44
Mixing 44
Brewing 45
Cream Tea (Pre-Mixed) 46
Dried Plum Juice 47
Fresh Fruit Prep 48
Cutting Pineapple 49
Cutting Watermelon 51
Cutting Bananas 52
Cutting Mango - Fresh Fruit (Seasonal) 53
Cutting Strawberries 54
Cutting Kiwi 55
Cutting Apples 56
Cutting Oranges 57
Packaging Durian 58
Golden Fruit Juice (Fresh Fruit Tea) 59
Ice Cream 60
Lemonade (Pre-Mixed) 61
Mixing Pineapple & Strawberry Syrup 62
Mixing Strawberry Syrup 63
Puddings 64
Snowyn Blocks 65
Tapioca 66
Cooking Medium Tapioca 67
Cooking Baby Tapioca 68
Teas In Large Quantity 69
Cooking Green Tea 70
Cooking Black Tea 71
Cooking Thai Tea 72
Butterfly Herbal Tea 73
Hibiscus Herbal Tea 74
Refilling 75

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023

11-



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.v9gy5yp0x47d
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.v9gy5yp0x47d
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.epsicsj76rmt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.epsicsj76rmt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.xj8is2we79ua
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.xj8is2we79ua
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.u0qsl6gr3rg5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.u0qsl6gr3rg5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.5tb4iucv6ex9
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.5tb4iucv6ex9
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.dwt2eei0j8qp
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.dwt2eei0j8qp
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.4wwig0avyfki
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.4wwig0avyfki
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.fpzmijypyzfm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.fpzmijypyzfm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.sdt7tuvuql4n
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.sdt7tuvuql4n
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.cm64wtj8usg5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.cm64wtj8usg5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ltjno3ptmde2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ltjno3ptmde2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.xxcr0rlya9g0
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.xxcr0rlya9g0
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.4ln49wron73
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.4ln49wron73
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ap78bne1xcj5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ap78bne1xcj5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.3gp3d1qmgewm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.3gp3d1qmgewm
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.42jziyiibgcr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.42jziyiibgcr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.m4yi8l12waur
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.m4yi8l12waur
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kcphco6dvouu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kcphco6dvouu
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.7upctmj97qoa
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.7upctmj97qoa
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.8a1u8rnuxmvj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.8a1u8rnuxmvj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.i53jtxx61uyg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.i53jtxx61uyg
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.lyihubdjij0c
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.lyihubdjij0c
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ytcr5ykptsm1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ytcr5ykptsm1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.p3jbw1kwrrg8
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.p3jbw1kwrrg8
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.8qf7fsxp2ie9
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.8qf7fsxp2ie9
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.5fpfyf5s5bdr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.5fpfyf5s5bdr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.pdxoy9vdfzyo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.pdxoy9vdfzyo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.e0di0xw39vho
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.e0di0xw39vho
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kejfz8h94z3h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kejfz8h94z3h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ln603j4qbcod
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ln603j4qbcod
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.w37a3a5dlc87
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.w37a3a5dlc87
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.xzyx70fcl29h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.xzyx70fcl29h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.gk2zd8975bu5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.gk2zd8975bu5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.jsblhujtskyk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.jsblhujtskyk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.hewcpgy8k5qj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.hewcpgy8k5qj
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.4mefx41idofh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.4mefx41idofh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.jl4zi2cyx0i5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.jl4zi2cyx0i5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ymm7qvutli0o
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.ymm7qvutli0o
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.z56bpqj54avz
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.z56bpqj54avz
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.opolgqgrl7nh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.opolgqgrl7nh

Refilling Gelatin 75
Refilling Egg & Taro Pudding 76
Refilling Herbal Jelly 77
Refilling Bursters 78
Chapter 4: Sales, Marketing & Customer Service (25 pages)
INTRODUCTION 4
TEAPIOCA LOUNGE SERVICES 5
GENERATING BUSINESS 6
Potential Teapioca Lounge Guests 6
Prospect Research 6
Referrals 7
THE TEAPIOCA LOUNGE MARKETING PROGRAM 8
Business Branding Fund Contribution 8
Cooperative Advertising 8
Local Advertising 9
DEVELOPING A LOCAL MARKETING PROGRAM 10
Digital Marketing / Internet 10
Corporate Website 12
Word Of Mouth 12
Publicity 13
SAMPLE PRESS RELEASE 14
THE TEAPIOCA LOUNGE SALES PROCESS 15
Phone Protocol 15
ASSISTING NEW CUSTOMERS 16
CONDUCTING CUSTOMER SERVICE 17
Handling Guest Complaints 18
10 COMMANDMENTS FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE 19
GUIDELINES FOR USING TEAPIOCA LOUNGE TRADEMARKS 20
THE TEAPIOCA LOUNGE LOGO SPECIFICATIONS 21
Sample Logo 21
CHECKS, STATIONERY, AND BUSINESS FORMS 22
EMAIL SIGNATURE 23
OBTAINING APPROVAL FOR MARKETING CONCEPTS AND MATERIALS 24

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023

12 -



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.5uw9qz5b0st
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.5uw9qz5b0st
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kdvbr2i3cyrr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.kdvbr2i3cyrr
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.g5uh0av4kp4v
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.g5uh0av4kp4v
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.44sie4rcqoir
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1050bG08zqZXphltp0ysRpfkNU4pNeqRIqjmCUkTBMIY/edit#heading=h.44sie4rcqoir
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.13no0hh5rslw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.13no0hh5rslw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.sofyya7okkls
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.sofyya7okkls
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.hfm04tqhn13
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.hfm04tqhn13
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.hwm25at4ic8p
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.hwm25at4ic8p
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.prrd8khvjn4q
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.prrd8khvjn4q
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.rku1oxkotpdx
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.rku1oxkotpdx
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.s5vxu5pla4v5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.s5vxu5pla4v5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.8uv5m0pp8a2f
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.8uv5m0pp8a2f
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.xh9640wae0ur
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.xh9640wae0ur
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.yo4y5x1l9cwo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.yo4y5x1l9cwo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.xlhdje2iyoxn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.xlhdje2iyoxn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.sfd1u8oc8gnx
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.sfd1u8oc8gnx
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.eheoguh2dane
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.eheoguh2dane
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.l8ie3oygk6s3
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.l8ie3oygk6s3
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.kaqaj8u4j0kl
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.kaqaj8u4j0kl
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.oci24hgzhzk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.oci24hgzhzk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.6s57qw1tnmj2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.6s57qw1tnmj2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.im9s15coo97h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.im9s15coo97h
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.ts65wtdnyb1a
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.ts65wtdnyb1a
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.umq9kbumqahw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.umq9kbumqahw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.djsdpqkctlw5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.djsdpqkctlw5
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.2kndl27d7lud
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.2kndl27d7lud
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.jqm45vrybkpx
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.jqm45vrybkpx
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.t1mxfortvj2v
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.t1mxfortvj2v
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.d4wb3bi8p3ac
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.d4wb3bi8p3ac
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.bw806cgdpuos
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.bw806cgdpuos
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.yisp0saitpz8
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.yisp0saitpz8
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.f51rzxhxvqm1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.f51rzxhxvqm1

Advertising/Marketing Approval Form 25
Chapter 5: Technology (73 pages)
POS OPERATIONS 2
SETTING UP NEW EMPLOYEES (BACK OFFICE) 2
CLOCKING IN & CLOCKING OUT 9
SETTING THE TILL 11
PAY OUT 13
CLOSE TILL 15
ORDER SCREEN 19
Beverage — Creating an Order 21
Premium Tea — Creating an Order 28
Snowyn’s — Creating an Order 31
Teas Per Oz — Creating an Order 35
Food Items — Creating an Order 36
Macarons — Creating an Order 37
Misc. — Creating an Order 38
Accessories — Creating an Order 39
CREATING A GIFT CARD 40
DISCOUNTS 44
OPEN SAVED ORDERS 51
VOID TRANSACTION 55
Void Order (Unpaid) 55
Void Order (Paid) 57
OPENING THE POS FOR DAILY OPERATIONS 60
CLOSING DAILY OPERATIONS 61
Close Till 61
Batch/Tip Adjustment 66
Close the Day 69
UPDATING THE POS 73
Chapter 6: Accounting (23 pages)
INTRODUCTION 4
FRANCHISE REPORTING AND PROCEDURES 5
THE WEEKLY SALES REPORT 5
FINANCIAL REPORTS 7
Sample Advertising Activity Report 8
Annual Reports 10

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023

13-



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.tchck1cng4nt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1O2Pm7-jlikQ8euhKpb6PU8lLa_Ja-AfR8paAHHLoDGg/edit#heading=h.tchck1cng4nt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.br5voskti14
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.br5voskti14
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.uo4594kxbn5k
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.uo4594kxbn5k
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.joqr4yr0bczh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.joqr4yr0bczh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.xu5y3x83nrwk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.xu5y3x83nrwk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.rtwuy18a4wkt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.rtwuy18a4wkt
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.86xz3t8jsadl
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.86xz3t8jsadl
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.yxcrsop5axd2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.yxcrsop5axd2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.6rkdevjxe0rf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.6rkdevjxe0rf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.yif5z7qj77fo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.yif5z7qj77fo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.fy9ktclbjsyh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.fy9ktclbjsyh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.4kpd07lrrcf2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.4kpd07lrrcf2
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.n3grvc1rrl0k
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.n3grvc1rrl0k
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.cym8shx59koe
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.cym8shx59koe
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.cmud6yy3slo9
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.cmud6yy3slo9
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.z6dj7xe6havd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.z6dj7xe6havd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.o1asga1wppkn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.o1asga1wppkn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.8ewe08rfjtqe
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.8ewe08rfjtqe
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.5dkeeaqsi7bn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.5dkeeaqsi7bn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.ze9tk3gxaomd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.ze9tk3gxaomd
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.trwlpj4pjn35
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.trwlpj4pjn35
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.io8r9lbxvgjh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.io8r9lbxvgjh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.ebqrouk81nn6
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.ebqrouk81nn6
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.ys519tsl9u0y
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.ys519tsl9u0y
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.jgpfpar1r6rh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.jgpfpar1r6rh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.tqre7xbv5l9m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.tqre7xbv5l9m
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.xojkw7ehg1ky
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.xojkw7ehg1ky
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.rnjsw5sq0g10
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gbcm5JVYHPi2SxJglLEdeBc5EvM4pWf3-pGZfV43apg/edit#heading=h.rnjsw5sq0g10
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.qlhq58oa6j9l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.qlhq58oa6j9l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.8tkz46km7z6q
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.8tkz46km7z6q
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.o1g8t5uvrds0
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.o1g8t5uvrds0
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.dk4jotcjgj0j
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.dk4jotcjgj0j
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.wdjgvqxv70tp
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.wdjgvqxv70tp
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.d77aertvz935
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.d77aertvz935

PRICING TEAPIOCA LOUNGE MENU ITEMS AND SERVICES

11

PAYING TAXES 12
EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (EIN) 12
HOW TO OBTAIN AN EIN 12

When To Apply 12
IRS-REQUIRED REPORTS 13
TYPES OF FEDERAL TAXES 14

Income Tax 14
SELF-EMPLOYMENT TAX 15
SOCIAL SECURITY, MEDICARE, AND WITHHELD INCOME TAXES 15
FEDERAL TAXES: WITHHOLDING 15
UNEMPLOYMENT TAXES 16

Excise Taxes 16
STATE INCOME TAX 16
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 17

Retail Sales Tax 17

County Or Town Taxes: Sales Tax 17
PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 18
COUNTY OR TOWN BUSINESS TAX 18
PAYING ADDITIONAL FEES 20
LATE PAYMENTS 20
AUDITS 20
INSURANCE POLICIES 21
TRANSFER FEES 21
TRAINING 21
MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS AND RENOVATION 22
LEGAL FEES 22
EMERGENCY OPERATING FEES 22
RELOCATION FEES 23
ALTERNATE SUPPLIERS 23

© Shelton Law & Associates, LLC 8 June 2023

14 -



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.yqgvtmil97l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.yqgvtmil97l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.ysng2inwa6r4
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.ysng2inwa6r4
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.72hoc5ytk2rw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.72hoc5ytk2rw
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.9nfhg3yvkso7
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.9nfhg3yvkso7
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.3eesshh8gcpo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.3eesshh8gcpo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.4neulx9o1l4
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.4neulx9o1l4
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.rfzl9k7epbmn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.rfzl9k7epbmn
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.y8qar639hu5d
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.y8qar639hu5d
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.5ugjvzifqbft
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.5ugjvzifqbft
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.cqv7xmui5mvi
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.cqv7xmui5mvi
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.u0pgf4w3vlfo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.u0pgf4w3vlfo
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.sio4epf54y9o
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.sio4epf54y9o
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.37781gd868xb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.37781gd868xb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.5ycempfmlc0r
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.5ycempfmlc0r
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.jisotamebuei
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.jisotamebuei
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.xdal5bxkh8il
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.xdal5bxkh8il
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.txs8a3pfumaf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.txs8a3pfumaf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.fsi3lb6plllb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.fsi3lb6plllb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.ludf7dpyt3jv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.ludf7dpyt3jv
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.qutidesaogcy
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.qutidesaogcy
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.gzkr4etvj5l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.gzkr4etvj5l
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.yjy9l9vjt22f
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.yjy9l9vjt22f
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.rngh6y1iv623
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.rngh6y1iv623
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.b9jgx7swfcgb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.b9jgx7swfcgb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.80ul3vsbgzb7
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.80ul3vsbgzb7
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.hrtsi8mxmcc1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.hrtsi8mxmcc1
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.f241it1tpjkh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.f241it1tpjkh
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.chlny5k9hgkb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.chlny5k9hgkb
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.k5n832ffeaf3
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.k5n832ffeaf3
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.e56i9yujzyqc
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hHQgYMnlYopuSdadG8xbbBywkgMPqYYxpgW7fSBBDa4/edit#heading=h.e56i9yujzyqc

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT: ITEM 6 & OTHER FEES 23

MODIFICATIONS 23

We have a compilation of Five (5) Manual(s) and materials that total 597 pages. Failure to
follow the mandatory specifications, standards or operating procedures in the Manuals, as amended
from time to time, may constitute a material breach of the Ongoing Franchise Agreement. If such a
material breach is not cured within thirty (30) days of receipt of the written notice from Us of default,
We may terminate the Ongoing Franchise Agreement. (Ongoing Franchise Agreement, Section 16.2)
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EXHIBITD

TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL, LLC

TRAINING OUTLINE

Subject * Hrs. of Hours of Location /
Training ! |On-the-job Instructor(s) ®
Training
Orientation, Customer Service, Company 9 Our Location
e 4
Culture & Vision
Safety & Security 1 1 Our Location
Teapioca Staff Hiring & Expectations 2 4 Our Location
General Operations Review 10 60 Our Location
Electronics Training 2 4 Our Location
Billing and Payment Accounting 4 4 Our Location
Vendor Relationships & Ordering 1 4 Our Location
Recommended form review 1 1 Our Location
Problem Solving 2 4 Our Location
Review and Testing 1 4 Our Location
Soft Opening Training Your Teapioca
2 32 .
Location
Grand Opening Your Teapioca
2 8 .
Location
Total Training Hours 30 160
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EXHIBITE

TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL, LLC
ONGOING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

October 1, 2022

Teapioca of , Franchise Unit #

By and Between

TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL, LLC, FRANCHISOR
and

JOE FRANCHISE LOCATION, LLC, FRANCHISE
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ONGOING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

SUMMARY PAGE(S)

EFFECTIVE DATE:

1st day of October, 2021

FRANCHISEE:

Joe Franchise Location, LLC

FRANCHISEE’S
ADDRESS FOR
NOTICES:

TELEPHONE
NUMBER:

EMAIL ADDRESS:

FRANCHISE
LOCATION:

DISCOUNTS:

10% off the Initial Fees for Franchisee’s first unit for U.S. military who would be
eligible for the VetFran membership

INITIAL FRANCHISE
FEE:

Zero Dollars ($0.00) for a single unit. Franchisor acknowledges previous receipt of
the Site Selection and Real Estate Training Fee and the Business Establishment
Training Fee

INITIAL TERM:

Ten (10) years

GRAND OPENING
EXPENDITURE:

Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00)

ROYALTY FEE:

Five percent (5%) of Gross Sales

BUSINESS BRANDING
FUND FEE:

Two percent (2%) of weekly Gross Sales. Franchisee can earn a lower percent of
one percent (1%) of weekly Gross Sales. To qualify for the one percent (1%)
branding fee Franchisee’s Gross Sales must reach Five Hundred Thousand Dollars
($500,000.00) during any fiscal year (January 1st through December 31st). Once
Franchisee has qualified for the lower fee the fee will remain the same for the rest of
the term.

LOCAL
ADVERTISING
REQUIREMENT:

Franchisee must spend at least One Thousand and Fifty-One Dollars ($1,051.00) on
local advertising per month, proven by the submitting the required report and receipts
discussed herein.

TECHNOLOGY & One Hundred Thirty-Five Dollars ($135.00) per week, further discussed in Section
INTRANET FEE: 3.7
ANNUAL

CONVENTION FEE:

One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars $1,500.00 for two attendees
(Non-attendance incurs an additional penalty of $2,000.00)

RENEWAL FEE:

The Renewal fee is equal to Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars
(%$8,750.00) due at the time of submitting the request to renew.
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RENEWAL TERM:

Franchisee’s right to a successor franchise is limited to one (1) successive term of
ten (10) years

TRANSFER FEE:

Transfer Fee payable to Franchisor upon notice is Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000.00); plus a Transfer Training Fee of Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00)

MINIMUM SALES

Franchisee must meet or exceed Seventy Thousand Dollars ($70,000.00) in Gross

VOLUME: Sales during the first quarter (3 months) you are in operation and will increase by
fifteen (15%) each calendar year for the next year’s quarters for the first three (3) years
Franchisee is in operation.

REPLACEMENT OF Franchisee will pay the One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00) fee if

OPERATION Franchisor must supply another set of Manual(s), either electronic or a hard copy

MANUAL(S): version. This is a penalty, not a replacement cost, for not keeping Franchisor’s

confidential information safe.

SITE SELECTION
DEADLINE DATE:

pursuant to Section 2.3

TRAINING
DEADLINE DATE:

pursuant to Section 16.4

OPEN FOR BUSINESS
DEADLINE DATE:

pursuant to Sections 5.4 and 16.2

FRANCHISEE’S (A portion of ) The Metropolitan Statistical Area, MSA which is
TERRITORY:
MEDIATION Mediation required in the State of Texas for all disputes
REQUIRED:
FRANCHISE The Approved Location shall be known as “Teapioca of ”
LOCATION
IDENTIFIER:
FRANCHISOR Teapioca International, LLC
ADDRESS FOR Attn: Franchise Operations
NOTICES: 1000 Gattis School Road, Ste. 640,
Round Rock, Texas 78664
with copy to:
Teapioca International
c/o Shelton Law & Associates, LLC
1320 Arrow Point Drive, Ste 501
Cedar Park, TX 78613
ACH BANKING
INFORMATION FOR Financial Institution Name:
FRANCHISEE:

Branch:

City: State: Zip:

Phone:

ACH/Routing Number:

(Must be Nine Digits)

Account Number:
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Even though this Agreement contains provisions requiring Franchisee to operate the Business
and the Franchised Business in compliance with the System: (1) Franchisor does not have authority
to control the day-to-day conduct and operation of Franchisee’s business or employment decisions;
and (2) Franchisee and Franchisor do not intend for Franchisor to incur any liability to third parties
in connection with or arising from any aspect of the System or Franchisee’s use of the System,
whether or not in accordance with the requirements of the Manuals.

Nothing in this Agreement or any related Agreement is intended to disclaim the
representations Franchisor made in the Franchise Disclosure Document. The submission of this

Agreement to Franchisee does not constitute an offer to Franchisee, and this Agreement shall become
effective only upon execution by Franchisor and Franchisee.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby have duly
executed and delivered this Agreement on the Effective Date, and hereby accepts and approves the attached
Franchise Agreement, with its Exhibits 1-14. Franchisee hereby acknowledges that the Exhibits include
Non-Competition and Non-Disclosure items, Personal Guaranty’s and the requirement to abide by the laws
under the United States Department of Homeland Security to name just a few. This Agreement was
requested to be sent electronically for ease of signing, and is hereby acknowledged by the parties that both
Parties have and had the ability prior to signing to review the final Franchise Agreement in its entirety and
the ability to have it reviewed by their respective legal and financial counsel, or advisors of their choosing.

The Parties intend to be bound by all the terms of the Franchise Agreement and all its attached Exhibits,
including specifically, the clauses and terms of:
¢ Non-Disclosure and Non-Competition Agreement attached as Exhibit 2
The Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations attached as Exhibit 3
Holders of Legal or Beneficial Interest attached as Exhibit 4
The Applicable State Addendum attached as Exhibit 5
The Trademarks Guidelines attached as Exhibit 6
The Truthfully filled out Franchise Disclosure Questionnaire attached as Exhibit 7
The ACH Withdrawal Form attached as Exhibit 8
The Telephone Number Assignment Agreement and Power of Attorney attached as Exhibit 9
The Credit and Security Agreement attached as Exhibit 10
The Territory attached as Exhibit 11
The Lease Addendum attached as Exhibit 12
The Homeland Security Agreement attached as Exhibit 13
The Promissory Note attached as Exhibit 14, as applicable

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Name:

Title:
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GUARANTY AND OBLIGATIONS OF GUARANTORS, PURSUANT TO EXHIBIT 3 ATTACHED

FRANCHISEE PERSONAL GUARANTOR FRANCHISEE PERSONAL GUARANTOR
Personally, and Individually (Printed Name) Personally, and Individually (Printed Name)
Personally, and Individually (Signature) Personally, and Individually (Signature)
HOME ADDRESS HOME ADDRESS

TELEPHONE NO.: TELEPHONE NO:

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP

IN FRANCHISEE: % IN FRANCHISEE: %

Social Security #: Social Security #:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Franchisor hereby agrees to award the attached Franchise Agreement
opportunity to the above listed individuals and their legal entity, as listed as the Franchisee, based upon the
terms and conditions contained in this Franchise Agreement, and all its Exhibits currently numbered 1
through 14.

FRANCHISOR:

TEAPIOCA INTERNATIONAL, LLC

By:

Name: Bao Phan

Title: Chief Executive Officer
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ONGOING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Ongoing Franchise Agreement (“Franchise Agreement”) made as of the Effective Date shown
on the Franchise Agreement Summary Page by and between the Franchisor, shown on the Franchise
Agreement Summary Page, (hereinafter also known as “We” “Us” “TPI” or “Teapioca”) and the
Franchisee, shown on the Franchise Agreement Summary Page whose principal address is also listed on
the Franchise Agreement Summary Page (“Franchisee”, “You”, “Your” and “Yours”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor has developed, and is in the process of further developing, a System
identified by the trademark “Teapioca Lounge” and relating to the establishment and operation of a
franchised business, (hereinafter “Franchised Business” or “TPI”) providing high quality, boba, bubble tea
and dessert drink confections; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor has developed a business plan and method of establishing, conducting and
operating the Franchised Business emphasizing prompt and courteous service in a friendly and helpful
atmosphere which is intended to be attractive to patrons and utilizing certain standards, specifications,
methods, procedures, techniques, management techniques, proprietary marks, commercial symbols, trade
dress, Know-How and other proprietary or confidential information, as they may be improved, and further
developed from time to time hereafter by Franchisor (the "System"); and

WHEREAS, the distinguishing characteristics of the System include, without limitation, the trade
names, Know-How, trademarks, trade dress, and service marks and associated logos and symbols set forth
on Exhibit 6 attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference, and such other marks as Franchisor may
develop from time to time hereafter and designate for use in connection with the System (the "Marks"); the
trade dress of the Business; signage, decorations, equipment, furnishings and materials, as necessary; the
Confidential Operations Manual; uniform operating methods, procedures and technigues; methods and
techniques for inventory and cost controls, record keeping, reporting, personnel management, and
purchasing (all of which may be improved and further developed by Franchisor from time to time); all such
Marks and other distinguishing characteristics being owned by Franchisor; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor grants to qualified persons and business entities the right to own and operate
Teapioca Businesses using the System and the Marks; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee has completed successfully a Site Selection and Real Estate Training
Course and the Business Establishment Training Course, and desiring to operate a Teapioca Franchised
Business, has applied for an Ongoing Franchise Agreement and such application has been approved by
Franchisor in reliance upon all of the representations made herein and therein; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee acknowledges that it is essential to the maintenance of the high standards
of the System, and to the preservation of the integrity of the System and the Marks and goodwill of the
Franchisor, that each Franchisee in the System maintain and adhere to certain uniform standards, procedures
and policies hereinafter described, and operate the Franchised Business in strict conformity with
Franchisor's standards and specifications; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor has, and continues to develop, use, protect, and control the Marks for the
benefit and exclusive use of itself and its Franchisees in order to identify for the public the source of the
products and/or services marketed under the System and to represent the System's high standards of quality;
and
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WHEREAS, the establishment and maintenance of a close working relationship with Franchisee
and Franchisee's adherence to the tenants of Franchisor's System constitute the essence of this Ongoing
Franchise Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee desires, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein, to enjoy the
benefits of operating under the System and of using the Marks and to be licensed to operate a Business in
strict accordance with the standards and specifications of the System; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee has had a full and adequate opportunity to be thoroughly advised of the
terms and conditions of this Ongoing Franchise Agreement by counsel of its own choosing; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor requires that the Franchisee and the
Designated Manager must speak, read and write in English.

WHEREAS, Franchisor is willing to grant Franchisee a license under the System and the Marks
to operate a Franchised Business, subject to Franchisee's strict compliance with the terms and conditions of
this Agreement and in reliance upon Franchisee's representations made in this Agreement and in
Franchisee's application to become a Franchisee under the System.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties
hereto agree as follows:

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

Note: All fixed dollar amounts or fixed percentage amounts stated, or used in the Development
Agreement and any Addenda may, in our sole discretion, be adjusted as of January 1% of each year in
proportion to the changes in the CPI (Consumer Price Index) (U.S Average, all items) maintained by
U.S Department of Labor (or such equivalent index as may be adopted in the future) between January
1% of the previous year and January 1st of the then-current year (the “Index”). Each adjustment will
be made effective as of January 1% based on the January Index, but the 1% adjustment will not be made
until the 2" January following the Agreement Date (i.e., for an Agreement Date of July 1, 2020, the 1%
adjustment would be effective as of January 1, 2022). Our failure to adjust any fixed dollar amounts
due to changes in the Index at any time does not constitute a waiver of our right to make future
adjustments. However, we will not impose such adjustments retroactively.

Whenever used in this Agreement, the following words and terms have the following meanings:

“Additional Training” means Franchisor shall charge Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per day for
additional training for additional trainees at Franchisors facility. Further description and requirements can
be found in the terms contained in Section 8.7;

“Additional Operations Assistance” means upon Franchisee request, and Franchisor approval,
Franchisor may provide Additional Operations Assistance to the benefit of Franchisee, for no more than
sixty (60) days or the number of maximum days and at the rates published in the Manual; currently, per
eight (8) hour day, Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) plus Franchisor’s expenses. Further description and
requirements can be found in the terms contained in Section 8.9;

“Affiliate” means any business entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with Franchisor;

“Agreement” means this agreement entitled “Teapioca International, LLC Franchise Agreement”
and all instruments supplemental hereto or in amendment, exhibit or confirmation hereof;

“Approved Location” means the site for the operation of the Franchised Business selected by
Franchisee and approved in writing by Franchisor;

“Approved Location Identifier” means the Franchisor Approved Identifier for Franchisees
Location, as listed on the Summary Page, to be used in consumer and public facing marketing, fictious
name filings, and other related uses;

“Approved Supplier(s)” means only those companies, and vendors who provide the services,
product items, supplies, signs, equipment and other items Franchisor from time to time approves (and which
are not thereafter disapproved) and that comply with Franchisor’s specifications and quality standards.
Franchisor shall provide Franchisee, in the Manual(s) or other written or electronic form, with a list of
Approved Suppliers. Further description and requirements can be found in the terms contained in Section
13.1;

“Business Branding Fund” means the collective fund supplied by the Business Branding Fund
Contributions by all Franchisees which allows the Franchisor to establish and administer national or
regional marketing, pursuant to the terms in Section 11.3, Franchisor anticipates not utilizing more than
one percent (1%) towards administration fees. This shall have the same meaning as the term Marketing
Fund and each may be interchanged throughout this Agreement;
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“Business Branding Fund Contribution” means paying weekly to Franchisor two percent (2%)
of Gross Sales collected by ACH from the Electronic Depository Transfer Account, for the previous week
ending the last full day of the preceding week, which will be credited to the collective Franchisee Marketing
Fund, pursuant to the terms in Section 3.3, often referred to as Marketing Fund Contributions; To qualify
for the lower branding fee of one percent (1%) of Gross Sales, Franchisee’s Gross Sales must reach Five
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) during any fiscal year (January 1st through December 31st).
Once Franchisee has qualified for the lower fee the lower fee will apply for the remainder of the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement term and any subsequent Renewal terms.

To receive the lower one percent (1%) Business Branding Fund, Franchisee must notify Franchisor
via the Weekly Sales Report of Franchisee’s qualification, Franchisor will then verify Franchisee’s
qualification as described in the Manual(s) and the following week the one percent (1%) will be due.

“CPI” means the Consumer Price Index, further discussed in Article 3 of this Agreement;

“Competitive Business” means any business that offers or provides (or grants franchises or
licenses to others to operate a business that offers or provides) boba, bubble tea and dessert drink
confections that are offered or supplied by Teapioca Franchisees at the date of Franchisee’s termination or
separation from Franchisor, which are the same as or similar to those provided by Teapioca Businesses or
in which Trade Secrets or other Confidential Information could be used to the disadvantage of Franchisor,
any Affiliate or Teapioca’s other Franchisees; provided, however, that the term “Competitive Business”
shall not apply to (a) any business operated by Franchisee under a franchise agreement with Franchisor, (b)
any business operated by a publicly-held entity in which Franchisee owns less than a five percent (5%)
legal or beneficial interest, (c) any business operated by Franchisee or its Affiliate(s) that has been disclosed,
in writing, to Franchisor and Franchisor has acknowledged in writing, prior to the Effective Date of this
Agreement, or (d) any business such as a marketing or scheduling company whose primary business is not
affiliated with the boba, bubble tea and dessert drink confections industry;

“Confidential Information” means technical and non-technical information used in or related to
Teapioca Businesses and not commonly known by or available to the public, including, without limitation,
Trade Secrets and any other information identified as confidential when delivered by Franchisor.
Confidential Information shall not include, however, any information established by documentary evidence
that: (a) is now or subsequently becomes generally available to the public through no fault of Franchisee;
(b) Franchisee can demonstrate was rightfully in its possession, without obligation of nondisclosure, prior
to disclosure pursuant to this Agreement; (c) is independently developed without the use of any Confidential
Information; or (d) is rightfully obtained from a third-party who has the right, without obligation of
nondisclosure, to transfer or disclose such information;

“Confidential Information Fee” means a one-time fee which covers Your access to the
Manual(s), in which You are required to maintain an up-to-date copy of all Manual(s);

“Cooperative Advertising” means the combined advertising program that more than one (1)
Franchisee established within a common market for Teapioca Businesses within a particular region.
Franchisee will pay an equal amount as all other Franchisees in the Cooperative;

""Covered Person' means (i) the individual executing this Agreement as Franchisee; (ii) each
officer, director, shareholder, member, manager, trustee, or general partner and Manager of Franchisee and
each Franchisee Affiliate if Franchisee is a Business entity; and (iii) the spouse, adult children, parents,
collaterals, or siblings of the individuals included in (i) and (ii). A collateral relative is any blood relative
who is not your direct ancestor. Franchisee ancestors are the individuals included in (i) and (ii)’s parents,
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grandparents, great-grandparents, etc., and their collateral relatives are cousins, nieces, nephews, aunts,
uncles, siblings, etc. Covered Person shall mean an individual who falls within the identified categories
where on the Effective Date or later during the Term of this Agreement, and all successive Renewal
Agreements;

""Customer(s)" means any person or entity that purchases or receives goods or services from
Franchisee, as applicable;

“Customer Service Fees” means the reimbursement of costs and expenses to Franchisor by
Franchisee if Franchisor determines it is necessary for Franchisor to provide service directly to the
Franchisees Customer(s);

“Effective Date” means the date set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement which
commences this Agreement’s effectiveness and term;

“Electronic Depository Transfer Account” means an account established at a national banking
institution approved by Franchisor and providing Franchisor with access to electronically withdraw any
funds due Franchisor;

“Establishment Agreement Fee” means the previously paid amount of Twenty-Four Thousand
Dollars ($24,000.00) paid to the Franchisor for access to the Business Establishment Training Course
information provide under the Establishment Agreement;

"Former Franchisee' means any Teapioca Franchisee(s) that have been terminated or whose
Franchise Agreements have expired naturally under the terms of those Franchise Agreements;

“Franchise” means the right granted to Franchisee by Franchisor to use the System and the Marks,
while not in Default;

“Franchised Business” means the business to be established and operated by Franchisee pursuant
to this Agreement, often also referred to as the Teapioca Business, which shall have the same meaning;

“Franchisee” means the individual or entity defined as “Franchisee” in the introductory paragraph
of this Agreement;

“Franchisor” means Teapioca International, LLC;

“Franchisor Indemnitees” means Franchisor, any Affiliate, all holders of a legal or beneficial
interest in Franchisor and/or any corporate parent, any corporate subsidiaries, affiliates, successors, assigns,
and designees of either entity and their respective directors, officers, employees, agents, shareholders,
designees, and representatives of each, members, partners, owners, employees, agents, successors and
assigns as further discussed in Section 21.3;

“Good Cause” means the failure of Franchisee to substantially comply with the lawful
requirements imposed upon Franchisee by this Franchise Agreement;

“Good Faith” means the honest intent to act without taking an unfair advantage over another

person or to fulfill a promise to act, even when some legal technicality is not fulfilled. Franchisee has a duty
to act according to the Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing with Franchisor;
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“Grand Opening Advertising” means the Grand Opening Celebration cost of Ten Thousand
Dollars ($10,000.00) for Franchisee’s location. “Opening” includes thirty (30) days prior to opening
Franchisees Franchised Business through sixty (60) days after opening Franchisees Franchised Business to
the public, as further discussed in Section 8.2;

“Gross Sales” means the aggregate of all income and monthly fees Franchisee receives from
Customers, or any other person or business entity for the Franchised Business in connection with the
Franchised Business (whether or not in accordance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement) for the
purchase or provision of any goods or services, including gift cards, or industry fees, and whether for check,
cash, credit or otherwise, from the sale of products and services (including service charges in lieu of
gratuity) regardless of the dollar amount Franchisee sells each product or service for, including, without
limitation, all proceeds from any business interruption insurance, but excluding (a) all insurance payments,
check, cash, credit or debit card refunds made in good faith provided, prior to granting the refunds, the
revenue related to the refunds was included in Gross Sales, (b) any sales and equivalent taxes that
Franchisee collects for or on behalf of and pays to any governmental taxing authority, and (c) any rebate
Franchisee receives from a manufacturer or supplier;

“Gross Sales Reports” has the meaning given to such term in Section 12.2;

“Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing” means that Franchisee will act In Good
Faith and deal fairly without breaking their word, using shifty means to avoid obligations or denying what
the other party obviously understood,;

“Incapacity” means the inability of Franchisee to operate or oversee the operation of the
Franchised Business on a regular basis by reason of any continuing physical, mental or emotional condition,
chemical dependency or other limitation;

“Internet” means any one (1) or more local or global interactive communications media that is
now available, or that may become available, including, but not limited to, sites and domain names on the
World Wide Web (1) and (2);

“Initial Fees” means paying the training course fees totaling Thirty-Four Thousand Dollars
($34,000.00) for both course certifications, which include Business Establishment Course Fee of Twenty-
Four Thousand Dollars ($24,000.00), and the Site Selection and Real Estate Training Course Fee of
Nineteen Thousand Dollars ($19,000.00), Additional terms are contained in Section 3.1;

“Initial Term” shall be ten (10) years as more fully defined in Section 4.1;
“Initial Training” shall have the meaning as described in Section 8.1;

“Insurance Requirements” means Franchisee shall procure within thirty (30) days of the
Effective Date, and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the types of
insurance listed below from an A- or better rated Insurance company. Franchisee, pursuant to Article 15 of
this Agreement, shall have a minimum amount of coverage on the Franchised Business, in the following
categories:

a) “all risk” property insurance, including business interruption insurance, customarily
obtained by similar businesses in Franchisees general area to cover, at a minimum, all assets
including inventory, furniture, fixtures, equipment, supplies and other property used in the
operation of the Teapioca Franchised Business;

b) General commercial liability insurance, including Cyber Liability coverage, in an amount
of not less than $2,000,000.00 per occurrence with a $2,000,000.00 general aggregate;
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c) Comprehensive general liability insurance, including products and contractual, in an
amount of not less than $100,000.00 per occurrence with a $300,000.00 general aggregate;

d) Workers’ compensation insurance for statutory limits and employer’s liability insurance
in an amount not less than $300,000.00;

e) Sexual/physical abuse insurance of not less than $100,000.00 per occurrence with a
$300,000.00 general aggregate;

f)  Anumbrella policy in amount of not less than $2,000,000.00;

g) Automobile liability coverage, including coverage of owned, non-owned and hired
vehicles with coverage in amounts not less than $100,000.00 combined single limit;

h) Franchisor reserves the right to change the amount of insurance coverage requirements;

“Key Accounts” means any (a) potential or existing commercial customer that has multiple sites,
offices, or retail premises, at least one of which is located outside Your Territory, (b) any retail,
manufacturing or wholesale company, contractor, or similar business whose clientele or employees
includes potential customers for regular services or products or team building exercises, and (c) operators
of web sites (or similar referral sources) that offer to refer customers to Franchisor or Franchisees for a
fee;

“Late Fee” and “Insufficient Funds Fee” means Fifty Dollars ($50.00) as a late fee per incident
plus eighteen percent (18%) interest; plus, legal late and bank fees, if applicable;

“Local Advertising Spend” means a minimum contribution of One Thousand and Fifty-One
Dollars ($1,051.00) per month, further discussed in Section 3.4;

“Local Advertising” means the services required to fulfill Franchisee’s local marketing
requirements through Franchisee's own effort or by contracting with an Approved Supplier, if any.
Franchisee may choose to spend any amount on Local Advertising they wish; however, it may not ever fall
below the minimum spend amount discussed above. You must use only pre-approved advertising pieces in
commerce. If Franchisor does not approve the advertising or promotions piece that Franchisee submits for
approval within 14 day(s), the advertising piece is deemed denied and Franchisee may not use them.
Marketing methods utilized may include but not be limited to those contained within the Manual(s), and
approved advertising materials such as Newspaper ads, Direct Mail, Coupon Direct Mail CoOps, Print
Media and Business to Business marketing efforts within Franchisees Exclusive Territory, and non-
monetary sponsorships within the community or gifts to select Customers in the community, such as
military, police, fireman, or other service people. Requirements for Local Advertising are further discussed
in Sections 3.4 and 11.1;

“Manager” means the person designated in writing by Franchisee and approved in writing by
Franchisor who has primary responsibility for managing the day-to-day affairs of the Franchised Business,
also known as “Designated Director”, and if Franchisee is an individual and not a business entity, the
Manager shall be the Franchisee;

“Manual” means the Teapioca Operations Manual(s), which consist of Five (5) or more separate
manuals and other materials as designated by Franchisor and may be in written or electronic form, and any
other items as may be provided, added to, changed, modified or otherwise revised by Franchisor from time
to time. They include or contain or describe the standards, methods, procedures and specifications of the
System, including other operations, administration and Managers’ manuals and all books, computer
programs, password-protected portions of an Internet site, pamphlets, memoranda and other publications
prepared by, or on behalf of, Franchisor. Replacement costs are as stated on the Summary Pages of this
Agreement;
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“Marketing Fund” shall have the same meaning as Business Branding Fund;

“Marketing Fund Contributions” shall have the same meaning as Business Branding Fund
Contributions;

“Marks” means the trademark “Teapioca Lounge” and such other trade names, trademarks, service
marks, trade dress, designs, graphics, logos, emblems, insignia, fascia, slogans, drawings, patents and other
commercial symbols as Franchisor may designate to be used in connection with Teapioca Businesses,
whether or not registered or recognized by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, or any other Agency no
matter where located. Registered Marks are shown on Exhibit 6 attached hereto;

“Minimum Sales Volume” means the stated amount on the Summary Page for Franchisee’s
minimum annual Gross Sales, pursuant to the terms in Section 2.7;

"Money Flow" is utilized to describe how the Franchisee gets paid and pays its fees under this
Agreement;

“National or Regional Meetings” means that Franchisor provides annual training at the National
or Regional Meeting aka Annual Convention, and that Franchisor will provide all entrance fee costs for up
to two people. Franchisee’s attendance is mandatory. Franchisee shall pay for all expenses including travel,
room and board, as well as the One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00) for two attendees by the
first Week in September annually. If Franchisee signs the Ongoing Franchise Agreement during the months
of September through June, Franchisee shall prepay the first years National Convention Fee upon signing
the Ongoing Franchise Agreement. Additional attendees are recommended and will be billed at Seven
Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750.00) per additional attendee. If Franchisee fails to attend the Annual
Convention Franchisee will incur an additional non-attendance penalty of Two Thousand Dollars
(%$2,000.00) or as listed in the Manual(s) Further description and requirements can be found in the terms
contained in Section 8.10;

“Non-Traditional Location” describes a location which is not a traditional Teapioca Lounge®
location. Such locations include but are not limited to sporting venues and convention halls; state and
national parks; airports, train depots and other transit centers; hotels; cruise ships; college and university
campuses; state and federal military installations; underwater structures; and any building or structure not
permanently affixed to the ground;

“Ongoing Training and Special Assistance” means if Franchisor must deal directly with the
Franchisee’s Customers, Franchisee’s vendors or others directed by Franchisee, Franchisee will pay the
Additional Assistance fee equal to the then-current daily rate as set forth in the Manual(s). Additionally,
Franchisor has the right to require that the Franchisee, Manager, Franchisee’s other managers and/or
employees attend ongoing training programs or seminars. Further description and requirements can be
found in the terms contained in Section 8.6;

“Opening” shall be defined as the time period of thirty (30) days directly before, and continuing
through sixty (60) days directly following the date the Franchised Business is anticipated to be open to the
public;

“Opening Advertising” has the meaning given to such term in Section 11.1;

“Prospective Supplier Evaluation” means the reimbursement of all costs associated with the
obtaining of the approval of new or prospective product or suppliers and all costs associated with that
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process plus, the payment of a One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00) fee. If Franchisee wishes to have
Franchisor test out a new supplier, the new supplier will go through a one hundred twenty (120) day
approval timeframe and test marketing for at least ninety (90) days. Test marketing shall consist of a
minimum of ninety and a maximum of ninety and must be tested at the Franchisee’s location as well as
possibly a corporate store. For additional requirements see “Vendor and Product Approval Requirements”
below;

“Refresh, Refurbishment and Modification to the System” means Franchisee shall refresh the
floors, walls, seating and signage including vehicle wraps, if you have them, to like-new condition at
minimum every three (3) years, or as needed to maintain the like-new condition. The expense of such
maintenance shall be borne by Franchisee and shall be in addition to any required System modifications, as
described in Section 10.2. Further, Franchisee shall be required to refurbish and update the Approved
Location throughout the term of this Agreement as necessary and/or as directed by Franchisor with an
overall refurbishment every seven (7) years, if the Teapioca Business is open to vendors, contractors, or the
public.

“Relocation Fee” would be paid only in the event if it is agreed upon in writing by both Franchisee
and Franchisor, that Franchisee is allowed to relocate the Franchised Business. If approved, Franchisee will
owe a Ten Thousand Dollar ($10,000.00) Relocation Evaluation Fee, or as updated in the Manual(s) from
time to time, payable to Franchisor. Any such relocation will be at Franchisee’s sole expense, and must
follow the requirements of Section 5.8 of this Agreement including all timeframes. Franchisor has the right
to charge for any costs incurred in providing assistance to Franchisee, including, legal and accounting fees.

“Required Pricing Parameters” means that Franchisee cannot raise the product / services more
than twenty percent (20%) above the stated Suggested Retail in the Manual(s), which Franchisor can modify
from time to time with thirty (30) days’ notice to Franchisee;

“Renewal Fee” means the amount equal to Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars
($8,750.00) due at the time of submitting the written request to renew the Ongoing Franchise Agreement
for another Term of ten (10) years (“Renewal Term”) not less than nine (9) months prior to the end of the
Initial Term. Franchisor shall have the right to inspect the Location and notify Franchisee, pursuant to
Section 10.2, of all requirements for maintenance and refurbishment, at least ninety (90) days prior to the
expiration of the Initial Term. Franchisee shall agree to complete at its expense and to Franchisor's
satisfaction, all maintenance, refurbishing, renovating, and remodeling required by Franchisor's notice no
later than thirty (30) days prior to expiration of the Initial Term. Then Franchisee will, not less than thirty
(30) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term, execute the then-current form of the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement. Additional terms are contained in Section 4.2;

“Royalty Fee” means paying Franchisor for the limited right to use the Franchisor’s Tradename,
System and Marks at the rate of Five percent (5%) of Gross Sales, by ACH from the Electronic Depository
Transfer Account every Wednesday, for the previous week ending the previous reporting period, pursuant
to the terms in Section 3.2, including the right to raise this fee;

“Site Selection and Real Estate Training Agreement Fee” means the payment of Nineteen
Thousand Dollars ($19,000.00) previously paid to the Franchisor for access to the information provided in
the Site Selection and Real Estate Training Course governed by the previously executed Site Selection and
Real Estate Training Agreement;

“Social Media” means online content created by individuals and/or entities using highly accessible

and scalable publishing technologies through their desktop computer, laptop computer, smart phones,
mobile phone or by other means available in the future. Social Media allows individuals and/or entities to
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connect in the online world to form relationships for personal and business use. The definition of Social
Media includes user-generated content and consumer-generated media. Social Media occurs in many
different forms, including, but not limited to, Internet forums, weblogs, social blogs, wikis, podcasts,
pictures and videos. Technologies for Social Media include, but are not limited to: blogs, picture-sharing,
vlogs, wall-postings, e-mail, instant messaging, music-sharing, crowdsourcing, and voice over IP, to name
a few. Some examples of Social Media sites and/or applications are Google Groups (reference, social
networking), Wikipedia (reference), MySpace (social networking), Facebook (social networking),
MouthShut.com and yelp.com (product reviews), Youmeo (social network aggregation), YouTube (social
networking and video sharing), Avatars United (social networking), Second Life (virtual reality), Flickr
(photo sharing), Twitter (social networking and microblogging), LinkedIn (business social media),Open
Diary (blogging) and other microblogs such as Twitter and Jaiku, among others. This list is not inclusive
and shall mean all Social Media available now and created in the future;

“System” means the Marks, the trade dress, uniform standards, methods, procedures and
specifications developed by Franchisor and as may be added to, changed, modified, withdrawn or otherwise
revised by Franchisor for the operation of Teapioca Businesses. The Teapioca Lounge® System is for the
operation of a unique business dealing in boba, bubble tea and dessert drink confections. The Teapioca
system includes among other things, confidential operating procedures, a management program, and
accounting procedures;

“Technology & Intranet Fee (Technology”)” means the weekly contribution by Franchisee in
the amount stated on the Summary Page of this Agreement and in Software Fee above, to pay for the
Technology used in connection with the Franchised Business, and subject to change with thirty (30) days’
notice, further discussed in Section 3.7;

“Technology Setup Fee” means the initial setup costs as state on the Summary Page of this
Agreement, to ensure Franchisee’s Technology is ready upon the Opening of the Franchised Business, as
further discussed in Section 3.7,

“Temporary Management Fee” means the fee paid, as published in the Manual(s), currently, two
percent (2%) of the Gross Sales daily, plus Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) for Franchisor to assume
operation of the Franchised Business until the deceased or incapacitated Franchisee owner’s interest is
transferred to a third-party approved by Franchisor, for up to a maximum of sixty (60) days. This fee is
charged during the time Franchisor is operating the Franchised Business plus reimbursement of any
expenses incurred that are not paid out of the operating cash flow of the Franchised Business; further
discussed in Section 8.8;

"Termination Date" also known as Date of Termination, means the date when the Franchisee no
longer has time to cure any Defaults under this Agreement, pursuant to Article 16;

“Territory” has the meaning given to such term in Section 2.5, as well as Exhibit 11;

“Trade Secrets” means information in any form (including, but not limited to, technical or non-
technical data, Know-How, formulas, patterns, compilations, programs, devices, methods, techniques,
drawings, processes, financial data, financial plans, product plans, passwords, lists of actual or potential
customers or suppliers) related to or used in Teapioca Businesses that is not commonly known by or
available to the public and that information: (a) derives economic value, actual or potential, from not being
generally known to, and not being readily ascertained by proper means by, other persons who can obtain
economic value from its disclosure or use; and (b) is the subject of efforts that are reasonable under the
circumstances to maintain its secrecy;
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“Traditional Location” describes a location that meets the criteria of an approved Teapioca
Business, which includes size, demographics, and psychographics, as further described in the Manual;

“Training Timelines” means Franchisor shall provide, and Franchisee and their Manager must
successful complete in conjunction with beginning operation of the Franchised Business, four levels of
training, a Pre-Training; the Initial Training; the Soft Opening Training which shall be completed prior to
opening to the general public; and the Grand Opening Program, which includes a total of three to five (3-
5) day(s) of training at the Franchised Business through Grand Opening. Additional trainees or a returning
/ retraining trainee will be charged Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per day, or Ten Thousand Five Hundred
Dollars ($10,500.00) for the full twenty-one (21) calendar day(s) of training. The following amount of
training will occur during each phase of the Onboarding and Opening periods:

Training Level Amount of Training
Pre-Training Courses Fifty-nine (59) hours of Business Establishment

training, and thirty-three (33) hours of Site
Selection and Real Estate training.

Initial Training Program Twenty-one (21) calendar day(s) of classroom
training and on-the-job initial training program

Pre-Soft Opening Assistance One to two (1-2) 8-hour day(s) prior to the Soft
Opening

Soft Opening One (1) 8-hour day of operation to the public for
Soft Opening assistance

Grand Opening One to two (1-2) 8-hour business day(s) of

Franchisor’s presence associated with Franchisee’s
Grand Opening

“Transfer” means changing owner, or ownership of an interest in the Franchise, the Ongoing
Franchise Agreement, the Approved Location, the Franchised Business’ assets or the Franchisee entity;

“Transfer Fee” means paying the Franchisor Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for transferring
Franchisees Franchised Business to another individual or entity, or a lesser amount if Transferee is already
a Franchisee of the System, as stated in the Manual(s). The Transfer fee is due when submitting the Notice
of Selling, which is when Franchisee places the Franchised Business up for sale. This fee is not refundable
Further described in Section 18.2;

“Transfer Training Fee” means the fee due of Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00), for up to
two (2) people, additional attendees billed at Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) each per day, which will be
due upon signing of the new Franchise Agreement with Transferee. If the previously certified Manager is
retained during the sale, then Franchisee shall pay Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for training.
Additional details in Section 18.2;

"Transferee™ means the individual or entity third-party buyer, who purchases this Franchise
Agreement if the Franchisee chooses to sell;

“Vendor and Product Approval Requirements” means if Franchisee desires to have an additional
vendor or product to be approved, Franchisee must along with the submission of suggested suppliers’
information, submit to Franchisor a One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00) fee, in addition to any costs
incurred for product or against Franchisor, for Franchisor to begin the process of reviewing the suggested
supplier. Franchisee or supplier shall bear all expenses incurred by Franchisor in connection with test
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marketing the product to determine whether Franchisor shall approve an item, service or supplier.
Franchisee shall test market the vendor and/or product prior to final approval. Test marketing shall consist of
a minimum of ninety (90) days and a maximum of ninety (90) days and must be tested at the Franchisee’s
location as well as the corporate store. Franchisor will decide, in its sole discretion, within one hundred and
twenty (120) days after receiving the required information, as stated in Section 13.1, whether Franchisor
temporarily approves the supplier. If Franchisor does not submit approval in writing to the Franchisee
within one hundred and twenty (120) days, the proposed item, service, or supplier is deemed denied.
Franchisor may refund any supplier fees, at its sole discretion, if the supplier is approved for use in the
Franchised Business. Franchisor may revoke its approval of any item, service or supplier at any time by
notifying Franchisee and/or the supplier. Franchisee shall, at its own expense, promptly cease using, selling
or providing any items or services disapproved by Franchisor and shall promptly cease purchasing from
suppliers disapproved by Franchisor within thirty (30) days. Additional terms are contained in “Prospective
Supplier Evaluation” above, and in Section 13.1.

ARTICLE 2 - GRANT OF EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE
Section 2.1 Grant of Franchise

Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee, and Franchisee undertakes and accepts, upon the terms and
conditions herein contained, a revocable, limited license to operate one Teapioca Business using the System
and Marks.

Section 2.2 Location of Your Teapioca Franchise

Subject to all of the terms and conditions herein, Franchisor grants to Franchisee the Exclusive
right and license to operate a Franchised Business using the System and the Marks solely within the
Territory described in Section 2.5 (the "Location™), which Location must be pre-approved by Franchisor
according to its then-current criteria, and Franchisee hereby accepts such right and license subject to such
terms and conditions and undertakes to operate the Franchised Business and to use the System and Marks
solely in connection therewith. The rights and license herein granted are sometimes referred to in this
Agreement as the "Franchise" or the "Franchised Business."

Section 2.3 Approved Location Not Determined

Prior to signing this Franchise Agreement Franchisee will have executed the Site Selection and
Real Estate Training Agreement. Site selection is determined after the signing of this Agreement.
Franchisor provides Franchisee with Site Selection and Real Estate Services at no additional cost through
Franchisor’s Approved Vendor. If Franchisee chooses not to make use of this service, Franchisee will bear
the costs associated with Franchisor obtaining the necessary Site Selection analytics including
demographics, psychographics, and other information from Franchisor’s Approved CCIM Vendor. These
costs can vary widely, are dependent on a number of factors, and typically range from Three Thousand
Dollars to Ten Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00 to $10,000.00). Franchisor does not recommend Franchisee
use any other Real Estate service than Franchisor’s Approved Vendor. Franchisee will sign its lease only
after Franchisor approval. However, If the Approved Location of the Franchised Business is not determined
as of the Effective Date, then Franchisee shall have up to thirty (30) days to propose a location to Franchisor
for approval. If Franchisor does not deny Franchisee’s proposed location within thirty (30) business days,
the location shall be deemed approved. If Franchisee receives a denial from Franchisor, Franchisee must
submit a new location until approved. When the Approved Location is determined, its description shall be
inserted into Section 2.5. Subject to other provisions of the Agreement, the failure to insert such description
shall not automatically affect the enforceability of this Agreement.
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Section 2.4 Sub-franchising/ Agents

Franchisee shall not sublicense the use of the System or Marks to any person or entity to perform
any part of Franchisee’s rights or obligations licensed herein, or to grant any person or entity the right to
act as Franchisee’s agent to perform any part of Franchisee’s rights or obligations herein.

Section 2.5 The Exclusive Territory

So long as this Agreement is in force and effect and Franchisee is not in default under any of the
terms hereof, subject to Franchisor’s reservation of rights set forth in Section 2.6, Franchisor shall grant to
Franchisee a Territory. After the Territory and location (aka “the Premises™) are approved, Franchisor will
describe the Territory in Exhibit 11.

Franchisee is restricted from directly soliciting or advertising outside of Franchisee’s Territory,
including Franchisee may not advertise on the Internet without Our prior written consent.

Section 2.6 Franchisor’s Reservation of Rights

Except to the extent provided in Section 2.2, Franchisor retains all of its rights and control with
respect to the System and Marks, including the right to:

i. Establish, own or operate, or continue to own or operate, and license others to
establish, own or operate, or continue to own or operate, Teapioca Businesses outside of the
protected Territory;

ii.  Establish, own or operate, and license others to establish, own or operate, or
continue to own or operate, other businesses under other systems using other trademarks at
locations inside and outside of the Territory;

iii.  Purchase or otherwise acquire the assets or controlling ownership of one (1) or
more businesses identical or similar to the Franchised Business (and/or acquire franchise, license
and/or similar agreements for such businesses), some or all of which may be located anywhere,
including within the Territory. If Franchisor purchases or acquires franchises or licenses,
Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, act as Franchisor or licensor with respect to such Franchisees
or licensees wherever located, pursuant to the individual franchise or license agreement(s) between
Franchisor and such Franchisee(s) or licensee(s). If Franchisor purchases or acquires such
businesses within the Territory which are not franchised or licensed, Franchisor may, in its sole
discretion:

a. Offer to sell any such businesses to Franchisee or to any third-party at the
business’s fair market value to be operated as a Teapioca Business; or

b. Offer Franchisee the opportunity to operate such business(s) in partnership
with Franchisor (or an Affiliate) under the business(s) existing trade hame
or a different trade name.

iv.  Be acquired (regardless of the form of transaction) by any business, even if the
other business operates, franchises and/or licenses Competitive Businesses within the Territory;

v.  Sell any products authorized for Teapioca Businesses using the Marks or other
trademarks and commercial symbols through alternate channels of distribution, such as joint
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marketing with partner companies, Internet sales and catalog sales; provided, however, that no such
sales shall be made to any Competitive Business within the Territory;

Vi. Establish, own, or operate, and license other to establish, own and operate, or
continue to own or operate, Teapioca Business in Non-Traditional locations whether inside or
outside the Franchisee’s Territory; and

vii.  Engage in any activities not expressly forbidden by this Agreement.
Section 2.7 Diligence and Best Efforts

Franchisee shall in Good Faith diligently and fully exploit the rights in this Agreement by
personally devoting best efforts, and in the case more than one individual has executed this Agreement as
Franchisee, the individual so designated in this Agreement shall personally devote his or her best efforts
towards the operation of the Franchised Business, or provide for full time management, trained and
approved by the Franchisor, to manage the Franchised Business. The continued right of Franchisee’s
Territory does depend on Franchisee’s Minimum Gross Sales as stated on the Summary Page of this
Agreement.

Section 2.8 Key Accounts

Franchisee must participate in Key Accounts that contemplate performance in Franchisee Territory
of sales or parties, or other services or products, unless Franchisee opts out in writing. Key Accounts means
any (a) potential or existing commercial customer that has multiple sites, offices, or retail premises, at least
one of which is located outside Franchisee’s Territory, (b) any retail, manufacturing or wholesale company,
contractor, or similar business whose clientele or employees includes potential customers for regular
services or products or team building exercises, and (c) operators of web sites (or similar referral sources)
that offer to refer customers to Franchisor and Franchisor’s Franchisees for a fee. If Franchisee opts-out, as
stated in the Manual(s), Franchisee will receive no compensation even if the Key Account is located in
Franchisee’s Territory.

ARTICLE 3 - FEES

All dollar amounts or percentage amounts stated, or used in the Franchise Agreement and any
Addenda may, in our sole discretion, be adjusted as of January 1% of each year in proportion to the changes
in the CPI (Consumer Price Index) (U.S Average, all items) maintained by U.S Department of Labor (or
such equivalent index as may be adopted in the future) between January 1% of the previous year and January
of the then-current year (the “Index”). Each adjustment will be made effective as of January 1% based on
the January Index, but the 1% adjustment will not be made until the 2" January following the Agreement
Date (i.e., for an Agreement Date of July 1, 2018, the 1° adjustment would be effective as of January 1,
2020). Our failure to adjust any dollar amounts or percentages due to changes in the Index at any time does
not constitute a waiver of our right to make future adjustments. However, we will not impose such
adjustments retroactively.

Section 3.1 Initial Fees

Franchisee must have previously paid Franchisor the Site Selection and Real Estate
Training Agreement Fee and the Business Establishment Agreement Fee, as set forth in Article 1, to secure
Franchisees chosen Territory, which includes the Training and use of the Confidential Information to be
eligible to be granted a Single Unit Franchise. The Initial Franchise Fee under this Agreement is Zero
Dollars ($0.00).
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Section 3.2 Weekly Royalty Fees

For the limited right to use Franchisor’s tradename and/or items listed on Exhibit 6 attached hereto,
Franchisee shall, pay the Royalty Fees as stated in Article 1, for so long as this Agreement shall be in effect.
The Royalties shall be based on the Gross Sales Report, as required by Section 12.3, for the same period.
Franchisor currently requires Franchisee to pay Royalty Fees through ACH transfer from Electronic
Depository Transfer Account, as set forth in Section 3.5, however, if Franchisee uses an Approved Vendor
for billing and collection, Franchisor may collect Royalty Fees directly from the Approved Vendor.
Franchisor reserves the right to increase the Royalty Fees based upon the terms and conditions contained
in Articles 1 and 3 of this Agreement.

Section 3.3 Business Branding Fund Contribution

Franchisee shall be required to contribute their Business Branding Fund Contribution Weekly to
the Business Branding Fund on Wednesday of each Week for so long as this Agreement shall be in effect.
Each Week Business Branding Fund Contribution shall be based on the Gross Sales Report, as required by
Section 12.2. Franchisor may adjust the Business Branding Fund Contribution amount from time to time,
in its sole discretion, but any total adjustment shall not exceed a raise of more than One percent (1%) yearly
over the term of this Agreement. Franchisor shall notify Franchisee at least thirty (30) days before
implementing or changing the Business Branding Fund Contribution requirements. The Business Branding
Fund shall be maintained and administered by Franchisor or its designee in accordance with the provisions
contained in Section 11.3.

Section 3.4 Local Advertising Contributions

Franchisee shall be required to contribute to their Local Advertising pursuant to the amount and
terms contained on the Summary Page, and further discussed in Section 11.1.
Section 3.5 Taxes

Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor an amount equal to all sales taxes, use taxes and similar taxes
imposed on the fees payable by Franchisee to Franchisor herein and on services or goods furnished to
Franchisee by Franchisor at the same time as Franchisee remits such fees to Franchisor, if any taxing
authority imposes such taxes on Franchisor, whether such services or goods are furnished by sale, lease or
otherwise, unless the tax is an income tax assessed on Franchisor for doing business in the state where the
Franchised Business is located.

Franchisee will promptly pay, when due, all taxes required by any federal, state or local tax
authority including unemployment taxes, withholding taxes, sales taxes, use taxes, income taxes, tangible
commercial personal property taxes, real estate taxes, intangible taxes and all other indebtedness incurred
in the conduct of Franchisee’s Teapioca Business. Franchisee agrees it will not permit a tax sale or seizure
by levy or execution or similar writ or warrant or attachment by a creditor to occur against the location or
any asset used in Franchisee’s Teapioca Business.

Section 3.6 Electronic Transfer
Franchisor has sole discretion to determine and change the method by which Franchisee pays to
Franchisor any and all amounts due to Franchisor under this Agreement. Currently, Franchisor requires all

Royalty Fees, Business Branding Funds, and other amounts due from Franchisee to Franchisor to be paid
either (a) through an Electronic Depository Transfer Account or (b) by Franchisee electronically
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transferring to Franchisor any funds due Franchisor. Within thirty (30) days after successfully completing
training, but no later than fifteen (15) days prior to opening the Franchised Business, Franchisee shall open
and maintain an Electronic Depository Transfer Account (“ACH”) and shall provide Franchisor with
continuous access to such account for the purpose of receiving any payments due to Franchisor, by signing
and returning the ACH Withdrawal Form attached as Exhibit 8. Franchisee will give its financial institution
instructions, in a form Franchisor provides or approves, and will obtain the financial institutions agreement
to follow these instructions. Franchisee will provide Franchisor with copies of these instructions and
agreements. The financial institution’s agreement may not be withdrawn or modified without Franchisor’s
written approval, which approval is within Franchisor’s sole discretion. Franchisee will also sign all other
forms for fund transfers as Franchisor or the financial institution may request.

Franchisor may require Franchisee's financial institution to send a monthly statement of all activity
in the designated account to Franchisor at the same time it sends statements to the Franchisee. Franchisor
may further require Franchisee’s financial institution to send any other reports of activity in the Franchisee’s
Operating Account to Franchisor as Franchisor reasonably determines and requests. Franchisee shall
execute any documents Franchisor’s or Franchisee’s bank requires to establish and implement the
Electronic Depository Transfer Account.

If Franchisee maintains any other bank accounts for the Franchised Business, Franchisee must
identify these accounts to Franchisor and provide Franchisor with copies of the monthly statements for all
of these accounts and the details of all deposits and withdrawals to those accounts along with access to
those accounts as set forth in the above paragraphs.

Every week, Franchisee shall make timely deposits to the account sufficient to cover amounts owed
to Franchisor prior to the date such amounts are due. Franchisee shall execute any documents Franchisor’s
or Franchisee’s bank requires to establish and implement the Electronic Depository Transfer Account. Once
established, Franchisee shall not close the Electronic Depository Transfer Account without Franchisor’s
written consent and the establishment of a replacement Electronic Depository Transfer Account.

Section 3.7 Technology Fees

Franchisee shall pay a Technology & Intranet Fee (hereafter “Technology Fees”). On the
Wednesday of each Week, for so long as this Agreement shall be in effect, Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor through deductions from Gross Sales without offset, credit or deduction of any nature, the
Weekly Technology Fee as well as any initial setup fees, as stated in Article 1, to implement the applicable
Technology services.

In addition, Franchisor requires Franchisee to purchase through the approved supplier stated in the
Manual(s), the approved point of sale system (“POS”). Franchisee will be responsible for any ongoing
upgrades or updates to the POS, ongoing maintenance packages, and computer and software packages after
installation.

Franchisee shall: (1) use proprietary software programs, as may be developed and prescribed by
Franchisor, including system documentation manuals and other proprietary materials now and hereafter
developed by Franchisor, in connection with the operation of the Business; (2) execute Franchisor’s
standard software license agreement, if necessary; (3) input and maintain in Franchisee’s computer such
data and information as Franchisor prescribes in the Manuals, software programs, documentation or
otherwise; and (4) purchase new, different or upgraded software programs, system documentation manuals
and other proprietary materials at then-current prices (except as provided in this Section), whenever
Franchisor adopts such new, different or upgraded programs, manuals and materials system-wide; provided
that, with respect to any required purchase of new, different or upgraded software programs (i) Franchisee
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shall be required to purchase any such program only after it has been tested and implemented in Franchisor-
owned Businesses, if any such Businesses then exist, and (ii) Franchisee shall be notified of the required
purchase in advance, as stated in the Manual(s) before Franchisee is required to implement the program.

Franchisor has the right to independently access all information collected or compiled by or in
accordance with Franchisee’s use of any of the software packages at any time without first notifying
Franchisee. Franchisee must update or upgrade any and all hardware and software as Franchisor deems
necessary.

Franchisor requires that Franchisee have a business telephone, telephone line, and phone service.
Franchisee shall pay third-party providers for phone service and systems.

Section 3.8 Late Fees and Insufficient Funds Fee

Although each failure to pay monies when due is an Event of Default, to encourage prompt payment
and to cover the costs involved in processing late payments or where Franchisee’s bank account has
insufficient funds, if any payment under this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisor or its
Affiliates and Franchisee for the Franchised Business is overdue for any reason or if Franchisee’s bank
account has insufficient funds to cover any payment due, Franchisee must pay to Franchisor, in addition to
the original amount due, a late fee pursuant to Article 1, or the maximum amount as permitted by State law,
per incident plus eighteen percent(18%) interest compounded per day until the amount due is paid in full.
If any fee owed by Franchisee is overdue by more than six (6) calendar days after notice has been sent by
Franchisor, Franchisor may immediately terminate this Agreement.

Franchisee shall pay Franchisor for all costs incurred by Franchisor in the collection of any unpaid
and past due Royalty Fees, Business Branding Funds or any other amounts due Franchisor, including
reasonable accounting and collection fees. This Section shall not constitute an agreement by Franchisor to
accept any payments after the due date or a commitment by Franchisor to extend credit to or otherwise
finance Franchisee.

Section 3.9 Application of Payments

No payment by Franchisee or acceptance by Franchisor of any monies under this Agreement for a
lesser amount than due shall be treated as anything other than a partial payment on account. Any
endorsement, statement or communication by Franchisee to the effect that Franchisee’s payment of a lesser
amount than due constitutes full payment shall be given no effect and Franchisor may accept the partial
payment without prejudice to any rights or remedies it may have against Franchisee. Franchisor’s
acceptance of payments by Franchisee other than as set forth in this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver
of Franchisor’s right to demand payment in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any designation by Franchisee, Franchisor shall have the right to apply any payments by
Franchisee to any past due indebtedness of Franchisee for Royalty Fees, Business Branding Funds,
purchases from Franchisor or its Affiliates, or any other amount owed to Franchisor in any proportion or
priority. Franchisor’s acceptance of payment from any entity other than the named Franchisee shall be
deemed to be payment by the named Franchisee and shall not be deemed to be recognition or substitution
of the paying entity for the named Franchisee.

Section 3.10  No Withholding
Franchisee agrees that under no circumstances will Franchisee withhold or suspend payment of, or

reduce the amount of the Royalty Fee, Business Branding Funds or purchases payable under this
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Franchisee disputes in Good Faith the amount of an
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individual payment due under this Agreement, Franchisee may pay only the amount Franchisee believes is
due, provided that prompt notice to the Franchisor is giving stating the reason(s) Franchisee disputes the
amount of the payment and proceeds to make Good Faith efforts to resolve the dispute.

ARTICLE 4 - TERM OF AGREEMENT AND RENEWAL
Section 4.1 Initial Term

This Agreement shall take effect as of the date of the execution hereof (the "Effective Date™), and
the initial term ("Initial Term") hereof shall extend until the earlier of (1) the date that is precisely ten (10)
years from the Effective Date, or (2) the date on which this Agreement terminates pursuant to Section 16
hereof, or (3) the expiration of Franchisee's lease at the Location.

Section 4.2 Renewal

Subject to the conditions below, Franchisee has the right to obtain a successor franchise at the
expiration of the term of this Agreement by entering into a new then-current Ongoing Franchise Agreement
with Franchisor and paying the Renewal Fee as stated on the Summary Page and in Article 1. Franchisee’s
right to a successor franchise is limited to one (1) successive term. To qualify for a successor franchise, all
the timelines contained in Article 1 definition for Renewal Fee shall have been met along with each of the
following conditions must have been fulfilled and remain true as of the last day of the term of this
Agreement:

i.  Franchisee shall give Franchisor written notice of such election to renew
based upon the timeline in Renewal definition stated in Article 1, prior to the end of the
Initial Term;

ii.  Franchisee shall schedule to attend a refresher training and certification
course with Franchisor at Franchisor’s next available training;

iii.  Franchisor shall have the right to inspect the Location and give notice of
all required maintenance, refurbishing, renovating, and remodeling and Franchisee shall
agree to complete at its expense and to Franchisor's satisfaction, all maintenance,
refurbishing, renovating, and remodeling required by Franchisor's notice by the stated due
date, pursuant to Article 1;

iv.  Franchisee shall not be in material default of any provision of this
Agreement, or any amendment hereof, or any Agreement Franchisee has with Franchisor,
and shall at all times have substantially complied with all the terms and conditions of this
Agreement during the term hereof or fully cured all Noticed Default(s);

v.  Franchisee shall have satisfied all monetary obligations owed by
Franchisee to Franchisor and its subsidiaries and affiliates and shall have timely met such
obligations throughout the Initial Term;

vi.  Franchisee shall execute the then-current form of the Ongoing Franchise
Agreement being used by Franchisor, which may have terms that are materially different
than the terms of this Franchise Agreement;

vii.  Franchisee shall comply with Franchisor's then-current criteria for
operation of a Franchised Business;
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viii.  Franchisee shall submit themselves and any Manager(s) to drug tests and
background checks, and submit the results to Franchisor for recordkeeping prior to the
natural end of the Initial Term;

ix.  Both parties shall execute a General Release of all claims, in a form like
Exhibit 1 attached hereto, against each other which accrued or may have accrued during
the Term, whether or not such claim had yet been discovered by the parties;

X.  Franchisee shall present evidence satisfactory to Franchisor that it has the
right to remain in possession of the Location, has valid Licenses, or certifications as
applicable, passed new Background Checks, as required, or another suitable location or
licensure needs approved by Franchisor according to its then-current criteria for the
duration of the Option Term; and

xi.  Franchisee shall submit written documentation establishing that all
certifications required during the Initial Term are in good standing and shall remain in good
standing for the duration of the Option Term.

The Initial Term and any Option Term collectively may be referred to herein as the "Term" of this
Agreement.

ARTICLES - APPROVED LOCATION
Section 5.1 Selection of Site

Franchisee, with the assistance of the assigned CCIM, shall promptly select three (3) sites for the
Franchised Business and shall notify Franchisor of such selections by submitting Franchisor’s Site Selection
and Real Estate Training form with all supporting data and attachments pursuant to Section 5.3 below.
Franchisee will then choose which of the approved sites they want as the Franchised Business Location and
proceed with the LOI (Letter of Intent) phase with the landlord. Once the landlord has approved the LOI,
Franchisee will notify Franchisor, and the site shall be designated as the Approved Location on Exhibit 11.
If Franchisor does not approve of such selections, Franchisee shall select and notify Franchisor of new sites
until Franchisor approves a site for the Franchised Business. Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with
general guidelines to assist Franchisee in selecting a site suitable for the Approved Location. Franchisor
has the right to approve or disapprove a proposed location based on such factors as it deems appropriate,
including, without limitation: the condition of the premises; demographics of the surrounding area;
proximity to other Teapioca Businesses and competitors; lease requirements; proximity to other Teapioca
Lounge Business and competitors; lease requirements; proximity to at least 1 mall, movie theater, office
park, sports complex, college/university, or similar business destination that attracts large amounts of
potential customers on a regular basis; and overall suitability. Franchisor shall notify Franchisee of its
approval or disapproval of a proposed site within thirty (30) calendar days after Franchisor receives all
requested information from Franchisee. If the Franchisor fails to respond in writing to the Selection of Site
request within thirty (30) calendar days, the site is deemed approved.

Franchisor does not represent that it, or any of its Affiliates, owners or employees, have special
expertise in selecting sites. Neither Franchisor’s assistance nor its approval is intended to indica